

Department of Crime Problems Directorate General I —Legal Affairs

(31 January 2006)

IMPLEMENTATION OF ANTI-CORRUPTION PLANS IN SOUTH-EASTERN EUROPE (PACO IMPACT)

3rd Semi-Annual Report

(August 2005 - January 2006)



PC-TC (2006)3

PACO Impact is funded by the Swedish International Development and Cooperation Agency (Sida)

Table of Contents

1	INTRODUCTION (UPDATE)	4
2	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (UPDATE)	4
2.1 2.2 2.3	REPORTING, WORKPLAN AND CALENDAR	5
3	REGIONAL THEMATIC SEMINARS	10
	3.1.1 Anti-corruption Services (Update) 3.1.2 Legislative Reform	
4	PROJECT AREA ACTIVITY REPORT	17
4.1	ALBANIA (UPDATE)	17 17
4.2	BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA (BIH) (UPDATE)	28 28
4.3	4.3.1 Project Orientation 4.3.2 Activities by Outputs 4.3.3 Observations/Comments (Update)	40 40
4.4	"THE FORMER YUGOSLAV REPUBLIC OF MACEDONIA" (UPDATE)	49 49
4.5	 KOSOVO (SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO) (UPDATE)	60 60 60
4.6	MONTENEGRO (SERBIA & MONTENEGRO) (UPDATE)	68 68
4.7	SERBIA (SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO) (UPDATE)	
5	ANNEX I: CALENDAR OF ACTIVITIES (UPDATE- 31/01/2006)	90
7	ANNEX II: LIST OF TECHNICAL PAPERS (UPDATE)	105

For any additional information please contact:

Ms Ardita ABDIU
PACO Impact – Project Manager
Crime Problems Department / Directorate General I – Legal Affairs / Council of Europe
67075 Strasbourg CEDEX, France

PACO **3** Impact 3rd Semi-Annual Report

1 INTRODUCTION (UPDATE)

The PACO Impact regional project is fully funded from Sida and is aimed at the implementation of anti-corruption plans in South-eastern Europe up to an amount of EURO 1.5 million. The project area covers countries of South-eastern Europe, namely: Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia", Serbia and Montenegro¹. The project started in March 2004 and was initially to last until February 2006. In December 2005, the Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency (Sida) and the Council of Europe agreed to extend at no additional cost until 31 July 2006.

So far, the following progress report (including the present report) have been submitted to Sida:

■ Inception Phase (1 March – 30 June 2004): Inception Report (November 2004)

First Phase (1 March 2004 – 31 January 2005):
 Second Phase (1 February – 31 July 2005):
 1st Semi-Annual Report (15 February 2005)
 2nd Semi-Annual Report (31 July 2005)

Third Phase (1 August 2005 – 31 January 2006): 3rd Semi-Annual Report (31 January 2006)

Following its approval, the Inception Report with its Workplan became the guiding document for the project's implementation.

The 1st Semi-Annual Report provided progress reporting on overall activities carried out since the beginning of the project, as well as a description of the state of play for each project area, and an updated calendar of activities.

The 2nd Semi-Annual Report provided an up-date on achievements to date and on activities against each output. In addition, that report served as the basis for discussion between the Council of Europe, Sida project management team, and representatives of the beneficiary (partner) countries at the midterm review which took place on 30 August 2005 in Strasbourg.

This 3rd Semi-Annual Report will again provide an up-date on activities and progress made against each output. Following agreement on the extension of the project, a Final Report on Project Implementation is to be submitted not later than 30 September 2006.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (UPDATE)

2.1 Reporting, workplan and calendar

In order to facilitate the understanding of the progress made with respect to each output, the activities reported on in the past are again documented in this report. The specific activities which took place during the period August 2005 to January 2006 are marked as "Update". This will allow the reader to understand the origin and context of actions initiated previously or reforms underway.

The substance of the workplan of the PACO Impact project as the document guiding project implementation basically has not changed since the inception phase. However some activities have been merged, replaced, or added in response to the needs and developments in project areas. The updated calendar also reflects the revised schedule of activities until 31 July 2006.

_

¹ The project area includes also Kosovo (Serbia and Montenegro), currently under the interim administration of UNMIK in accordance with the United Nations Security Council Resolution 1244 (1999).

2.2 Overall Achievements

During the last six months (1 August 2005 - 31 January 2006), about 31 activities were carried out, bringing the total of activities to 107 (from about 145 foreseen for the project on the whole).

Achievements during the past 22 months under each planned output can be summarised as follows:

 Anti-corruption strategies have been designed, elaborated, improved to represent the guiding and institutionalised documents for action plans and policy orientation in the following respective project areas

Project Areas	Anti-corruption Strategies/ Programmes	PACO Impact intervention	Strategy Endorsement by government	Strategy Endorsement by parliament	Anti- corruption Action Plans
Albania	Improved, elaborated and functioning until September 2005	Full advice, and assistance	Yes March 2005	The strategy is not submitted to Parliament	Improved, elaborated and functioning until September 2005
	* new policy has been initiated by the new government in September 2005	* New policy expected to be supported and under discussion	To be determined subject to new policies	To be determined Subject to new policies	* new policy has been initiated by the new government in September 2005
Bosnia and Herzegovina	Revision, improvement and drafting on going	Full advice, and assistance	Pending on the Strategy finalisation	Pending on the Strategy finalisation	Pending on the Strategy finalisation and its content
Croatia	Program Finalised	Full advice, and assistance	Submitted in November 05- 2 nd Review required to MOJ by GoC in January 2006	Pending on the government's endorsement	Pending on the Program endorsement
fYROM	Improved, elaborated and functioning and annually reviewed. In addition Annex on AC Measures in Local Government adopted in June 05.	Full advice, and assistance	Yes	Yes	Improved, elaborated and functioning and annually reviewed
Montenegro	Programme Finalised	Full advice, and assistance	Yes 28 July 2005	Not required	Action Plan Designing undergoing
Kosovo	Strategy Finalised	Full advice, and assistance	Yes	The strategy has not been submitted for adoption to	Action Plan Finalised and pending endorsement

				Kosovo Assembly			
	Strategy Finalised	Full advice, and			Action Plan		
Serbia		assistance	Yes	Yes	Designing		
			26 May 2005	8 December 2005	undergoing		
Regional	Throughout all regional thematic seminars, and now established networking of anti-corruption services						
Component	and officers, an exchange of best practices, models, and evaluations of lessons learned on drafting						
	strategies and action plans have been taking place and have managed to create a regional momentum						
	as a step forward on building regional anti-corruption oriented strategies.						

Institutional mechanisms relevant for the fight against corruption continue to be strengthened

Project Areas	Status of Anti-corruption Services	PACO Impact intervention
Albania	Following the recent new government's institutional reform the former Anti-corruption Unit was decided to be merged to a Department for Internal Administrative Audit and Anti-corruption (DIAC), introducing a larger structure with additional powers.	Full advice, and assistance up to now * Initial policy discussions have started in order to support technically the framework of the new structure and maintain the sustainability of the existing institutional memory
Bosnia and Herzegovina	Following policy discussions initiated by PACO Impact a recent decision of the Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Security proclaims budgetary and political will in supporting the Working Group to initiate the drafting of Anti-corruption Law aimed at establishing Anti-corruption Services	High Level Discussions and Policy Advice * Full Advice and Assistance expected to be provided in due course
Croatia	Policy discussions are still on going in order to determine the feasibility and the determine the real need of introducing new preventive Anti-corruption Services in addition to USKOK due to different opinions among institutions themselves in Croatia	High Level Discussions and Policy Advice and Technical Support to USKOK and Mol * Full Advice and Assistance expected to be provided in due course
fYROM	The State Anti-corruption Commission (SACC) continues to be active and further strengthening their capacities in making these services the only driving forces for the design and monitoring of anti-corruption measures and reforms	Full advice, and assistance up to now
Montenegro	The Office of Anti-corruption Initiative (OACI) continues to participate and undertake initiatives while taking further on actions for strengthening their capacities and sustainability	Advice, and assistance in relation to OACI's role in drafting Anti-corruption Programme and establishing the Public Relation component
Kosovo	Following the promulgation of the Anti-corruption Law, initial technical and policy advice steps have been taken aimed at the establishment of the new Anti-corruption Agency	Full advice, and assistance up to now
Serbia	Following on going discussion over the new draft law on Anti-corruption, the establishment of a new setting for the	Full advice, and assistance up to now

	anti-corruption services is expected to take place. However,				
	the existing Anti-corruption Council continues to be yet				
	operational and participate in these discussions				
	Regional dialogue, exchange of best practices, identification of priorities as well as dissemination of				
Regional	information and regional networks throughout have been strengthened during the first and second				
Component	regional thematic seminars on anti-corruption services; follow-up actions have been agreed upon				
	with stakeholders and continue to be exchanged and evaluated among all partners in the region.				
	The "Joint Declaration" in Skopje on 1 April 2005, established further another high level of expression				
	of political will and commitment from the high level authorities from each project area.				

Legislative reform continue to be brought into line with international standards

Project Areas	PACO Intervention on Initiating and Drafting New Legislation	PACO Intervention on Evaluating existing Legislation	PACO Intervention on Training and on Aspects of implementation of Legislation	
Albania	 Conflict of interests Law Legal Framework of DIAC (AC Services) 	Conflict of interests Law	Law on Freedom of InformationConflict of interests Law	
Bosnia and Herzegovina			Criminal and Criminal Procedure Law; Corporate Liability Law	
Croatia			Treaty Law: CoE and UN Conventions on Corruption	
fYROM			 Anti-corruption Law; Criminal and Criminal Procedure Law; Compilation and publication of all relevant anti-corruption instruments 	
Montenegro	Conflict of interest law	 Criminal Procedure Law; State Prosecutor's Act; Internal Rules of Procedure for Prosecution Services 	Criminal and Criminal Procedure Law; Corporate Liability Law	
Kosovo		Anti-corruption law	Treaty Law: CoE and UN Conventions on Corruption; Anti-corruption law	
Serbia	Anti-corruption Law	 Conflict of Interest law; Funding of Political Parties Law 	 Anti-corruption Law Provisions on funding of Political Parties Provisions on Conflict of Interests 	
Regional	Regional peer review and compliance with relevant international Anti-corruption Conventions, as well as training on the transposition treaty law into domestic legislation has been part of the second regional thematic seminar on treaty law application of anti-corruption standards; follow-up recommendations for reform were issued and agreed upon. In addition issues and best practices of legislation			

Component	approximation and implementation aspects with regard to the Conflict of Interest Law
	took a special angle and were thoroughly discussed during the third regional thematic
	seminar in addition to issues related to anti-corruption services and became of a major
	benefit for all participants from SEE.

Pilot Activities are initiated and being implemented

Project Areas	Pilot Activity Type	Initiated	Status of Implementation	
Albania	Case Management Reform Aiming to Prevent Corruption within the Prosecutorial Services	July 2004	Finalisation in June 2006	
Bosnia and Herzegovina	Preparation of the "Manual on the Practical Tools and Guidelines on criminal proceedings against corruption related offences – (Tools Manual)".	May 2005	Finalisation in February 2006	
Croatia	Strengthening technical and operational capacities during criminal proceedings against corruption related offences	November 2005	Finalisation in February 2006	
fYROM	Twining partnership consultative cooperation between the State Anticorruption Commission and their homologue institutions in Estonia and Italy	November 2005	Finalisation in April 2006	
Montenegro	Strengthening operational capacities and increasing effectiveness of the Special Prosecutor Office	June 2005	Partially final, however certain actions still need to be taken by April 2006	
Kosovo	Provide assistance and support to the establishment of the new office of ACA in Kosovo (including the purchase of equipment)	To be initiated in February 2006	Finalisation in July 2006	
Serbia	Developing and introducing a new Integrity Plans Manual for judiciary: (District Court and District Prosecutors Office)	December 2005	Finalisation in June 2006	
Regional Component	Dissemination and publication of certain pilot activity products as best practices in regional or English language will be ensured prior to the end of the project for certain pilot activities and practices used for specific project areas, in order to ensure model practices and lessons learned distribution throughout the region. Such interaction has already started to take place between Albania and Montenegro, and requested between Bosnia and Herzegovina and Serbia.			

2.3 General Observations

The project is now reaching the stage where a range of activities is being finalised and the results of certain reforms should become visible. It is expected that during the coming six months, the speed of reforms will increase. This, combined with political commitment to on-going reforms, will provide a good basis for the sustainability of the actions and the reform process in this region.

It should be stressed again that the authorities of each project area continue to be fully involved within the framework of this project, and continue to seek the partnership and assistance provided through the project. Additionally, in Albania, Montenegro, Kosovo, Serbia and "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia", PACO Impact (and earlier PACO) interventions have made the project a true partner supporting technical level counterparts to pursue and lobby for the reforms which they deem necessary.

However, certain delays in institutional and legislative reforms have also caused delays in project implementation. It is hoped that the extension of the project until July 2006 will help make up for these delays and allow to meet all the undertaken commitments by this project and its counterparts in the region.

3 REGIONAL THEMATIC SEMINARS

3.1.1 Anti-corruption Services (Update)

<u>Main Goal:</u> Facilitate regional networking and the exchange of lessons learned on specific aspects and tools used in designing anti-corruption strategies, policies, action plans and the establishment of Anti-corruption services. Make use of model guidance and advice on policy and institutional reform with respect to streamlining and modifying public services [licences/permissions] when provided by central and local government authorities

<u>Target Groups</u>: Anti-corruption agencies/units/commissions/councils, central and local administration representatives involved in public service policy advice.

Output (1) & (2) & (3): Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated; Output (2): Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anti-corruption plans strengthened; (3) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: First Regional Thematic Seminar & High-level meeting on Anti-corruption Services in South-eastern Europe, 31 March - 1 April 2005, Skopje, "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia".

Among the main challenges with regard to anti-corruption measures in south-eastern Europe is the establishment, the strengthening and the proper functioning of independent anti-corruption services. Strong political commitment, along with training of staff and the provision of equipment and other resources, is essential to the success of such services. PACO Impact, therefore, pays particular attention to these institutions, and a number of activities have been and will be carried out accordingly in the framework of the project, including regional thematic seminars.

Two specific issues – a review of the current role of anti-corruption services on the one hand; and the need to review and improve these structures and the status of these services on the other hand - have been identified as very important and were dealt with in the framework of the first regional activity under PACO Impact, the "Regional thematic seminar & high level meeting on anti-corruption services in south-eastern Europe", which was held from 31 March to 1 April 2005 in Skopje in "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia".

The seminar brought together representatives from anti-corruption services/commissions, high-level officials from each administration of the PACO Impact project areas, as well as Council of Europe experts and Secretariat members.

Participants had prepared "Profiles on the existing Anti-corruption Services" for each of their respective areas, which were presented and discussed during the technical-level meetings, and for which recommendations for improvements and reforms were agreed upon.

The implementation of anti-corruption strategies and the functioning of effective anti-corruption services require strong political commitment and support. With regard to the regional seminar, it was therefore proposed to complement working sessions of anti-corruption bodies with a high-level segment, which would allow senior representatives to take stock of achievements, of reforms underway and of their compliance with European and other international anti-corruption standards; it also aimed to provide high-level participants with an opportunity for reconfirmation of a high-level political commitment by the governments of the region.

As a result of this, a Joint Declaration of Support (see Annex) was endorsed by high-level representatives from each project area participating in the PACO Impact project. The Joint Declaration was adopted by the following officials representing their governments/administrations: Albania-Deputy Minister of Justice; Bosnia and Herzegovina-Head of the PRSP Monitoring Unit at the Council of Ministers; Croatia-State Secretary of the Ministry of Justice; Kosovo-Director of the Department of Justice/UNMIK; Montenegro-Deputy Minister of the Interior; and Serbia-Assistant Minister of Justice, and the State Secretary of "the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia".

The thematic seminar aimed at providing an overview over, and discussions and analysis of two issues:

- The role of anti-corruption services in anti-corruption plans of countries of south-eastern Europe: In recent years, most countries of south-eastern Europe have established anti-corruption services. Thus, the seminar analysed the role and impact of these services in the elaboration, implementation and monitoring of anti-corruption plans/strategies. Council of Europe experts also provided guidance on how to improve such services and on how to enhance their role and to lead to further reforms and improvements of anti-corruption strategies.
- Review of structures and status of anti-corruption services in south-eastern Europe: Different countries and areas have adopted different types of anti-corruption services. The seminar provided an opportunity to exchange experience and lessons learned among different countries; it encouraged reforms to make existing services more effective, and provided guidance for the creation of new anti-corruption bodies where they have not been established yet. It furthermore facilitated networking and improved cooperation between services of different countries and project areas.

Specifically, the seminar aimed at:

- 1) Providing through discussions with stakeholders recommendations for a further strengthening of the role and effectiveness of anti-corruption services in south-eastern Europe;
- 2) Encouraging and enhancing cooperation between anti-corruption services of south-eastern Europe and other countries;
- 3) Facilitating the documentation and dissemination of best practice and lessons learned regarding anti-corruption services in south-eastern Europe;
- 4) Encouraging and supporting the political commitment expressed by high-level officials to strengthen anti-corruption services and to implement anti-corruption plans in south-eastern Europe.

For the technical level meetings, participants presented and prepared "Profiles on the existing Anti-corruption Services" for each of their respective areas, which were discussed and for which recommendations for improvements and reforms which were agreed. A publication of the compendium of these Profiles for the current Anti-corruption services in each project area, as well as identified recommendations for further improvements, is now available².

During the high-level segment of the meeting, a Joint Declaration was adopted by the following officials representing their governments/administrations: (Albania)-Deputy Minister of Justice; (Bosnia and Herzegovina)-Head of the PRSP Monitoring Unit at the Council of Ministers; (Croatia)-State Secretary of Ministry of Justice; (Kosovo) - Director of Department of Justice/UNMIK; (Montenegro)-Deputy Minister

.

² See, Compendium of Anti-corruption Services Profiles, TC-PC(2005)8, June 2005.

of Interior; (Serbia) Assistant Minister of Justice; and State Secretary of "the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia".

It is hoped that the compilation will be a useful reference tool for stakeholders, and that it will provide the basis for follow up analysis of progress made – a second regional thematic seminar of this kind will take place in Belgrade, Serbia in September 2005 - and for the identification of assistance for future cooperation in this field.

Output (2) & (3):

(2): Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anti-corruption plans strengthened; (3) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 2 (Update):

Second Regional Thematic Seminar on Anti-corruption Services in South-eastern Europe and issues of Conflict of Interest Laws, 18-19 November 2005, Belgrade, Serbia, (Serbia and Montenegro).

The second regional thematic seminar of PACO Impact was organized in collaboration with the OECD and was structured in two parts. The <u>first day</u> was dedicated to a) stocktaking of progress made in the project areas since the first regional meeting in Skopje in April 2005 and b) discussing in the plenary and in breakout groups possible ways of establishing success indicators for anti-corruption agencies. The <u>second day</u> discussed recent developments with regard to project areas' conflict of interest legislation and policies. The Council of Europe, the OECD and the Serbian counterparts co-chaired the meeting on both days, while the main responsibility for the first part was with the Council of Europe and for the second part with the OECD.

With reference to the first day, the following issues were thoroughly discussed:

- a) Stocktaking of progress made in the project areas since the first regional meeting in Skopje in April 2005: issues of concern as well as status of certain reforms and policy issues were brought up and shared among participants from each project area. Peer review and recommendations were suggested from several participants from the region to each other. The details of the development in the respective progress areas will be reflected in a revised version of the booklet on 'Anti-corruption Services and Needs for Reforms in South-Eastern Europe'.
- b) Discussing success indicators for Anti-corruption Services: The necessity for establishing success indicators for anti-corruption services and the methodological and practical difficulties to address this need are now widely acknowledged. Specialized agencies are faced against the background of little or no improvement, or even a worsening in levels of corruption with increasing pressures to demonstrate that the work and activities they are performing are meaningful and are having an impact on the corruption situation. For these reasons, the meeting aimed at initiating a discussion on the following topics:
 - How can the success and impact of anti-corruption agencies be measured?
 - How can the success and impact of anti-corruption policies be measured?
 - How can the change in community attitudes be captured?
 - What are meaningful indicators of success of anti-corruption agencies?
 - What do stagnating or worsening statistics on corruption say about the efficiency of anticorruption agencies?

In order to facilitate active reflection on the topic at hand, participants were split into four groups to discuss such issues through a case study situation.

As a result of this exercise, answers to the case study' objective settings and specific recommendations were prepared and presented by the working group members as a way of compilation of practices and answers in respond to these kind of analysis³. It should be mentioned that the issue of analysing and assessing the "right success indicators" as an objective setting when elaborating

With reference to the <u>second day</u> which was dedicated to the OECD run aspects of implementation of conflict-of-interest laws, the aim of the discussions at this day were to provide a summary and review the effectiveness of policies, legal frameworks and implementation practices in SPAI⁴ countries. In particular it aimed at gathering evidence on progress made, mapping out areas and positions with a high potential for conflict of interest, and identifying suitable directions for supporting the implementation of conflict-of-interest laws and policies.

Furthermore, the seminar provided the participants with the unique opportunity to assess the effectiveness of conflict-of-interest measures in their own countries. Discussions also explored possible future steps for strengthening the implementation of conflict-of-interest laws and policies and monitoring progress in relation with the institutional and legal reforms undertaken within the framework of anti-corruption services in the region.

3.1.2 Legislative Reform

<u>Main Goal</u>: Facilitate regional networking aimed at reaching a common understanding of ways to harmonise national level legislation with treaty law provisions of Anti-corruption-related international instruments. This activity was carried out in partnership with SPAI in accordance to SPAI/RSLO Workplan for 2005.

<u>Target Groups</u>: Codification departments of Ministries of Justice, Departments of European Integration, Legal Advisor's Offices at Ministries of Foreign Affairs, Parliamentary Committees.

Output (3): Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on

corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: Second Regional Thematic Seminar on the Application of Treaty Law:

Legislative Reforms for the application and implementation of Council of Europe and UN Conventions against Corruption, 10-11 June 2005, Durres,

Albania.

An issue of importance for the South-east European countries is the transposition into national legislation of international standards set by the corruption-related Council of Europe and UN Conventions and other instruments. Strong political commitment, along with the signature and ratification of treaties in each project area are essential to the success of sustainable legal reforms to prevent and combat corruption. However, the application of special treaty law represents a challenge because differences of legal systems and the different pace of legislative reforms in each country of SEE need to be considered. Furthermore, there is a need for establishing and sharing certain guidelines related to constitutional and legal questions of applicability of international law vs. domestic law.

-

³ See, Activity Report, PC-TC (2005) 17.

⁴ The Stability Pact Anti-Corruption Initiative (SPAI) was established in February 2000. The SPAI brings together Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, the 'Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia', Moldova, Montenegro, Serbia, Romania and donor and international organisations, including the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) and the Council of Europe.

The seminar – which was organised under PACO Impact, in cooperation and coordination with the SPAI Regional Liaison Office in Sarajevo and included also participants from Moldova and Romania - paid particular attention not only to the process of signature and ratification of corruption-related conventions, but also to necessary guidelines and tools that need to be considered prior to the application and implementation of treaties into domestic legislation. Thus, in addition to some similar in-country project activities, a regional thematic seminar dedicated to this issue took place in Albania with a regional participation from all seven project areas and with the additional participation of the Romanian and Moldavian delegations as a part of the framework of Stability Pact Anti-corruption Initiative⁵. This Seminar brought together about 55 participants from the SEE' region.

This regional thematic seminar dealt with three issues specifically:

- Application of Treaty Law concerning Council of Europe and UN Conventions against corruption: Participants reached a uniform and in-depth understanding of the signature and ratification of treaties, issues related to dualist vs. monist systems, and aspects of implementation of treaty law and other international instruments by domestic institutions.
- Drafting aspects of primary and secondary legislation in line with Council of Europe and UN Conventions against corruption: Issues covered were guidelines and tools for the interpretation of international standards and notions facilitating legislative reform in line with the Council of Europe Civil Law Convention on Corruption; the Council of Europe Criminal Law Convention on Corruption, and other texts such as the Council of Europe Resolution (97) 24 on the Twenty Guiding Principles for the Fight against Corruption, and the United Nations Convention against Corruption.
- Aspects of preventive and legislation--recommendations for the implementation of Council
 of Europe and UN Conventions against corruption: Topics of discussion were the civil, criminal
 and criminal procedure laws, as well as legislation related to conflict of interests and declaration of
 assets.

The seminar also discussed 'Compliance Matrixes' prepared by each country prior to the seminar. The Matrixes covered implementation requirements under the Treaty Law, and the specific Working Groups identified the following strategies for necessary action:

Council of Europe Criminal Law Convention on Corruption

- 1. Ensure the inclusion in the domestic law of all material elements/components of the criminal offences of active and passive bribery (e.g. in relation to the different punishable actions and the concept of undue advantage);
- Establish as a criminal offence the bribery (at least active bribery) of foreign public officials, and to provide for a definition of "foreign public official", which covers the respective categories of persons under the Convention;
- 3. Establish the trading in influence as a criminal offence;
- 4. Establish bribery in the private sector as a criminal offence, and to ensure clear understanding of the conceptual differences between private and public sector bribery;

_

⁵ The Council of Europe (PACO Impact) and the SPAI/RSLO were co-organisers and shared the costs of this regional activity. UNODC and ABA/CEELI assisted and provided additional (including in-kind) funding for this activity as a part of their contribution to RSLO.

- 5. Establish liability of legal persons and to provide for effective, proportionate and dissuasive sanctions in accordance with the standards of the Convention;
- 6. Provide continuous specialised training and adequate resources for those officers in charge of investigation and prosecution of corruption and corruption-related offences.

Participants also identified areas where the information available through each country's Compliance Matrixes⁶ could be shared usefully with other countries in order to ensure cooperation, to seek assistance and to exchange best practices of countries and experts of the region. These areas are as follows:

- Exchange of experience, establishment of relevant regional arrangements and provision of effective protection for witnesses and victims;
- Exchange of experience and cooperation on the use of special investigative techniques;
- Exchange of experience among authorities in charge of extradition and mutual legal assistance, establishment of working contacts and identification of obstacles to cooperation in the region.

Council of Europe Civil Law Convention on Corruption

- Raise awareness among judges, lawyers, and other practitioners specialised on civil and labour law on the objectives pursued by the Convention and the obligations entailed therein for the country, as well as on provisions of the domestic civil law that could be utilised to the effect of the provisions of the Convention;
- Raise general public awareness on the applicability of the Civil Law Convention on Corruption, in particular with regard to who can be considered a victim of corruption, on the rights of seeking compensation for damages resulting from civil as well as public corruption, the civil liability of the State, and responsibility for the protection of whistleblowers;
- 3. Review the legislation in the field of civil and labour law and identify gaps and opportunities with the aim to give better effect to the requirements of the Convention; accordingly strengthen and cross-reference for higher visibility- relevant existing provisions of civil and labour law through special legislation on prevention of corruption if such legislation exists in the country;
- 4. Ensure the protection of whistleblowers through legislation in the field of labour law in addition to the protection of witnesses in criminal proceedings;
- 5. Ensure that the validity of contracts and clauses concerning corruption can be challenged not only by parties to the contracts and third interested parties, but also by specialised anti-corruption services in the area of repression and prevention of corruption.
- 6. Where applicable, ensure that provisions on Free Legal Aid in civil and labour proceedings apply also to persons seeking compensation for damages resulting from corruption;
- 7. Pursue a broad interpretation of the concept of "victims" of corruption in legal proceedings, where the interpretation would be based on the purpose of the Convention;
- 8. Consider establishing a special State fund for the compensation of victims of public corruption;

,

⁶ All regional and in-country compliance matrixes are available at: www.coe.int/paco-impact

9. Study good practices from other countries on the implementation of the Civil Law Convention on Corruption, especially on the issue of identification and definition of a victim, just compensation, causal link, and protection of employees-whistleblowers.

United Nations Convention against Corruption

- 1. States that have not yet done so should proceed with ratifying the Convention;
- 2. States should screen the relevant preventive mechanisms and measures in place domestically, and complement them with measures required and recommended under the Convention;
- 3. States should, as a minimum, establish the criminal offences mandated by the Convention, including money laundering, with respect to the widest range of Convention offences and the liability of legal persons;
- 4. States should review the application of international cooperation mechanisms and Convention offences, and improve their effectiveness, in particular with respect to mutual legal assistance;
- 5. States ensure that powers and mechanisms are in place to freeze, seize and confiscate assets domestically and upon request from other countries.

4 PROJECT AREA ACTIVITY REPORT

4.1 Albania (Update)

4.1.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal</u>: Improvement of the Anti-corruption Plan and its implementation with particular focus on the improvement of monitoring based on indicators of success, and an increased accountability and responsibility for all involved institutions.

<u>Expected actions</u>: Improved Anti-corruption Plan, consolidated and comprehensive measurable Anti-corruption actions; Implementation of specific and crucial measures under the Action Plan, strengthen monitoring and managing mechanisms through the inclusion of tangible indicators of success in the Action Plan. Strengthen capacities of the prosecutorial services to fully carry out criminal proceedings against corruption-related offences, by professionally equipped officers and prosecutors.

4.1.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) & (2): Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated; Output (2): Institutional

mechanisms for the monitoring and management of Anti-corruption

Plans strengthened

Activity 1: Expert Review: Monitoring and Improvement of Indicators of Success in

the Anti-Corruption Action Plan, Strasbourg, September-October 2004.

In late September 2004, a written expert opinion (Policy Advice Paper)⁷ on "Improving the Indicators of Success of the Albanian Anti Corruption Plan 2003-2004"was commissioned and submitted to the Anti-Corruption Unit in October 2004. The review was dictated by the need to critically examine the existing indicators of success in the Action Plan of 2003-2004, and to suggest improvements. In addition, the opinion and its guidelines were aimed to be used as the core tool in the Anti-Corruption Monitoring Group and other institutions' Round Table Review of the Action Plan. Several changes made in the current draft of the Action Plan 2005-2006 reflect recommendations issued with respect to measures and indicators of success.

Activity 2: Roundtable on the Effectiveness of the revised Action Plan, based on the expert opinion and the three main pillars of the strategy, Tirana, 25 October 2004.

The objective of the roundtable was to discuss –guided by the written expertise- with the relevant institutions the overall improvement of the Action Plan and more specifically, the introduction of success indicators and specific anti-corruption measures. In addition, the roundtable discussed how to better draft, simplify, monitor and implement an Anti-corruption Plan.

By the end of the roundtable review, stakeholders agreed that the structure of the Action Plan should not be altered. However, the new Action Plan 2005-2006 should and would include priorities and concrete measures, and well as well defined objectives and success indicators as suggested in the Policy Advice Paper and during the discussions by the participants. It was also decided timeframes in the current Action Plan are too short and often unrealistic, and therefore must be extended to allow for the completion of the objectives. Additional measures such as conducting of perception surveys to measure

٠

⁷ See, also Policy Advice Paper, TP-46 (2004).

corruption in the central administration were suggested to be added to the Action Plan of 2005-2006. Finally, there was agreement that all institutions should be recommended the following steps prior to the endorsement of the Final Action Plan for 2005-2006:

There has to be a different approach to the continuity of Action Plan Policies:

- Deadlines for anti-corruption measures must be better identified: Short-term measures vs. midterm (2-3 years) measures;
- Conduct regular and periodical inventories on objectives reached and analysis of the adequateness of indicators used.

The structure of the Action Plan and its contents need to be improved:

- Provide simplified and clear measures;
- Provide an explanation and methodology of measures.

The Action Plan's Indicators of Success need to be improved:

- Ensure a clear link between a 'Measure' and its respective success indicator;
- Ensure a causal link between 'Objectives' and 'Individual Measures' taken in order to achieve the 'Objective';
- Provide clear explanations for the success indicators used.

Activity 3: The Fourth National Conference on the Fight against Corruption 2005, Tirana, 9-10 December 2004.

The Fourth National Conference on the Fight against Corruption brought together some 80 representatives from all relevant state institutions and from independent institutions, and, to a lesser extent, from civil society. The aim of the Conference was to review and discuss the progress reached so far in the institutional and operational efforts to fight against corruption, and to review the Draft Anti-corruption Action Plan for 2005-2006, and the setting up of priorities for the government.

The Conference was opened by the Minister of State for Coordination, and representatives from the State Supreme Audit, the High Inspectorate of Declaration and Control of Assets, and the Prosecutor's General Office. Institutional cooperation was discussed as an issue of concern, stressing the need for better coordination, and for an intensification of joint efforts to investigate and try corruption cases. The Head of the Technical Cooperation at the Crime Problems Department of the Council of Europe pointed out some of the priorities which could be restated in the new Action Plan 2005-2006 such as: the approval of the new Law on Conflict of Interest, the issue of immunities of high-level officials, the review of the Law on Political Party Funding, the restructuring of the Triangle Commission, as well as the revision of the status and structure of the Anti-Corruption Monitoring Group (ACMG)and the Anti-Corruption Unit (ACU).

Participants discussed and agreed that the structure of the Action Plan would have to be changed to some extent, in order to become clear drafting and division of objectives, measures and indicators of success. Yet, measures of the new Draft Action Plan 2005 would be further elaborated with the assistance and under the leadership of the ACU. The final draft of the Action Plan 2005 is expected to be discussed and approved by the meeting of ACMG Board in mid February 2005. The lack of sufficient representation of civil society in the Conference resulted in no measures or actions being suggested or addressed on their behalf in the current Action Plan, except those foreseen by the government institutions themselves.

The conference finalised its working sessions by issuing the following observations, recommendations and urgent instructions to all institutions and specifically to the ACMG and the ACU:

- The Inventory of Achievements covering the period from June 2003 to November 2004 shows a long list of measures achieved; these achievements concern mainly enforced legislation, rather than analysing their impact in the fight against corruption. In addition, measures that should have, but actually have not been taken at all should be reflected as a matter of urgency (after revision) in the Draft Action Plan 2005;
- There are some improvements in the work of the ACMG Board, and significant improvements on the work carried out by the ACU. Yet, there is a concern about the technical cooperation with and the quality of reporting from the Institutional Contact Points. Therefore, one of the main priorities for the next year should be the re-composition of the ACMG Board with new, more adequate members, in order to improve the quality of participation and reporting/monitoring of the Action Plan.
- A review of the Action Plan 2005 structure is necessary; specifically, objectives to be reached should be added, and their coherence should be maintained; this should be complemented by a) specific measures to be undertaken to reach these objectives, and b) by setting up a classified system with useful and realistic success indicators.
- Follow-up with a series of consultative meetings of the ACU with the institutions involved in the Action Plan need to be taken as urgent steps in order to improve and consolidate institutional monitoring and cooperation in order to improve and later monitor the implementation of the Action Plan 2005.
- Meetings with civil society representatives and the public not only with and through the Albanian Coalition against Corruption should be initiated, in order to provide further elements/measures for the third part of the Action Plan 2005 on issues related to Public Education, Perception and Participation.
- A database should be created within the ACU office, which would be aimed at maintaining the
 institutional memory as well facilitating/improving the cooperation of the ACU with all institutions
 and counterparts when reporting measures and progress made.

Activity 4: Purchase of the Albanian Jurisprudence Program (Jurist), Tirana, February 2005.

In mid-February 2005, the new series of the legal program "Juristi" were made available to the Anti-corruption Unit. Funding for this computer database program for legal research was requested by the Anti-corruption Unit. It is expected to facilitate and provide updated information on all relevant Albanian legislation, especially with respect to legal research related to analysis of legislation undergoing legal reform within the framework of anti-corruption efforts. Two programs were purchased, at a total cost of 630.00 Euro.

Activity 5: Publication of the Strategy and Action Plan for the Prevention and Fight against Corruption 2004-2005, Tirana, July 2005.

Although with delays in formalising the final text of the Strategy and Action Plan for the Prevention and Fight against Corruption (2004-2005), as foreseen in the Workplan, the project financed the publication

of 300 copies of the Strategy and Action Plan in booklet format⁸. The Anti-Corruption Unit and the ACMG are now the institutions in charge to ensure a wide institutional and public distribution. The Action Plan for the Prevention and Fight against Corruption has been published in both English and Albanian, and as in the past last 4 years, is expected to be used as the only official working and reference document for all involved institutions when implementing the Task Chart and reporting on progress made.

Output 3: Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on

corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: Expert review on the amendments to the existing legal framework on conflict of

interest, as provided by the study of the ACU, Strasbourg, 20 October-20

December 20049

In 2004, the Anti-Corruption Unit¹⁰ has been involved in drafting and coordinating efforts of the government and civil society in proposing, through a new law, the rules governing conflict of interests. In view of this and as per request of the Albanian authorities, a joint written expert opinion of the Council of Europe and OECD/SIGMA experts was commissioned and then submitted for consideration to the Albanian authorities during the period of October-December 2004. The joint experts' opinion has been used for improving the Draft Law in accordance with specific recommendations per each provision. as provided, prior to its endorsement by the government and then its submission to Parliament which is expected to take place during February-March 2005. A roundtable to provide a wider spectrum of ideas and opinions before the Parliamentary Commission's Discussions is scheduled to take place in February 2005.

Activity 2: Training seminar for public information officers at the local government offices on issues of implementing the Law on Freedom of Information, Tirana, 5- 6 May 2005

This training – aimed at strengthening transparency and accountability of the government to the public - provided additional information and interpretations of certain legal concepts to 40 officers from different local government offices who are involved in the implementation of specific aspects of the right to information about official documents.

The Albanian Council of Europe expert provided a thorough explanation of the main features of the law and other relevant legal provisions, as well as best international and regional practices in guaranteeing the proper implementation of this law. Furthermore, tools and guidelines on the application of this law based on the distinction between the functioning of a Public Information Office and of the Office of Media and Public Relations were provided to all participants.

One of the main issues of concern discussed by participants was the low visibility and awareness by the public on the existence and the role of these offices, resulting in a general hesitance by the public to approach them. This has an impact on the implementation of this law. It was concluded that central and local governments would have to put more emphasis on the education and information of the public on their rights to information with reference to official documents.

Following the discussions, and the sharing of some existing good practices, participants took the opportunity to network group and exchange information on the following issues:

⁸ See, available publication.

⁹ See, also Expert Opinion, TP-48 (2004).

¹⁰ This initiative had started since November 2003 under PACO Albania 2 project.

- Possible models and tools to avoid unnecessary delays (and which could leave room for the abuse of power) during procedures that are not of an important decision-making nature, such as the requirement of signatories from the Mayor or his/her Deputy;
- Possible ways of communicating with the public and increasing its awareness with respect to the rights that are provided by this law, including using simple tools and terminology when explaining legal terms to the public;
- The idea of initiating a new strategy for setting up standard regulations and standard forms to be used in a unified way by all practitioners in this field. Participants also noted that in setting up such a strategy, further advice, cooperation and support should be sought from the Office of Ombudsman in Albania, which is the body in charge of assuring the full implementation of the Law on Freedom of Information.

A second activity of this kind – a training court clerks and judicial officers of the courts in Albania - is scheduled to take place already in early September 2005. Participants also decided to forward the issues discussed and the recommendations resulting from these events to the Office of Ombudsman in order to secure continuity and follow-up of the reform process and education in the field of implementing the existing law.

Activity 3: Roundtable discussion on Aspects of Implementation of the new Law on the Prevention of Conflict of Interests in the Exercise of Public Functions, Law Nr. 9367, dated 7 April 2005, Tirana, 13 June 2005

Following a long political debate within the government and in the relevant parliamentary commission[s], and after protracted drafting procedures led by the Anti-corruption Unit, the Ministry of Justice, and the Albanian Coalition against Corruption, lasting more than a year, the Albanian parliament passed, on 7 April 2005, the new Law on the Prevention of Conflict of Interests in the Exercise of Public Functions" (Law Nr. 9367).

The new law provides the rules, means, methods, procedures, responsibilities and competences for the identification, declaration, registration, handling, and the penalties for cases of the conflict of interests. During its drafting stages, the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) in cooperation with OECD/SIGMA provided a joint analysis and assessments of the draft law during the first phase of the project. It should be mentioned that the majority of recommendations provided were taken into consideration by the Albanian authorities. Other international organisations such as the OSCE, the World Bank, and USAID have also provided additional comments and recommendations to previous drafts, which are reflected in the final text.

Given the novelty of the law, and in accordance with the Workplan, a roundtable discussion on issues related to its implementation and on identification of areas that require secondary legislation took place on 13 June 2005, organised jointly by the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) and OECD/SIGMA. The event brought together 50 participants, mainly law co-drafters and experts from responsible institution[s] that are now in charge of implementation of this new law. Representatives from civil society and other central government and independent institutions took an active part in the event.

¹¹ The Council of Europe (PACO Impact) and OECD/SIGMA have agreed since the beginning of this project to cooperate and act jointly in all relevant activities that have to deal with legal reform and training on issues of Conflict of Interests. Therefore, in all events, activities, legislation assessment Council of Europe and OECD/SIGMA are partners and co-share expenses.

Participants and actors that were involved in its drafting, as well as an OECD/SIGMA expert presented and discussed concrete steps for the implementation of this new material law. The Minister of State for Coordination and the Chief Inspector of the High Inspectorate of Declaration and Control of Assets highlighted the successful work in drafting such material law and also stressed the fact that the implementation process should be as successful and efficient as the drafting one. Furthermore, the emphasis was put on the transparent, efficient and comprehensive way of implementing this law that will ensure the strong basis of a successful governing.

While presenting and discussing concrete steps to be undertaken, the mechanisms in place and roles of the actors involved in the implementation of the legal obligations stemming from the Law on Conflict of Interests, the OECD/SIGMA expert highlighted the fact that the whole process should be seen as a policy cycle involving three phases:

- Implementation;
- Evaluation; and
- Any necessary amendment.

Furthermore, the necessity of providing guidelines, carrying out training and analysis and assessment of risks, as well as the need to review substantive legislation was stressed.

The following recommendations and follow-up actions were addressed and agreed:

- The first steps for implementing the new law should be taken by each institution. As a new law and as the basis of good governance, it should ensure a coherent continuity of the Albanian legislation rather than a confusion;
- There is a need for both the Code of Administrative Procedure and this new law to be implemented in parallel. An improper implementation of such legal tools will cause the failure of the implementation of the new law itself;
- The law itself aims at increasing transparency and good governance and at preventing corruptive and abusive cases in the central and local government. Therefore, efforts should be made in reducing the possible perception of this law being "against" the public administration officials and civil servants:
- Training and massive education of civil servants and the entire administration need to be scheduled
 and secured as soon as possible. Also, cooperation and coordination of these activities with civil
 society need to be assured in order to raise public awareness of this new law;
- The High Inspectorate of Declaration and Control of Assets, in addition to its tasks is now also in charge of the monitoring of the implementation of this law and should provide the necessary instructions and guidelines by defining and explaining the procedures concerning its implementation; and
- As there are several obligations to be fulfilled under this law, the process of its implementation should start as soon as possible by considering carefully immediate secondary legislation necessary to complement the law.

Finally, it was agreed that should the High Inspectorate of Declaration and Control of Assets need additional expertise and assistance during the process of drafting of secondary legislation, the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) and OECD/SIGMA would be able to provide their support and assistance on this matter.

Output (4): Pilot activities supported (Update)

Activity 1: Identification and elaboration of an Action Plan for a Pilot Activity with

respective counterpart on Initiating and Implementing the Case Management Reform Aiming to Prevent Corruption within the Prosecutorial Services,.

Tirana, July 2004- October 2005. 12

Pilot Activity	Initiating and implementing the case management reform aiming to prevent corruption within the prosecutorial services						
Objective	control mechanis	Enhance the accountability of case tracking, monitoring, reporting and control mechanisms by supporting and allowing an efficient and accurate final reporting and analysis of crime and case management					
Start-up	November 2004						
Duration Period	November 2004-	May 2006					
Estimated Cost	41,000.00 Euro						
Available Funds	Pilot Activity alloc	cated funds:45,00	0.00 Euro	l			
Beneficiaries	Prosecutor's Ger Appellate Instance District Instance I	e Prosecutorial C					
Implemented by	PACO Impact Ma Prosecutor's Wor Prosecutor's Ger	king Group on C	ase Mana	gement Analysis Department)			
Outputs	Prevention of corruption and unprofessional conduct; Accountability and better monitoring of the prosecutors' work; Improvement and upgrading of the tracking system, enabling a more comprehensive analysis and accurate reporting; Increase of transparency based on reliable updated data base system;						
Inputs	Technical assistance to the first stage of start up (Action Plan and standard forms to be applied); Creation and application of a specific software for the case management (PG's Office); Technical assistance and funding to the regional activities on the implementation of the new system (PG's Office and District Prosecutors'						
Actions/Activities	Offices. Time-line	Venue	Estima ted Cost	Expected Results/outcomes	Notes		
Establishment of the WG for the Case Management by an Order of the Prosecutor General	November 04	Tirana, Albania	N/A	Enforced Prosecutor General Order WG established and organizes its first meetings; Persistence in requesting the visit on best practices in Germany.	V		
Drafting of the Calendar of Activities and	December 04 - January 05	Tirana, Albania	N/A	Clear timetable of steps to be taken for			

-

¹² The initiation and the idea of this Pilot Activity originates from the PACO-Albania II project. The first initial "Forms" are already part of PACO-Albania Technical Papers.

					,
discussion on the				the implementation	V
operational and				Formulate/draft	
implementation issues				master forms to be	
of the new system				used	
WG discussion on	January 05	Tirana,	N/A	Printed master forms	
issues of operational		Albania		to be distributed in	
and implementation of		7 dibarna		the region;	$\sqrt{}$
case management				the region,	'
system (2 consultative					
meetings)					
	20 June 1 July	Celle,		Dootnaned dates of	
	30 June-1 July	l '	0.000	Postponed dates of	
practices of German		Germany	8,000 -	the visit;	2/
case management			12,000	Decision to organize	V
system			€	the visit delayed.	
Final Master Plan for	October 05	Tirana,		Delays in finalizing	. 1
the New Case		Albania	N/A	it.	V
Management					
Two technical meetings	January 06	Tirana,		Delays in	
on standard forms		Albania		organization	
Approval of the Action	January 06	Tirana,		Methodologies and	
Plan by a PG Order		Albania	N/A	procedures of	
and its normative acts				implementation are	
				not clear to the WG	
				members	
Preparation of final	January –	Tirana,	TBD	Final standard forms	
standard forms	February 06	Albania		are not ready yet	
Initiation and	February –	Tirana,	5,000-	Technical and	
preparation of the	March 06	Albania	7,000 €	logistical resources	
software	Widi on oo	, abarna	7,000 €	are not in place	
Contware				Difficulties in	
				introducing and	
				implementing the	
				centralised database	
Droporation of the	Fobruary.	Tirono			
Preparation of the	February –	Tirana,	7 000 6	Delays in finalising	
Manual on the Case	March 06	Albania	7,000 €	new administrative	
Management				procedure	
implementation				Delays in drafting	
Regional seminar to	April – May 06	Shkoder;		Comprehensive	
present the new Case		Durres;		training	
Management		Vlore;	15,000	Successful start up	
		Gjirokaster;	€	of the process	
		Albania		Difficulties in	
				understanding and	
				applying the process	
Impact Expected in July	2006 and in the	future			
Other general data	Strengthened car	pacities to discov	er and fig	ht corruption in the pros	ecutorial
	system		3	, , , , , ,	-
Quality Indicators	<u> </u>	ficient data to de	etermine re	ealistic grounds of each	criminal
	Effective and sufficient data to determine realistic grounds of each criminal proceedings (suspended, pending, on going)				
Quantity Indicators	Quantity Indicators Decrease of corruptive cases due to efficient way of Case Management				agement
Quality mulcators	usage compared	-		ion way or case Mail	agement
				the new system comp	ared to
	INUITIDE OF VIOLE	auons identined	unougn	me new system comp	Jaieu lu

	previous year data (violations)				
	Number of processed and analysed criminal proceedings and their data;				
	Number of monitored criminal proceedings as compared to previous years.				
Number of Users	Centralised database will be used as an efficient tool to prevent corruption and unprofessional conduct as well as will facilitate the monitoring of other prosecutors' work (both in PG's Office, Appeal, and other District Prosecutors' Offices).				

Activity 2: Establishment of the Working Group for the start up of the preparatory phases, Tirana, August-October-November 2004.

In late August 2004, the Prosecutor General of Albania drafted and issued his Order No. 244 On the Establishment of the Working Group for the Case Management System in the Prosecutorial Services. Based on this Order, the Working Group would have the following composition:

- Prosecutor, Head of the Studies Directorate, Prosecutor General Office (Head of the WG);
- Prosecutor at the Directorate of Organised Crime, Prosecutor General's Office (member);
- Prosecutor, Chief Prosecutor of the Vlora Appeal Prosecution Office (member);
- Prosecutor, Chief Prosecutor of the Durres District Prosecution Office (member);
- Prosecutor, Chief Prosecutor of the Shkodra District Prosecution Office (member);
- IT Expert of the Office of the Prosecutor General's Office (member).

In late October 2004 and in early November 2004, the Working Group had its two consultative meeting and approved in principle the above Action Plan for the implementation of the Pilot Activity. The members were provided with the essential information and an overview of this pilot project. The preparatory phases were discussed as well as the way ahead for the implementation of this new system. However, certain activities such as the foreseen workshop in Germany have first to be approved by Sida before moving ahead.

Activity 3: Workshop and Visit of the Working Group on Best practices of case Management System to Celle, Germany, 30 June-1 July 2005.

In the framework of this Pilot Activity, the six members of the Albanian Working Group visited the Federal Prosecutor's General Office in Celle, and the District Office in Lüneburg, Lower Saxony, Germany on a two-day study visit.

During the first day, Working Group members reviewed and consulted the existing proposed forms¹³ in light of the latest changes recommended by the Working Group, and as well as the two Council of Europe experts who participated at this workshop. Certain changes were discussed and then agreed in terms of adding two more new forms, and inclusion of additional information. In the end of the day, the working group and the Council of Europe experts agreed on the final changes and adjustments that ought to be taking place in the existing forms. Thus, the final report containing these revised forms is expected in light of the German model as well as the follow up discussions that took place are expected to be presented in September to the Prosecutor General for his formal approval as presented now in the updated Action Plan of the Pilot Activity¹⁴.

The Working Group also visited and was informed of practical arrangements in place for case reporting, monitoring, and management at two-level offices: the Federal Prosecutor's Office in Celle, and the District Prosecutor's Office in Lüneburg. More specifically, the members of the Working Group were introduced to the following systems and their legal frameworks:

¹³ See, PACO – Albania II, Technical Paper on "Case Management Forms", February 2003.

¹⁴ See, Revised Forms and Recommendations as finalised at PC-TC (2005)11, Technical Paper, July 2005.

- Forms and models on case reporting, assignment, monitoring, and management throughout different instances;
- The modus of follow-up and reporting of the final status of the cases in the hierarchic structure;
- The running and the technology of the Case Management Data Base (centralised and local ones);
- The procedure and the legal framework of the entire process of Confiscation of Crime Proceeds;
 and
- The practical and regulatory arrangements of handling crime proceeds, especially the financial aspects of their incomes at the Office of the Prosecutor General.

The following conclusions were drawn:

- Review and finalize the "Standard Forms" taking into considerations the recent proposals¹⁵;
- Presentation of the Final Master Plan for the New System of Case Management to the Prosecutor General of Albania for approval;
- Issuance of an Order of the Prosecutor General of Albania on the implementation of the New Case Management and normative acts regulating the process ahead; and
- Setting up of a centralised database, which is expected to process the standard in-coming forms
 from all prosecutorial levels, and which is hoped to be serving as the main tool in the process of
 case tracking, monitoring, reporting and analysis.

The Working Group and the German Federal Office of the Prosecutor General also agreed that all models and forms as introduced and presented during these two days (not only those related to case management), would be sent as model packages to Albania for potential consideration, and in view of other necessary reforms (especially management in general) at the Offices of Prosecutors in Albania. A special interest was shown with regard to all legal and practical frameworks in handling confiscated proceeds from crime; a system which does not currently exist in an efficient way in Albania, although the relevant legislation is in place.

The Federal General Prosecutor of Lower Saxony (Celle) also offered to look upon the possibilities of seeking funding through the European Commission or through Council of Europe voluntary contributions to create a twinning partnership between his offices and the Office of the Prosecutor General of Albania aimed at two areas: 1) cooperation and exchange of practices in the field of confiscation of crime proceeds, and 2) mutual legal assistance in criminal matters.

Activity 4 (Update): Final Master Plan submission to the Office of PG, production of the final forms of case management: Tirana, 20 October 2005

In late October 2005, according to the Workplan, a Technical Paper on the finalization of the case management forms and recommendations for further implementation of the case management system was submitted to the Prosecutor General Albania and to the Working Group.

In accordance to the discussions at this meeting it was envisaged that two technical meetings with prosecutors from all prosecutorial levels will take place during the period December 2005 – January 2006, aiming at the final technical approval of the standards forms to be used as well as the way ahead for the implementation of the system. Furthermore, the Prosecutor General of Albania committed himself to undertake the initiation of a new "Order of the Prosecutor General" with regard to the necessary implementation steps, specifically modalities (including a list of legal and technical elements) and practical modus of using the standard forms. However, this was decided to take place upon the approval from all prosecutorial level representative meetings that were envisaged to take place in December and January 2005.

_

¹⁵ *Id*.

It should be noted that during the reported period the Office of Prosecutor General of Albania has been subject to a lot of media speculation with regard to the "low number" of criminal proceedings against corruption. In addition, the new government (October 2005), has been in pointing out concerns with respect to the same issue. This has more or less created an atmosphere of battle between the two institutions, whereas (the executive and the independent prosecution services) each of them claims to have their own case.

4.1.3 Observations/Comments (Update):

Compared to the successful initial and second phase of the project in Albania, activities during the period covered by this report (August 2005 – January 2006) have been somewhat "frozen" due to the recent changes in the composition of the government and of the political majority in Albania. Give this slow down of PACO Impact activities, no <u>significant progress</u> was noticed in terms of specific actions taken as agreed upon during the reported period.

What has taken place, however, was a re-prioritisation of government policies, initiatives, and structures and particularly those related to anti-corruption related reforms.

The reform actions as undertaken by the new government are as follows:

- The establishment (restructuring) of the new Department of Administrative Internal Audit and Anti-Corruption (DIAC) which still lacks a clear legal framework and terms of reference (December 2005);
- The abolishment of the legal basis and the decision to cease the functioning of the previous Anticorruption Unit which used to be fully operational;
- The continuous exchange of ideas and policies among national experts and representatives of the new government on the upcoming 2006 and future Anti-corruption strategy;
- The postponement of several activities of the workplan and calendar as committed from the previous government; and
- The current vis-à-vis prosecution and government through media discussions on the issue of the need for "heavy" reforms within prosecutorial services in order to better fight corruption.

As a consequence, some of the activities as foreseen in the Workplan, under Output 1, 2 & 3 need to be reconsidered. PACO Impact will consider the following priorities for the forthcoming period:

- Initiate policy dialogue and continue offer technical assistance on the priorities and the recent anticorruption reforms that the new government envisages to undertake;
- Provide general assessment and recommendations on the initial steps that have been taken by the Albanian government in view of the establishing the new anti-corruption structures, namely the Department of Administrative Internal Audit and Anti Corruption and Anti-Corruption Task Force;
- Initiate discussion related to issues of concern pertaining the terms of reference and necessary legal basis for the functions and duties of the newly established structures and also give recommendations while drafting such legal basis;
- Propose activities of support for the newly established mechanism's needs, including the training of the new DIAC staff;
- Initiate a dialogue with the new government and offer/provide expertise for the necessary legal reviews that need to take place in order to amend the Law on Political Parties, Law on Immunities of High Officials as recommended by GRECO evaluation and compliance reports; and
- Continue to stress the importance of implementing the new "Case Management" Pilot Activity for the
 Office of the Prosecutor General. This reform should continue independently from the political
 debates on the role and dismissal of the current Prosecutor General.

4.2 Bosnia and Herzegovina (BiH) (Update)

4.2.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal</u>: Consolidation and coordination of the monitoring and the implementation of a comprehensive Anti-corruption Plan; support the implementation of the Anti-corruption Plan.

<u>Expected actions</u>: Improve and coordinate actions related to the review and monitoring of the Anti-corruption Plan; consolidation and comprehensive measurement of anti-corruption actions; strengthening monitoring and managing mechanisms, and inclusion of measurable indicators of success into the Action Plan.

Initiate and support the establishment of an Anti-corruption and Monitoring Commission; propose/initiate and participate in drafting of all necessary and appropriate regulations, e.g. laws and by-laws/acts in order to accelerate establishment of the final legal framework for successful monitoring and fighting against corruption.

Influence the relevant State-level institutions of BiH related to signature/ratification of appropriate European, UN Conventions that govern issues of corruption.

4.2.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) & (2): Output (1): Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated; Output (2):

Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anti-

corruption plans strengthened

Activity 1: Workshop/Policy Discussion regarding the Coordination of Anti-corruption

Issues and Monitoring Body, Sarajevo, 7-8 December 2004.

The objective of the workshop was to discuss the current situation of the Anti-corruption measures under the Anti-corruption Strategy which is a part of the Strategy for Poverty Reduction (PRSP) in Bosnia and Herzegovina, as well as the existing policies for coordination and monitoring measures under this strategy. Representatives from all relevant institutions participated in this activity in addition to the representatives from PRSP Coordination Board for economic development and EU integration, an inter-ministerial body within the Council of Ministers (CoM), a state level executive body.

Discussions of the workshop could be split in two major parts: discussion on the existing Strategy for the Fight against Corruption, which is the part of the Poverty Reduction Strategy Paper; and discussion on the agency/institution which would be in charge of the implementation of the anti-corruption strategy and in general of anti-corruption activities.

With reference to the way forward with respect to the Strategy for the Fight against Corruption, the following issues were addressed:

- Presentation of the objective of the PACO Impact project, with the emphasis on the fact that the CoE is ready to assist the BiH authorities rather than to impose the solutions to be implemented;
- Within the BiH Council of Ministers there is a newly established Unit for the Implementation of all strategies, including the Strategy for the Fight against Corruption. This Unit should release the report on implementation of the PRSP soon, which should then be combined and consulted with the efforts of all participating and relevant institutions;

- Attention should be given to the fact that certain measures set forth in the Strategy are fully implemented, while others are implemented only in part;
- A thorough evaluation is necessary to be carried out by the Working Groups composed of representatives from relevant BiH, entity, canton-level and municipal institutions, as well as international organisations and NGOs;
- Attention should be paid to the results of the report made by Transparency International, according to which the perception of corruption of the population in BiH is very bad.

The discussions referring to the possibilities of establishing an agency/institution which could monitor, and manage the institutional efforts in the fight against corruption were mainly focused as follows:

- Reviewing and analysing best practices with respect to the modalities of the establishment of anticorruption bodies in Europe;
- State budgetary consequences that have to be considered when moving towards the establishment of such mechanisms;
- The existence and the role of SIPA and of the Ministry of Security in BiH as newly established institutions, whose mandate is, *inter alia*, the fight against corruption;
- Ongoing review of the reform of the police structure in BiH, which could affect other reforms, such
 as that of establishing specialised anti-corruption mechanisms, and which could affect the modus of
 establishing other new agencies.

Since this was the first technical activity under these two outputs, all participants provided several recommendations, and agreed to broaden the level of detail when discussing the above mentioned issues. In view of this, it was decided that a "Policy Paper", analysing and recommending the way ahead, should be submitted for future reviews, discussions, and later on Policy Decisions.

Activity 2: Policy Advice: Implementing and Monitoring Future Anti-corruption Efforts in Bosnia and Herzegovina-Policy Advice Paper, Strasbourg, December 2004–January 2005.

Following recommendations and issues discussed during the workshop which was held in November 2004 (see above 'Activity 1'), and several meetings with all relevant counterparts and technical staff members, a Policy Advice Paper on "Implementing and Monitoring Future Anti-corruption Efforts in Bosnia and Herzegovina" has been submitted to the BiH authorities. The Policy Advice Paper gives analysis of the current situation and anti-corruption related efforts, and provides recommendations for different phases of the process.

The recipients of the Policy Advice Paper are members of the PRSP Coordination Board for Economic Development and EU Integration, an state-level, executive inter-ministerial body within the Council of Ministers (CoM).

It is expected that, during February 2005, a second workshop on reviewing the Policy Advice and previous issues in line with the ongoing reforms in BiH, will be organised in order to clarify and determine the highlighted recommendations for reform in the filed of implementing and monitoring Anti-corruption efforts in BiH.

.

¹⁶ See, also Policy Advice Paper, PC-TC (2005) 3, January 2005.

Activity 3: Advisory Workshop on Anti-corruption Knowledge and Policy Advice for the Relevant Bodies, Sarajevo, 23 February 2005.

The objective of the advisory workshop was to follow up on discussions from the workshop held in December 2004, by discussing models of anti-corruption agencies in Europe and by addressing best practices and aspects of monitoring and evaluating anti-corruption strategies.

With regard to the establishment of an Anti-corruption Body it became clear that there was no consensus among participants on whether or not to establish an independent agency. However, the Council of Europe was informed that the Ministry of Security has undertaken own steps on the establishment of an anti-corruption agency, and by responding to an offer of the German Government to fund such an agency¹⁷, is planning to create a working group which would work on drafting the law needed for the establishment of such an agency.

The workshop was attended by 23 representatives from the following institutions: Ministry of Security, State Border Service, State Investigations and Protection Agency, and Ministry of Finance.

During the workshop, the following issues relevant to the policies in the fight against corruption were raised:

- The immediate need to define ways to (re-)build the trust of the public in state institutions;
- The complexity of the existing administrative system and its discretionary powers, which makes it
 more difficult to identify those institutions that are, or should be, in charge of designing anticorruption policies and legislation;
- The lack of good coordination among institutions themselves; and
- The existing vacuum between anti-corruption policies that are supposed to be regulated and those which need to be implemented.

During the session on best practices and various models of anti-corruption agencies, participants found that the model that might fit best was probably the Slovenian model. Following the presentation of best practices on Anti-corruption services and polices made by the experts from the Council of Europe, participants agreed to take time to reflect and to provide follow up advice and comments to the Economic Policy and Planning Unit (EPPU), which is in charge of monitoring the Anti-corruption Strategy for BiH as a part of the Poverty Reduction Strategy¹⁸.

The following concrete steps were agreed upon:

- The EPPU would forward to all participants and to the Council of Europe experts the Strategy and Action Plan for their comments and suggestions by 4 March 2005;
- Participants would get back with their comments and suggestions to the EPPU by 31 March 2005;
 and
- Council of Europe experts would submit their comments and recommendations to the EPPU by early April 2005.

In view of this, the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) initiated the review of the Anti-corruption Strategy and Action Plan aimed at providing comments, recommending improvements and reforms that would need to be taken and reflected in this document and its relevant measures.

٠

¹⁷ It should be noted that, after many attempts of the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) to receive more information about the German assistance, it found out that so far there is no official confirmation that such assistance is going to be provided. This issue of what kind and which German government institutions will provide assistance remain as yet unclear.

¹⁸ See, also Policy Advice Paper, PC-TC (2005) 5, February 2005.

Activity 4: Advisory Paper: Comments on the Anti-corruption Strategy and Action Plan (MTDS) of BiH, Strasbourg, April 2005.

The Advisory Paper (Technical Paper) was a follow-up to the workshop which took place in February 2005, and the direct response to a request for technical assistance by the EPPU to the Council of Europe.

Specifically, the EPPU requested that PACO Impact expert[s] provide comments and suggestions on the following three documents¹⁹:

- The Strategy for Combating Crime and Corruption/part of the Medium-Term Development Strategy (MTDS) 2004 – 2007;
- The Progress Report on the implementation of the measures from the MTDS of BiH (PRSP) for the period from August 2003 to November 2004 (part related to the Strategy for Combating Crime and Corruption);
- The Action Plan of the MTDS of BiH for the period from December 2004 to December 2005, where it refers to the Strategy for Combating Crime and Corruption.

The three documents submitted to the PACO Impact Secretariat were in the local language version and in an English translation. However, discrepancies in the translation, and lack of some consistent information were found between the two texts, making it impossible to relate them to each other. Eventually, the expert comments and recommendations were made on the basis of the local language version. In addition to the Advisory Paper, specific comments were made on the text of the Progress Report and the Action Plan for 2004 – 2005.

In 10 April 2005, the PACO Impact submitted the final Advisory Paper²⁰ to the Head of the EPPU as per their request, and considerations.

In summary, the Advisory Paper recommends the following actions for consideration and reform:

- Ensure continuity of policy documents: work on the basis of one document to be up-dated, instead
 of creating a multitude of documents that stipulate priority activities that are seemingly not followed
 through.
- Consider increasing efforts in, and seeking donor support for, collecting, processing and analyzing corruption-related data and for the development of in-house monitoring and evaluation skills. Data collection is a long-term effort and needs to be sustained.
- Consider increasing efforts in, and seeking donor support for, training of staff charged with overseeing the implementation of the anti-corruption strategy on key concepts of project planning and implementation.
- Rethink presentation of the Action Plan as the format stands now, a lot of information might not find its way into it, contributing to a sense of confusion over whether the EPPU is in the lead on the Strategy's/Action Plan's implementation.
- Introduce realistic deadlines, sub-measures, inputs/outputs/outcomes and risk indicators.

-

¹⁹ The text of these documents is available at http://www.eppu.ba

²⁰ See, Advisory Paper, PC-TC(2005)6, April 2005.

 Consider measures to improve intra-governmental co-ordination and co-ordination with the international community on priority activities; introduce relevant information into the documents.

Activity 5: Consultative Workshop: Initiation of Revision of Anti-corruption Strategy and Action, Sarajevo, 24 June 2005.

The objective of the Consultative Workshop was to present and discuss all comments received on the existing Anti-corruption strategy and Action Plan, as well as consult with the EPPU and other key institutions' representatives the initiation of the revision and improvement of the Strategy and its Action Plan. At the same time, it was re-confirmed to the Council of Europe that the EPPU intends to make a revision of the entire Medium-Term Development Strategy, whose integral part is the Anti-corruption strategy, in the near future.

During the discussions led by the Council of Europe expert and secretariat members, the participants (10 in total from all relevant institutions) agreed that given the shortcomings of the current Action Plan, the revised document should include a variety of indictors and categories so as to account for visibility, transparency, accountability, and continuity of the anti-corruption reforms. More specifically, BiH should consider using a template for the revised action plan modelled on one that is already widely used amongst the countries in the region and the EU, which was circulated at the workshop. The template, which was presented and elaborated during the workshop, was also provided directly to the EPPU representative along with guidelines for the inclusion of the following issues:

- Clear categorization of different sectors which anti-corruption reforms should be targeted
 including optional sub-categorization within each sector so as to achieve full visibility and clarity of
 tasks, including preventive and public outreach efforts;
- Clear identification of institutions involved in the implementation so as to ensure transparency, accountability, and coordination;
- Risk factors which may be involved in the implementation to ensure accountability and better monitoring;
- Timelines and state of play of the implementation to ensure accountability and better monitoring
 as well as visibility of the continuity of anti-corruption efforts; and
- Indicators of success to measure the impact of the reforms on the actual level of corruption.

Participants suggested that there is a need to expand the composition of the current EPPU Working Group on anti-corruption, so as to improve knowledge on the substance of anti-corruption reforms in different sectors as well as in order to improve the accuracy of progress made in the implementation of the reforms. Given that the permanent membership of such an expanded working group may be difficult to achieve, it was suggested that other options that do not require permanent membership should be explored.

In terms of improving the institutional capacity to fight corruption, there is a need to develop evaluation skills of those who monitor the strategy implementation, which is currently a task of the EPPU.

It was preliminary agreed that the Council of Europe could, if requested, provide assistance during the practical process of revising the strategy and the Action Plan, as well as provide and suggest the additional tools in monitoring, measuring, and evaluating the impact of anti-corruption measures in line with the above comments and the expert opinions already provided;

Following this, the EPPU held a meeting on 1 July 2005, to discuss the methodology of the revision of the anti-corruption strategy and action plan; this meeting – which was held behind closed doors and open only to EPPU staff members – was also to discuss the revision of the reported guidelines and recommendations made in all relevant Advisory Papers.

It is hoped that the EPPU and the Council of Europe will in the near future define in which way PACO Impact could provide assistance to the practical process of the revision of the strategy.

Output (3) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: Workshop: Criminal Investigations and Criminal Proceedings of Corruption-related Offences, Sarajevo, 9 February 2005.

The objective of this workshop – which was attended by 29 representatives from the prosecutorial and Judiciary services in all levels of BiH legal system - was to discuss the provisions of new criminal legislation in BiH related to corruption and economic crime; difficulties and constraints encountered in their application in practice, and corruption-related international instruments and Council of Europe Conventions.

Issues discussed were as follows:

- The role of the prosecutor in light of the new criminal procedure codes in Bosnia and Herzegovina with regard to corruption related offences;
- The need for a clear interpretation of the (new) supervisory role that the prosecutor has in the execution of investigation;
- Time constrains to provide a full inclusion of participation among police and other judicial (authorised) officers;
- Granting of immunity from criminal prosecution, which is found to be very useful and which speeds
 up the procedure and contributes to effectiveness of the procedure;
- Criminal proceedings against legal entities introduction of special procedures according to international standards;
- Criminal liability of physical persons within a legal entity;
- Elaboration of newly introduced criminal offences related to corruption;
- Prosecution of money-laundering and tax-evasion; and
- Evidence-gathering when linked to the non-existing possibility for the use of simulated acts by undercover agents.

The Council of Europe expert made particular comments on the relevant articles linked to these issues and the way in which they are addressed in the Criminal Code and Criminal Procedure Code of Bosnia and Herzegovina. As a result, certain articles were found to be not fully in line with international standards, and amendments need to be considered by the BiH authorities.

In summary, the Council of Europe expert provided the following recommendations:

- The Criminal Codes and Criminal Procedure Codes need to be further harmonised in order to become easily applicable;
- Prosecutors should assure the use of the European Convention on Human Rights and the Constitution in parallel to these codes;
- As for the use of Special Investigative Means (SIMs), there is an urgent need to adopt new legislation/bylaws in order to introduce and allow their use as appropriately and in accordance to the Council of Europe Conventions;

• In addition, once a legal framework has been provided for the use of SIMs, a criminal offences catalogue determining and guiding the application of SIMs should be elaborated in order to avoid any potential abuse or miscarriage of investigation procedures when using these tools.

Activity 2: Training Seminar: "Application of Corporate Liability according to BiH Law and International Standards", Sarajevo, 29 July 2005.

The objective of this Training Seminar which had 37 attendees from prosecutorial and judicial services of Bosnia and Herzegovina was to review and discuss issues of application of the provisions of the criminal law provision which regulate liability of the legal entities for criminal offences. Practical issues and difficulties encountered so far, were also issues which were raised in form of the questions to the two Council of Europe experts (1 local and 1 international).

More specifically, participants addressed questions, and commented along with the experts on several questionable issues of practical and legal interpretations as follows:

- Applicable provision of substantive laws;
- Applicable provisions of procedural laws;
- Legal entities which can not be liable for criminal offences;
- Territorial application of provision of Criminal Code of BiH;
- Grounds for liability of legal entities for criminal offences;
- Contribution of managing and supervising bodies of legal entity in committing of criminal offence;
- Conditions for liability; and
- Criminal sanctions for legal entities.

In addition issues related to the principles, and the development of the institute of corporate liability, as well as the relevant international instruments that are applicable in case of Bosnia and Herzegovina were elaborated as well mainly from the experts.

Participants and the Council of Europe experts agreed that certain issues/provisions relevant to the corporate liability in accordance to the Criminal Code and Criminal Procedure Code appear and in many cases have proven to be ambiguous and may need special attention for future revisions/amendments to the existing legislation. As such the following issues were agreed to be addressed as concerning ones:

- Definition of legal entity and its current ambiguity when attempted to be interpreted;
- Coverage of the definition by the criminal legislation at all;
- Liability of legal entity in case when all the elements of the criminal offence are not established (however, there are clearly conflicting opinions on this matter);
- Unclear formulation of Article 124/a of the Criminal Code of BiH and of Article 127 of the Criminal Code of Republika Srpska;
- Ambiguity of Article 125/5 of the Criminal Code when applied on tax evasion;
- Execution of criminal sanctions pronounced towards legal entities, in particular execution of fines;
- Rights of third parties in case of criminal sanction of confiscation of property, in particular in light of ECHR;
- Difficulties related to confiscation of economic gain from legal entities, in particular related to the Article 110/3 of the Criminal Code of BiH; and
- Criminal policy aspect of parallel criminal prosecution of legal entities and physical persons.

Output (4): Pilot activities supported (Updated)

Activity 1: Identification and Elaboration of an Action Plan for a Pilot Activity with

respective counterparts: Preparation of a Manual on Practical Tools and Guidelines on Criminal Proceedings against Corruption-related Offences -

(Tools Manual), Sarajevo, January 2005.

	ı						
Pilot Activity	Preparation of the "Manual on the Practical Tools and Guidelines on criminal proceedings against corruption related offences – (Tools Manual)".						
Objective	Map for Prose	To provide a written document / guidelines in a format of a "Manual of Road Map for Prosecution of Corruption in BiH", aimed at assisting prosecutors and increase the effective prosecutions of the corruption related offences.					
Start-up	May 2005						
Duration Period	May – Septem	ber 2005					
Estimated Cost	12,600.00 Euro						
Available Funds	Pilot Activity al	located funds:	45,000.00 Euro	0			
			and Herzegovi				
Beneficiaries	Prosecutor's Office of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina; Prosecutor's Office of Republika Srpska; Prosecutor's Office of Brcko District; Cantonal Prosecutor's Offices in Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina; Regional/District Prosecutor's Offices in Republika Srpska; State Investigations and Protection Agency; Ministries of Interior of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina and Republika						
	Srpska; Financial Polic	e Denartment	ts of the Ministr	ries of Finance of Fede	ration of		
	BiH and RS;	е веранитет	S OF THE WITHST	nes of Finance of Fede	ration of		
		Tax Administrations of the Federation BiH and RS;					
	Centres for Tra	aining of Judge	es and Prosecut	ors.			
Implemented by	PACO Impact Management Team PACO Impact LPO –Coordinator of the Team Three consultants: one international (Slovenian Prosecutor), and two						
Outputs	national (Bosnia and Herzegovina- Prosecutors) Providing of tools with practical reference on Criminal Proceedings against of corruption related offences; Road-Mapping best practices and legal approach in criminal proceedings; Existence of reliable and up to date guidelines for institutions directly and indirectly involved in prosecution; Increased effectiveness of prosecution of corruption related offences.						
Actions/Activities	Time-line						
Meeting with potential consultants (preferably prosecutors)	Early March 2005	Sarajevo, BiH	N/A	Agreement on engagement for execution of the Pilot Activity;	√		
Signature of contract and of ToR for Consultants	May 2005	Sarajevo, BiH	2,000– 3,000 Euro		√		
Inception Meeting	11 -12 May 2005	Sarajevo, BiH		Definition of Tasks and exchange of			

			50-100 Euro	views with regard to		
				outlook of the		
				manual.		
Technical Meeting	30 July 2005	Sarajevo,	50-100 Euro	Revision of		
		BiH		performed activities.	1	
Technical Meeting	Mid- August,	Sarajevo,	50-100 Euro	Revision of	Merged	
	2005	BiH		performed activities.	w/3 rd	
					one	
Technical Meeting	Early	Sarajevo,	50-100 Euro	Revision of	\ \	
	October	BiH		performed activities.		
	2005				,	
Final Meeting	End January	Sarajevo	50-100 Euro	Submission of	√	
	2006	BiH		finalised materials.	,	
Finalisation and		Sarajevo,		Finalised and	$\sqrt{}$	
Proofreading of draft	January	BiH	1000-2000	Proofread text of		
Manual/translation and	2006 2005		Euro	Manual.		
approval by the Project						
Management Team				Translation of		
				Manual		
Printing, publishing,	February	Sarajevo		1000 Available		
promotion and	2006		5000-7000	copies to all		
distribution of the			Euro	beneficiary		
manual.				institutions		
Impact Expected in Fe	bruary 2006 an	d in the future	е			
Quality Indicators Increased number of users when prosecuting corruption related offences Increased number of Quality of Cases based on the use of set up leg						
	Same model to be used as a good practice sample by the Serbian Prosecutors. Requests for such have already been made, when final product is available for distribution in the local language.					
Quantity Indicators	Increased number based on quality reviews of prosecuted corruption related					
-	offences.	offences.				
Number of Users	Manual being used by the institutions listed in category beneficiaries.					

Activity 2:

Inception Meeting of Consultants Team for drafting the Manual on Practical Tools and Guidelines on Criminal Proceedings against Corruption-related offences – (Tools Manual), Sarajevo, 11-12 May, 2005.

The purpose of the inception meeting was to discuss and determine the outline, structure, and issues of the "Tools Manual". To this end, all the necessary pieces of legislation, including the Criminal Code of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Criminal Code of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Criminal Code of Republika Srpska and the Criminal Code of Brčko District of Bosnia and Herzegovina, and the Law on the Prevention of Money-Laundering.

The first Draft Outline of the Manual was submitted on 19 May 2005.

Activity 3:

Second Meeting of the Consultants Team for drafting the "Manual on the Practical Tools and Guidelines on criminal proceedings against corruption related offences – (Tools Manual)", Sarajevo, 29-30 July, 2005.

The purpose of the second meeting among the three consultants was to discuss some aspects of the First Draft of "Tools Manual", particular provisions related to economic crime and corruption and agree on the outlook of the Second Draft of the Manual.

During the meeting the three consultants reviewed and agreed on changes and amendments of the existing First Draft of the Manual and discussed issues related to the application of certain provisions that vary depending on whether they are applied at the BiH State Prosecutor's Office or Prosecutor's Offices in Republika Srpska. In particular the criminal offence of Tax evasion and Money Laundering connected to it was discussed, since there is a different interpretation whether only the Tax Evasion could be prosecuted or both Tax Evasion and Money Laundering. It was agreed that these issues needs further research and elaboration, because of some particular modalities of execution of criminal offence of Tax evasion in Bosnia and Herzegovina.

With regard to outlook of the Second Draft it was agreed that the initial, proposed outline should be slightly modified. Thus, the Second Draft of the "Tools Manual" would be divided as follows:

- Introduction of Guidelines for Use;
- Substantive and Procedural Provisions (re: criminal offences of economic crime and corruption);
- Modalities of the use of mechanisms and institutes of substantive and procedural laws for prosecuting economic crime and corruption related offences:
 - o Road-Map of the course of Investigation and Proceedings
 - Possibilities for use and application of financial investigations within the framework of the Criminal Procedure Codes;
 - o Modalities of the use of interim security measures; and
 - Assessing and confiscating of crime proceeds.

The submission of the Second Draft to the secretariat of the Council of Europe is foreseen for August 2005.

Activity 4 (Update): Third Meeting of the Consultants Team for drafting the "Manual on the Practical Tools and Guidelines on criminal proceedings against corruption related offences – (Tools Manual)", Sarajevo, 21-22 October, 2005.

The purpose of the third meeting was to discuss in detail the text of the Second Draft of the Manual submitted to the CoE, as well as review the comments prepared by the PACO Impact Secretariat on the Second Draft.

A series of comments and suggestions on the Second Draft of the Manual were handed over to the Consultants, who considered and agreed to revise the draft in light of the discussions and of the text of the Manual accordingly. This meeting served also as an editorial and reading of the text session for the Second Draft in order to ensure the in line consistency on right interpretation of various provisions.

There were many debatable issues opened, which took a lot of time of discussions. The Consultants agreed that it would be necessary to meet one more time before submitting the final text of the Manual. In the meantime they would provide additional inputs and adjust the text in accordance to the Comments of the PACO Impact Secretariat.

Activity 5 (Update): Submission of the Final (third) Draft by the Consultants, Sarajevo, 16 January, 2006

The Consultants finalized the Draft Manual taking into consideration the previously discussed issues of concern. The third version of the Draft Manual has now been submitted for a general review to the Council of Europe. In meantime a translation in English language has been initiated in order to allow a

final revision in both languages, in order to assure systematic editorial revision prior to the Manual's Approval and subsequently its publication.

4.2.3 Observations/Comments (Update):

Although the project suffered some delays during its inception phase, Bosnia and Herzegovina in the period covered by this report implemented most of the activities under Output 1, Output 3 and Output 4 as scheduled in the Workplan. <u>Progress</u> made can be summarised as follows:

- All requested guidelines and policy advice regarding the review and improvement of the existing Anti-corruption Strategy for BiH under the PRSP Strategy have been submitted; the review process started in May 2005;
- A new methodology for monitoring the implementation and progress made under the Anti-corruption Strategy for BiH has been introduced;
- Relevant training for the judicial and prosecutorial services on the newly introduced criminal offences related to corruption has been delivered; and
- The Pilot Activity "Manual on the Practical Tools and Guidelines on Criminal Proceedings against Corruption-related Offences" has now been finalised and is now its final revision before the translation.

As far as the Output 2 is concerned, there is a possibility that the outstanding activities from this section could be implemented during the remaining period of the project's extension. The reasons for slow progress in this particular Output is linked to the overall situation in BiH and the police reform that marked also the period covered by this report. In addition, one has to note the slow decision making process in BiH with regard to the establishment of the Anti-corruption body. Only in August 2005 the Ministry of Security of BiH proposed to the Council of Ministers the establishment of the Working Group which would be tasked to prepare the substantiated proposal for the establishment of the Anti-corruption body. In accordance with this proposal, the Working Group needs to come up with clear definition of the mandate, responsibilities and legal framework for the anti-corruption body.

Through policy dialogue with the Minister of Security and his assistants, in which the SRSG of the Council of Europe to BiH was involved, it become clear that Bosnia and Herzegovina will need to fulfil certain obligations imposed by the European Commission in terms of institutional actions towards the establishment of Anti-corruption body. Among other obligations, the Ministry of Security is to provide a comprehensive Anti-terrorism, Anti-corruption and Strategy against organised crime. In the light of this, there was a clear interest to make use of the assistance offered by PACO Impact.

During this policy dialogue, the importance of cooperation between different stakeholders in BiH was stressed, in particular between the Ministry of Security and EPPU, since the latter one is currently in charge of revising and following up the progress of the existing Anti-corruption strategy and Action plan.

With this in mind, the <u>obstacles</u> PACO Impact faced during its implementation can be summarised as follows:

- Lack of coordination among all relevant institutions, and lack of a widely accepted and operational centralised structure that could lead and move forward the reforms that have been agreed upon separately by each institution;
- The fact that the Council of Ministers has not yet established a system of reporting and accountability (within its own structure) on the overall measures taken or needed in the fight against corruption;
- The continuous lack of coordination and availability of the PACO Impact Country Project Director due to his engagements in other projects in the country.

Accordingly, PACO Impact will consider the following priorities for the forthcoming period:

- Increasing its policy dialogue with high-level authorities by suggesting a stronger, centralised and coordinated leadership and political support toward the on-going reforms carried out by the relevant institutions;
- Facilitate the process of revising and finally submitting a comprehensive Anti-corruption strategy for Bosnia and Herzegovina;
- Continue to seek and suggest that EPPU and the Ministry of Security strengthen its cooperation and collaboration with all relevant institutions affected by the Anti-corruption Strategy in a more institutionalised way;
- Continue to seek support and cooperation from the BiH authorities and especially the Country Project Director nominated by the government;
- Continue the political dialogue in order to define the best way ahead in facilitating the efforts and the policy discussion in a technical level aimed at the establishment of an Anti-corruption body.

4.3 Croatia (Update)

4.3.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal</u>: Review and adjust (update) national anti-corruption program; assist in creating an action plan matrix identifying measurable anti-corruption actions and indicators of success; improve preventive anti-corruption capacities including public awareness and education of civil servants and public officials.

<u>Expected actions</u>: Initiate the establishment of a clear anti-corruption strategy and its action plan; consolidate comprehensive measurable anti-corruption actions; strengthen the respective monitoring and managing mechanisms as provided by law; assist law enforcement agencies in strengthening their capacities to investigate and repress corruption related offences, increase the public awareness campaign capacities as provided by law.

4.3.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) & (2): Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated; Output (2): Institutional

mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anti-corruption

plans strengthened

Activity 1: Initiation of the Policy Dialogue on the establishment of the Working Group

for drafting the National Programme for the Suppression of Corruption,

Zagreb, September-October 2004.

During the reported period the Country Project Director and the Local Project Director in Croatia, held several meetings and discussions with respect to necessary actions that need to be taken in accordance to the workplan as proposed and agreed by the Croatian authorities. Following these meetings, a coordination and policy dialogue meeting of the PACO Impact Project Manager took place in late September with the Senior Representative on Anti-corruption at the Ministry of Justice and Office for Suppression of Organised Crime and Corruption (USKOK).

As a result of the issues addressed and agreements reached during this policy dialogue with Ministry of Justice representatives and USKOK representatives it was decided that the following actions will be taking place on step by step basis:

- Establishing through the coordination of the Ministry of Justice of a multi-disciplinary Working Group composed of representatives from all relevant institutions which will be working on Redefining a National Programme for the suppression of Corruption;
- Drafting (and proposing to the government) of the National Programme for the suppression of Corruption); and
- Establishing a "Preventive" Anti-corruption Inter-governmental Body (instead of the planned parliamentary commission as foreseen by the previous National Strategy, by playing also at some stage the role of the two USKOK's departments);

Activity 2: Establishment of the Working Group for the Review and Update of the Anticorruption Programme, Zagreb, 9 December 2004.

On 9 December 2004, a Working Group was formed in accordance to Article 39, of the Law on State Administration, the Ministry of Justice assigned to draft the **new National Anti-corruption Strategy.**

The working group is composed of the representatives from the relevant in line Ministries, USKOK office, judiciary, civil society, media, unions, and other institutions and agencies. The Working Group consists of 16 members.

The Working Group foresees that the National Anti-corruption Strategy will be including three elements: Main Government Objectives; Evaluation of the Current Status/situation; and main measures for suppressing corruption.

It is expected that during January-April 2005 the working group will be meeting on regular basis to review and draft different parts of the National Programme, and by the end of April 2005 to finalise its work. Council of Europe expertise will continue to be provided during some of the working sessions, and in assessing the final draft version of the National Programme for the suppression of corruption.

Activity 3: First meeting of the Working Group to discuss/propose measures for the Review and Update of the Anti-corruption Strategy, Zagreb, 11 March 2005.

The main objective of this first meeting was to discuss the initial draft outline as prepared by the Working Group in view of proposing a new version of the National Anti-corruption Strategy for Croatia.

During the discussions the following issues were addressed:

- There should be a task list where all representatives of the relevant institutions are assigned to draft
 and consult issues with their respective institutions concerning their role and involvement in the
 National Anti-corruption Strategy;
- Each member of the Working Group representing the relevant institution/area of the strategy and its
 action plan, needs to submit on behalf of their own institution the proposed relevant measures,
 identified risks, and the necessary legislative inputs or other reforms that will be required in order to
 implement these anti-corruption measures;
- The representative of the Ministry of the Interior stressed the need for preliminary analysis and reports (jointly prepared by USKOK and the Ministry of the Interior) about the status of the criminal and other relevant legislation related to corruption offences, in order to avoid overlapping of reform requests in the future text of the Strategy. In addition, the same representative proposed that the Ministry and USKOK would need to seek ways of increasing their cooperation (when criminal proceedings are initiated against corruption-related offences); such cooperation would need to be part of Strategy measures.

Activity 4: Final meeting of the Working Group to Propose Measures for the Review and Update of the Anti-corruption Strategy, Zagreb, 18 March 2005.

At the second meeting, members of the Working Group submitted proposals for specific and relevant measures based on each sector/area they were tasked to cover. While many measures were inserted in the draft outline, other issues of concern related more to the operational point of view; it was suggested that those should be given priority in the Strategy. In summary, these issues are as follows:

The Head of USKOK proposed that emphasis should be put on such measures that may cause inappropriate responses to the initiation of criminal proceedings against corruption, namely: low salaries of USKOK staff; very limited number of skilled staff within the Department of Suppression of Corruption and Organised Crime; limited access to different kinds of databases and high-level equipment (i.e. SIMs equipment and analytical software, which should be compatible with those of other bodies of state authorities for the investigation of relevant criminal acts).

- With regards to the judiciary system, the most pressing issues seem to be the backlog of cases; and the lack of a case management system and the supervision of progress made in given criminal proceedings/files. However, many relevant measures related to these issues will require legal reform, for example the passing of a Law on the State Judicial Council;
- Relevant Ministries and other State Administrative Bodies submitted proposals for measures which should aim at: a better execution of all relevant inspections; the reform and strengthening of the administrative boards; the strengthening of internal controls within the Ministry of the Interior; the strengthening of the service of the internal revision, especially within the Ministry of Health and Social Welfare, and the Ministry of Science;
- The Croatian Journalist Association proposed that guidelines be provided in the form of a handbook for journalists on how to handle and process information related to allegations of corruption, with additional information on elements of investigative journalism; and
- Almost all members agreed that many relevant and important laws such as the Law on Access to Information, the Law on Prevention of Conflict of Interest, the Law on State Servants and Employees, and the Law on Public Procurement Procedures would need to be reviewed under special measures in order to present harsher disciplinary actions and penalties, as well as clearer proceedings.

Activity 5: Follow up meeting of the Working Group to Propose Measures for the Review and Update of the Anti-corruption Strategy, Zagreb, 18 April 2005.

During the third and final meeting of the group, a first draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy was distributed to all members of the Working Group and shortly discussed. The Head of the working group, who has been mainly in charge of collecting and elaborating further the information and proposals, stressed that the follow up period will be dedicated to improve the existing document (which is as yet a working document), and to allow Council of Europe expertise and assessment to be issued prior to its submission to a larger audience (institutions and government), and prior to its endorsement.

However, it should be mentioned that since 18 April 2005, the Working Group has not meet again. The latest version of the draft National Anti-corruption Strategy dates 29 May 2005, and even though it is considered by the working group and its Head as a non-final version, apparently there are concerns that the authorities of the Ministry of Justice are considering it as a final version.

Although the Working Group has done a laudable job in identifying the weaknesses of the previous strategy and proposing relevant measures accordingly, the draft (version of 29 May 2005) does not reflect the three main elements of the strategy as agreed before by all members of the working group, which are: 1) Main Government Objectives; 2) Evaluation of the Current Status; 3) Situation and Main Measures for Suppressing Corruption. In addition, since all members of the Working Group consider the document as a non-final version, they have agreed that during the end of August or early September 2005, the working group and representatives of the Ministry of Justice organise a Round Table Discussion on the text with the assistance and advice of Council of Europe experts.

It is hoped that the current planning will bring the protracted process of preparing and submitting a new Anti-corruption Strategy for Croatia to a successful closure.

Activity 6 (Update): Meeting of the Working Group to discuss the policy and issues proposed through the new draft of the National Program for Suppression of Corruption,

Zagreb, 08 October 2005

In early October 2005, it was the Minister of Justice of Croatia, Ms. Vesna Skare-Ozbolt who headed the Working Group meeting which took place in order to discuss issues of finalisation and policy related to the text of the Draft National Program on Suppression of Corruption, and also set deadlines to when the draft should be made ready. Furthermore, it was agreed that Council of Europe expertise review and expert meeting with the working group should take place prior to the submission Draft National Program on Suppression of Corruption to the Ministry of Justice. Comments and improvements on the existing drafts were discussed, and decided to be inserted and approved to another follow up meeting prior to the finalisation of the text, and its submission to the Council of Europe experts for their evaluation.

Activity 7 (Update):

Final meeting of the Working Group and the Ministry of Justice to finalise recommendations on the draft National Program for Suppression of Corruption, Turopolje, 28 October 2005

The members of the working group together with the Special Adviser to the MoJ and State Secretary of the MoJ met on 28 October 2005 in order to submit and discuss the last recommendations to the draft National Program on Suppression of Corruption. This draft was then published and made available to the public for comments at the web site of the Ministry of Justice, as well as it was sent for an evaluation and expert review to the Council of Europe experts. The expertise of the Council of Europe was provided from two Council of Europe experts, and it took place in writing between October and November 2005. The official submission of the experts' opinion to the Minister of Justice of Croatia and the working group took place in November 2005.

Activity 8 (Update):

Final meeting of the Working Group on the new draft National Program on Suppression of Corruption and submission of the guidelines and tools when defining additional prevention and educational initiatives that need to be included in the existing Anti- Corruption framework, Zagreb, 9 November 2005

This was the final meeting which allowed the presentation in detail of the proposed now new National Program on Suppression of Corruption for Croatia. The Head of the Working Group stressed that in this National Program the accent is on the implementation of the laws and no longer on adopting new legislation since that phase is now passed for Croatia. The aim of the new program is to lower corruption on the level in which it will not present the obstacle for normal functioning of the society and of the rule of law.

This meeting was also moderated and facilitated by the Council of Europe expert Mr. Goran Klemencic who presented his remarks and further on introduced the Council of Europe expertise comments in general with respect to the Draft National Program on Suppression of Corruption.

The meeting was attended also by the representatives of the European Commission delegation in Croatia who addressed as an important momentum the issue that now is also the time that Croatian authorities would need to set up a clear time frame in establishing the National Council on Anti-corruption.

Following the expert discussions and comments, the following issues were addressed as final remarks on the document:

- The Program generally is good as it brings measures of prevention and repression;
- The language of the Program is not so technical, thus it is more closer to the public, what eventually is positive, however it may sound populist;
- The necessity to stress the continuity in fighting against corruption; for example there was no continuity-related concept in the previous national strategy 2002. There is a need to ensure that evaluation of what has been accomplished or not accomplished constitutes an important tool of implementing and monitoring government policies;

- Special attention should be given to question related to the available funds and resources (e.g. USKOK issues of additional departments being introduced remains still open and unclear);
- The sections dealing with issues of international co-operation need to be more clear and pragmatic;
- Attention should be given to foreseen deadlines, as some may be unrealistic especially those covering measures that are generally introduced;
- The most concerning issue, remains to be the question of implementation of the program; there is a clear need to defining an authority, its mandate. Also, the activity of the body as proposed by the program remains still unexplained.

Also specific comments and recommendations for improvements were made with reference to specific sections and chapters dealing with issues of funding of political parties and their monitoring; suppression of conflict of interest; the official secret ("test of public interest"); transfer of powers; the existing strategy for the judiciary and its relevance; health sector; privatization and public procurement; freedom of competition market; investigation and sanctions; and implementation and monitoring of the Program

At the end of this meeting the following actions were agreed to take place:

- The Council of Europe expertise recommendations and opinions will be accompanying the text of the National Program when being introduced to the Council of Ministers as submitted by the Council of Europe secretariat;
- The National Program for Suppression of Corruption will be submitted to the Council of Ministers of Croatia in December 2005, and upon its endorsement will be then submitted to the parliament of Croatia;
- The government of Croatia (initially the Ministry of Justice) will urgently submit and propose the establishment of the National Council to monitor and prevent corruption; and
- As concerning the financing and resources, each institution proposed as the responsible one for the tasks should ensure; and propose before the adoption of the State Budget the necessary financial and human resources that will be needed in order to provide the necessary inputs for the implementation of the National Program for the Suppression of Corruption.

Output (3) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Comments:

In February 2005, changes and amendments were made and adopted to the existing Law on Office for Suppression of Organised Crime and Corruption ("USKOK Law"). Accordingly, these amendments provide the re-organisation of some departments within the USKOK, by including provisions for a new department - the Department for International Co-operation and Joint Investigations (DICJI).

The inclusion and the establishment of DICJI is expected to improve the quality of many complex criminal proceedings and also to strengthen the cooperation between police and USKOK. By means of this law and its recent amendments, the authority of the USKOK's role during the preliminary investigations and scope of jurisdiction (number of types of criminal offences) has increased substantially.

In addition, since the beginning of 2005, the authorities of the Ministry of Justice have been discussing and informing international forums that an Anti-corruption Law is going to be drafted soon in order to

establish an Anti-corruption Office. However, until now there has been no institutional awareness raising or open discussion with the public about this intent; this issue has also not been raised as a necessary measure to be included in the draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy. It appears that this idea is still under discussion, only, within the Ministry of Justice.

Output (4): Pilot Activity Supported (Update)

Activity 1: Identification and Elaboration of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with respective

counterparts on "Strengthening technical and operational capacities during criminal proceedings against corruption related offences", Zagreb, January

2005.

Pilot Activity	Strengthening technical and operational capacities during criminal					
Pilot Activity	Strengthening technical and operational capacities during criminal proceedings against corruption related offences					
Objective	Strengthen investigative and operational capacities which can increase the quality, quantity, and the speed of investigation and networking procedures when initiating criminal proceedings and evidence gathering for corruption related offences.					
Start-up	November 2005					
Duration Period	November - December 2005					
Estimated Cost	SIMS Equipment: 10,800.00 EURO Equipment- Notebooks and Portable Printers: 16,040.00 EURO					
Available Funds	Pilot Activity allocated funds: 45,000.00 EURO Other Office Equipment allocated funds: 10,000.00 EURO Total Available Funds: 55,000.00 EURO					
Beneficiaries	USKOK HQ Office and Three County Offices (Rijeka, Split, Osijek) Department for Economic Crime and Corruption at the Ministry of Interior					
Implemented by	PACO Impact Management Team Unit; USKOK HQ; Ministry of Interior and DECC.					
Outputs	Increased and Efficient Criminal Proceedings against corruption and economic crime; Prevention of crime, and other actions due to the use of preliminary investigative techniques; Full technical implementation of the SIMS legislation in place; Ability to operate and initiate criminal proceedings through a technical network which allows participation of other officers in charge of investigation; Reduced cost of criminal proceedings by avoiding travels in different regions in country; Possibility to gather sufficient evidence which currently is not fully possible due to lack of funds in purchase of equipment.					
Inputs	Purchase and donation of eight notebooks and eight portable printers Equipment for USKOK HQ County offices; Assert training needs for use of these equipment (if there is any).					

Actions/Activities	Time-line	Venue	Estimated	Expected	Notes	
			Cost	Results/outcomes		
Meeting w/USKOK and Mol authorities to reconfirm the need for such equipment.	27 Septembe r 04	Zagreb, Croatia	N/A	Continues Persistence on the need of these equipment as the most needed technical assistance; Confirmed lack of state	\checkmark	
Estimating cost of		Zagreb,	N/A	funds. 16,000€		
Requested Equipment	Nov. 2005	Croatia	1077	13,000 €	\checkmark	
PMU Consults with Sida re: Decision for Purchase	March - June 05	Strasbou rg, France	N/A	Decision not to purchase due to limited funds; Receipt of potential additional funds;	V	
Order of Equipment	Dec. 2005 Jan. 2006	Croatia, and region	N/A	Purchase Order Confirmed	V	
1 st Purchase and Purchase Delivery	Jan. 2006	Zagreb, Croatia	16,040.00 EURO	Equipment Installed in Zagreb, and 4 districts	V	
2 nd Purchase and Purchase Delivery	February 2006	Zagreb, Croatia	16,040.00 EURO	Equipment Installed in Zagreb, and 4 districts	V	
Assert needs for training on Equipment Use	through the period Croatia 3000 Euro Training already provided by other institutions, while no equipment has been available revisited again in order to confirm that there is no need to train equipm ent users.					
Impact Expected in June 2006 and in the future						
Other general data						
Quality Indicators	Evidence gathered and criminal proceedings quality has increased with 2-3 years ago					
Quantity Indicators	Number of successful criminal offences due to valid evidence (b/c of use of equipment have increased with 2-3 years ago; Number of prevented (offence in attempt) has increased due to initial signals received in preliminary stages and due to speedy networks of joint operations with other district offices.					
Number of Users	Equipment being used as practical tools by many officers (other institutions, departments) in charge of investigation and criminal proceedings against corruption and economic crime.					

Activity 2 (Update): Purchase of equipment for USKOK HQ Office and three County Offices (Rijeka, Split, Osijek), Zagreb, December 2005-January 2006

At the end of December 2005 through the Pilot activity "Strengthening technical and operational capacities during criminal proceedings against corruption related offences", the purchase of eight notebooks and eight portable printers for USKOK Zagreb Headquarters and its three County Offices (Split, Rijeka, Osijek) took place in accordance to Council of Europe rules of procurement and on the basis of the specific needs as established from the USKOK HQ offices in Zagreb during the implementation of the project. In total there were eight notebooks and eight portable printers, by distributing them two notebooks and two printers per each above mentioned offices.

The purchased equipment are aimed at assisting and improving the administrative and technical capacities offices and more specifically of the corruption related case proceedings when carried in the field and through missions from designated prosecutors. The total amount of the purchased equipment reached at 14,997 Euros.

The purchase and the providing of SIMs equipment for Ministry of Interior (Department for Economic Crime and Corruption) is scheduled to take place during January-February 2006.

4.3.3 Observations/Comments (Update)

The most significant event for the Republic of Croatia in 2005 was the opening of EU accession negotiations in October 2005. In light of the recent developments and in relation to the project, the Ministry of Justice urged that that finalisation of the National Programme on the Suppression of Corruption needs to take place as soon as possible in order to be submitted to the Government.

Progress noted under Output 1, Output 2, and Output 4 could be summarised as follows:

- Finalisation of the new draft National Programme on Suppression of Corruption;
- Presentation of the National Program National Programme on Suppression of Corruption from the working group to the Ministry of Justice;
- Submission of the National Programme on Suppression of Corruption to the Council of Ministers for its endorsement;
- Initiation of the Pilot Activity for Croatia;
- The adoption of the amendments to the Criminal Code in aimed at strengthening sanctions on corruption related offences, and introducing new changes pertaining to the criminal offences of embezzlement and tax fraud; and
- The adoption and coming in force of the new Law on State Servants, by abolishing the previous

However, it should be noted that the National Programme on Suppression of Corruption has not yet been endorsed by the Government although submitted already in November 2005. It is hoped that following the government endorsement, the National Programme will be then send to the Parliament for approval.

Other issues of concern addressed during the implementation of the project:

- There is a sound lack of participation and involvement of the public in general and civil society during the above mentioned initiatives when taken by the government;
- Although, now being assisted through a Cards Twining Project of the European Commission, the USKOK has a Department for Education and Prevention of corruption which is still non-operational due to the lack of human resources:

- Although changes in some important pieces of legislation have taken place, there seem to be a need for better implementation of legislation and enforcement in line with international standards. In addition, when implementing such legislation, there seem to be a tendency of not considering education and prevention of corruption as other important tools in the fight against corruption; and
- The existing loopholes in the legal framework regulating the financing of political parties represent an ongoing risk for abuse and possible political corruption.

Accordingly, PACO Impact will consider the following priorities for the forthcoming period:

- Increase the policy dialogue with high level authorities in order to receive more support and leadership in relation to the ongoing reforms and those that need to be initiated;
- Follow up on procedures of launching, approval and implementation of the National Programme on the Suppression of Corruption
- Offer and provide to the Croatian authorities a thorough legal expertise on the feasibility of the establishment of the National Council (as the envisaged to be Anti-corruption Body on prevention and monitoring) by in line with the European standards;
- Carry on the postponed activities under Output 3;
- Increase further communications and coordination with EC Delegation in Croatia in order to avoid any potential duplication of activities, but also ensure political support on the reforms that take place and are aimed to be in line with European integration of Croatia.

4.4 "The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia" (Update)

4.4.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal:</u> Streamlining and consolidation of the Anti-Corruption Programme and its matrix of actions; strengthen its monitoring and implementation. Increase the capacities of the Commission to better perform its educational and preventive role, and preserve its institutional knowledge through comprehensive reporting and training tools.

<u>Expected actions</u>: Improve (simplify) Anti-Corruption Programme and its analytical structure; consolidate comprehensive measurable anti-corruption actions; strengthen monitoring and managing capacities of the Commission and assist in the inclusion of measurable indicators of success in the Anti-corruption plan; production and publication of the Commissions findings and recommendations.

4.4.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated

Activity 1: Annual Conference on the Review of the implementation of the State Programme for Prevention and Repression of Corruption for 2003 and

identification of further activities for 2004, Ohrid, 23-25 June 2004.

The purpose of the Annual Conference which brought together 50 members from different institutions was to evaluate the work of the State Anticorruption Commission and the implementation of the Anticorruption Programme by identifying achieved objectives and future actions that need to be taken within the framework of the State Programme. The Participants provided a thorough overview of the reforms that have been achieved or are still in progress since June 2003 when the State Program for Prevention and Repression of Corruption and an Action Plan Matrix were adopted. Despite a variety of assessments of the anti-corruption reforms achieved so far, which ranged from disappointing to satisfactory, it is clear that Macedonia and its institutions, such as the State's Commission for Prevention of Corruption, have made notable first steps to fight corruption. In addition, and within the framework of twining actions, two representatives from the Serbian Anti-corruption Council were invited to attend and participate the works of the Conference, but using modalities of this Conference (as appropriately) on their initial work for drafting the Anti-corruption National Strategy for Serbia.

Nevertheless, the tangible results in terms of reduced corruption so far have been lacking. This is why dissatisfaction of some participants linked to their high expectations is somewhat understandable since only a sustained implementation of the anti-corruption legal and institutional tools over a period of time, such as in the area of conflict of interest, can bring tangible results in reducing corruption.

Participants agreed somehow that It was, thus, clear that the "first phase" of the implementation of the anti-corruption Programme: acknowledging existence of corruption; uncovering and identifying institutional and legislative failings that offer opportunities for corruption; and initiating systemic reforms in the judiciary, criminal justice system, public administration and in the economic and financial system, has been actively pursued. In addition participants agreed that the "second phase" poses new challenges by testing a full commitment and resolve of all the stakeholders: their cooperation and perseverance in fighting corruption. In other words, the emphasis in the "second phase" will be on horizontal integration of the recently changed institutions necessitating their close cooperation in applying new legal tools against corruption.

Based on the three days discussions, reports and debates, recommendations²¹ aimed at improvements and change of modalities were provided to the State Commission by the Council of Europe experts as follows:

- Consider the adjustment of the Action Plan Matrix so to fully reveal the achievements in different sectors and identify actors associated with those achievements so to mark the close-to-completion first phase of the Programme implementation;
- Consider the adjustment that focuses on further implementation and fine-tuning of the existing reforms, such as drafting bylaws and other secondary legislation to define the terms of implementation, would also serve to more comprehensively present the "second phase" of the Programme implementation;
- Consider to improve a lay out of the Action Plan Matrix so to have a clear distinction between: sectors that are subject to reform with clearly identified priorities; objectives of the reform; measures and actions to be taken to achieve the desired reform; institution(s) responsible for the reform (e.g., drafting a law); timing; indicators of success, and issues of concern;
- Consider updating the Action Plan Matrix by drawing on the Judicial Reform Strategy (currently in draft as explained at the Conference), but focusing on anti-corruption measures in the judicial sector that are planned or are missing;
- Consider establishing regular communication with a business community to get feedback on specific corruption – related problems they encounter in their activities; and
- Consider strengthening horizontal links between institutions within a particular system by establishing a follow-up mechanism (paper trace, working groups, and recourse to an oversight mechanism) that maps out actions taken by institutions within a system.

It should be noted that certain recommendations were taken on board by the commission, however not all of them. In view of this, follow up on review for improvement on the existing State Programme will be considered during the implementation period of the project.

Activity 2:

Regional conference on Drafting the Annex to the National Anticorruption Programme on the Implementation of Anticorruption Measures Related to the Local Level, in compliance with the new Law On Local Government, Ohrid, 13-14 May 2005.

The aim of this event was to draft an Annex to the State Programme for the Prevention and Repression of Corruption, which would address preventing and combating corruption at local level in alignment with the recently enforced legislation for that level of government. According to the Workplan, three regional events were planned to take place on the same subject. However, following a proposal of the Country Director and aiming at more efficient sessions, these three activities were merged into a bigger event, bringing together 45 participants representing the three main regions in "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia". Local experts from "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia" had been commissioned by PACO Impact to provide the necessary advice and guidelines on subject of the Conference.

After reviewing the newly adopted legislation on local government with respect to legislation in place on preventing and combating corruption, participants submitted a series of recommendations to be included

²¹ See, also Policy Advice Paper, TP-44 (2004)

into the Annex to the State Programme for the Prevention and Repression of Corruption. Discussions were also held on the following issues:

- Measures related to municipal administration and local governance;
- Measures related to public information issues;
- Measures related to the financial management and control of local governance units; and
- Issues related to accountability of competencies between national and local authorities.

The recommendations resulting from these discussions were submitted to the State Anti-corruption Commission, and have now been included into the State Programme for the Prevention and Repression of Corruption as a separate chapter, which would specifically deal with measures for the prevention and repression of corruption at the local level. These provisions will be monitored as part of the regular monitoring of the Programme.

Activity 3:

Annual Conference on the Review of the Implementation of the State Programme for Prevention and Repression of Corruption for 2004 and Identification of Further Activities for 2004, Ohrid, 29-30 June 2005.

This event aimed at evaluating the work of the State Anti-corruption Commission and the implementation of the Anti-corruption Programme and at reviewing the impact of the relevant recently introduced corruption-related legislation over the past twelve months, and to initiate follow-up activities for the period to come.

The evaluation on the implementation of the Anticorruption Programme and of the overall work of the Commission was led by the inputs and opinions of the 60 invited participants from governmental, non-governmental and academic institutions, which are regular partners of the work of the Commission. The Council of Europe's experts provided an overview analysis and assessment, and recommendations for follow-up measures for of work of the Commission.

The government authorities have made substantial progress on many of the items of the State Programme. As was to be expected, much of that progress had been in the preparation and enactment of laws. Some of these laws have focused on anti-corruption, such as the amendments to the Criminal Code, the Criminal Procedure Code and the Law on the Prevention of Corruption, and the protection of witnesses and informants. Others laws concerned primarily good governance issues.

Participants observed that the time has come to put these laws into practice and to take into consideration the resource implications of doing so: as resources are limited, there is a need to prioritise. It is also necessary to measure more precisely the progress being made in the fight against corruption.

However, the main issue of concern as raised by local and international partners was the recurring lack of full implementation and impact that had already been noted at the 2004 Annual Conference The negligibly small number of persons charged and/or convicted for corruption offences was cited as a case in point.

The Commission itself addressed issues of cooperation as an obstacle for its work In view of impact when implementing the Programme where the cooperation with the Office of Chief Public Prosecutor seems suffer from lack of communication and coordination. In fact, although invited, the Prosecution Service was not represented at the meeting. There are also problems in the coordination and cooperation with various line ministries and other governmental bodies, which pose a substantial problem for the Commission to carry out its tasks.

The Council of Europe expert evaluation and recommendations were specifically given on three points:

Setting up Priorities;

- Strengthening the State Programme; and
- Assessing Progress.

A full advisory paper/report²² on the guidelines and the approaches that could be followed was submitted to all Conference participants, and for considerations to the State Anti-corruption Commission members.

Activity 4 (Update): Corruption Perception Survey from State Commission for the Prevention of Corruption, nation-wide, December 2005 – 1 March 2006

By the initiative of the State Anti-corruption Commission (and as a part of their additional public perception and relation component), a Survey on Corruption Perception was initiated in early December 2005 with funds and technical assistance from PACO Impact. The Survey research has been commissioned to a Macedonian Institute of political and sociological research, accredited regionally and internationally.

The purpose of the survey/research is a twofold one:

- Measuring the public attitude and perception on corruption;
- Evaluate the scope of corruption in the administration

Furthermore, this research will focus on the perception of the citizens and their experiences with reference to corruption alleged cases, and it will look and cover different groups, segments of public life, accordingly their role and position in the social and professional life.

The perception is the necessary starting point in preventing combating corruption. It will encompass the attitudes regarding the corruption of different members of the public and will provide information and data about:

- Most general attitudes and estimation regarding corruption;
- Most reasons that cause corruption;
- The level of credibility of institutions in charge of preventing and combating corruption; and
- The ways and methods that may derive and could be used in combating corruption.

This approach will combine different methodological techniques (quantitative and qualitative). The process of data collection will not be narrowed only to a public opinion poll, but it will also include indepth interviews and focus group discussions. Based on such approach the survey research will provide relevant, background information that may not be possible to be obtained only through a public opinion poll.

Furthermore, from the viewpoint of the content, or the most "corruption affected or corruption prone areas", the public opinion poll with the general public (citizens from 18 till 60 years) will be focused to following sectors:

- public health;
- judiciary system;
- public education;
- state administration;

On the other hand the *victimological* poll, where the citizens shall describe their experience with corrupted behaviour, will focus on two levels of corruption:

-

²² See, Advisory Paper/Report, PC-TC(2005)10, June 2005.

- bribing public servants in order to carry on a procedure which is a legal right of the citizens; and
- bribing public servants in order to gain a something which can not be acquired through a legal procedure.

The scope of the corruption will be measured through the experience of the citizens on two levels of victimization:

- five year level (2001 2005)
- one year level (2005)

The survey report research will be analysing the results based on different methodological techniques. It is expected that the result report of the survey research, as the first activity of its kind, carried out by the State Anti-corruption Commission will serve as the starting point for directing any further campaign and policy advice in preventing and combating corruption in "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia". The results of the Survey research are expected to be obtained by the end of March, and therefore the Analysis Report and Results are expected to be introduced through a open media, government, political parties and public discussions that will be organised and moderated by the State Anti-corruption Commission during the spring of 2006.

Output (2) (Update) Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anticorruption plans strengthened

Activity 1: Purchase of Computer Equipment and other technical equipment necessary for the Sate Anti-corruption Commission in order to enhance further their capacities and efficiency. Skopje, November 2004.

The aim of this activity is to further assist and strengthen the State Anticorruption Commission's technical equipping in order to enhance the efficiency of its work by also taking into consideration the increase of its competencies and number of employees as of 2005. In view of this the following equipment were purchased under Council of Europe procurement rules:

- 5 PC desktop;
- 4 Laptop computers;
- 1 Scanner;
- 1 LCD Projector;
- 1 Printer LaserJet;
- 1 Software backup;
- Upgrade of the Copy Machine.

Activity 2: GRECO Plenary Session on the First Round of Evaluation for "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia", Strasbourg, December 2004.

The aim of this activity was to support the participation of one of the members of the State Anticorruption Commission (specifically the PACO Impact Project Director) to the GRECO plenary session as a country delegation member during the evaluation of the "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia" in order to ensure follow up and a close multilateral cooperation during GRECO evaluation, as well as ensure a feed back process with the State Anti-corruption Commission. The participation of the member from the State Anti-corruption Commission ensured support and more information exchange during the GRECO plenary sessions, as well as setting up contacts and networking with other country delegations at the GRECO sessions.

Activity 3: Enhance publication and dissemination capacities of the State Anticorruption Commission. Skopje, December 2004.

The aim of this activity was to support the State Anti-corruption Commission and enable its members to publish, produce, and disseminate several report documentation which are linked directly to their work. Such an activity will also increase the visibility in pubic as well as to national and international institutions of their work and legal standards which guide their activities. In view of this, the following documentation and reports were made available in both languages (English and Macedonian):

- The State Program for Prevention and Repression of Corruption;
- The Action Plan Matrix:
- Law on Prevention of Corruption;
- All relevant anti-corruption Council of Europe, UN, and OECED conventions and recommendations.

Activity 4:

Funding of the Publication of an Information Package on the SACC, reports/framework for public and institutional use and information dissemination, and other promotional activities for the SACC, May through June 2005.

The pressure increasingly put on the State Anticorruption Commission by other services such as the Chief Public Prosecutor (reflecting the problematic relationship between the two institutions), provided one more reason to quickly initiate an efficient campaign for raising citizens` awareness on the role and competencies of the Commission in the prevention and repression of corruption. This campaign is also a part of the Commission's strategy to reach itself out to the public and to increase its networking capacities with citizens.

This anti-corruption campaign has the following features:

Reach out to the public through independent media broadcasting:

- Meeting for Chief Editors of all major nation-wide media where the State anti-corruption Programme and its public awareness strategy is announced; invitation to a cooperation aimed at wide-reaching effects and all-embracive inclusion of citizens and institutions in the fight against corruption;
- Regular Press Conferences of the Commission, where information and findings as well as reports are disseminated and explained;
- A public hearing on the current position of the State Anti-corruption Commission with the country's civil society, where competencies and the status of relationship between the Commission and other institutions is presented. Also, information on comparable indicators of other Anti-corruption Services in the region is provided;
- A TV-broadcasted tribune (90 minutes) on Kanal 5 TV (nationwide broadcaster), where the members of the Commission will enter into a dialog with representatives of the Judiciary and Prosecutorial Services to address issues of concern with regard to the impact expected by the public on the fight against corruption.

Enhancing visibility:

 The design of the formal logo of the Commission presenting it as a recognizable brand-name to be associated with its crucial role in the fight against corruption.

- The production of a public portfolio brochure for the Commission presenting its competencies/mandate, composition, and a Frequently Asked Questions section on its work, and its association/relationship with governmental and non-governmental institutions;
- Publication of informative and educational supplements to daily newspapers containing general information on the fight against corruption in the country, and the ways of preventing corruption;
- Publication of advertisements in daily newspapers bearing the message on the necessity to accelerate the country's anti-corruption efforts and calling on citizens to report corruption cases to the Commission.

Due to the Commission's being over-burdened with too many activities while still being understaffed, the finalisation of this activity has been postponed by some months. This situation also impacts on the intensity of the implementation of this activity, which is not satisfactory; additionally, there is a lack of financial resources available to conduct costly PR activities. The activity is now foreseen to be finalized in autumn 2005.

Activity 5 (Update): At large dissemination of 460 copies of "The Compilation of CoE instruments on Corruption, Good Governance and Economic Crime" in Macedonian language, Skopje, 15 January 2006

Following the publication of ""The Compilation of Council of Europe instruments on Corruption, Good Governance and Economic Crime", a massive distribution of the publication took place during early January 2006 to the following institutions: all prosecutorial and court offices throughout the country, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of the Interior, the State Anticorruption Commission, the Financial Police, the Directorate against money laundering, the Police Academy, and all universities in the country. The purpose of the distribution of the publication is to raise the awareness in professional circles of the Council of Europe and other international standards on Corruption, Good Governance and Economic Crime.

Output (3) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: Training Seminar on the implementation of the recent amendments to the Criminal Procedure Law with respect to criminal proceedings against corruption related offences, Skopje, 22-23 December 2004.

The aim of the two days seminar was to discuss, and share experiences among practitioners and Council of Europe experts on the application based on international standards of the recent changes on the Criminal Procedure Law. The activity brought together about 32 participants which were representatives from the following institutions: Ministry of Justice; Ministry of Interior; High Public Prosecution Offices in Skopje, Bitola, and Shtip; Prosecution Offices from eight other cities; the Supreme Court, Municipal Courts from eight other cities; the Courts of Appeal in Skopje, Bitola, and Shtip; the Bar Association; and the State Anticorruption Commission.

Participants furthered their acquaintance and knowledge from practical and international standard point of view in line with the new legislation on the following issues:

 Implementation of SIMS in accordance to European criminal procedure and human rights standards in order to enhance the disclosure and reporting of perpetrators of criminal acts and in particular, perpetrators of corruption and organized crime;

- The role of the Public Prosecutors within the Prosecutorial Unit for Fighting Corruption and Organized Crime in the framework of the amended Criminal Procedure Code and the new Law on the Public Prosecution Service;
- Measures for an efficient protection of witnesses, collaborators of justice and victims in order to stop
 the risks and the implications that may arise from their decision to cooperate with justice and for an
 increased efficiency in the fight against corruption and other heavy forms of crime;
- Implementation of the measures for enabling the presence of the convicted person and for a successful undertaking of the criminal procedure; competent institutions for the enforcement of those measures and review of their implementation;
- Implementation of the procedure for establishing a criminal responsibility and drawing penalties and other measures towards legal entities as perpetrators of criminal offences;

Activity 2:

Training Seminar on the Implementation issues on Corruption-Related Offences in Accordance with the newly enforced Criminal Code, Skopje, 9-10 February 2005.

The aim of this workshop was to train - as part of their continuous judicial training - about 50 members of the judiciary issues related to the practical implementation and legal interpretation of newly introduced corruption-related amendments (offences) to the Criminal Code. The participants at the seminar had the possibility to address their issues of concern and seek explanation, as well as to exchange opinions in terms of the application of these new provisions.

The discussions covered:

- Criminal Responsibility of Legal Entities;
- The application of the Penalty System including financial obligations;
- Alternative Measures;
- Confiscation of Crime Proceeds;
- Customs Fraud, Tax Evasion and Smuggling

The Council of Europe commissioned two local experts - academic staff of the Law Faculty at Skopje University, who had also been involved in the drafting process of these amendments -as trainers for this event.

The training event presented a welcome opportunity to practitioners for sharing first hand experience with the implementation of the recently amended Criminal Code, while receiving explanation with regard to the application of international standards concerning these amendments. Participants noted the need for further trainings of this kind, as well as for training on analysis and crime policy issues.

Activity 3: Workshop on the Newly Established Unit for Combating Corruption within the Public Prosecutors' Office, Mavrovo, 16-17 March 2005.

The aim of this workshop was to provide guidelines and best practices from other countries in the inception of the recently established Unit for Combating Corruption and Organized Crime within the Public Prosecutor's Office. The unit itself was established since November 2004.

In view of this, sample practices, guidelines, recommendations and some feedback were provided by two Council of Europe experts concerning the application of the relevant national legislation as well as European and international practices in the inception of similar bodies. In addition, issues related to international standards on money laundering were covered upon request by participants. The workshop

took a case study approach on the basis of which participants discussed criminal proceedings against economic crime when carried out against similar offices within the domestic legal system of "the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia".

Activity 4:

Three training seminars for court administration staff (law clerks) on anticorruption legislation and policies within the administration of the judiciary: Skopje, 6 June 2005; Stip, 14 June 2005; Bitola, 15 June 2005.

The purpose of the three serial seminars was to provide initial training and information on the existing anti-corruption legislation and policies in "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia". This training for the much neglected court and prosecution service administration staff in the country was the first of its kind. The three seminars were moderated by members of the State Anti-corruption Commission.

Each seminar had about 50 participants, who represented the court and prosecutorial services administration staff of the respective Courts of Appeal (Skopje, Stip, and Bitola). The large number of participants (exceeding the number of those invited) and the lively participation in the discussion confirmed the expected need for the inclusion of the administrative staff in the anti-corruption policies within the judicial reform process.

In addition, the following issues were addressed:

- The administration staff of the court and prosecutorial services need to be provided with the
 possibilities of giving their own inputs/recommendations when reforms take place (i.e., anticorruption judicial reform-related actions);
- The employment status of the staff of the administration needs to revised; and
- The lack of an appraisal system if not urgently introduced, will deepen the possibilities of abuse of power and violation of the code of ethics, as well as further increase nepotism within the existing system.

Output (4): Pilot Activity Supported (Update)

Activity 1:

Twining partnership consultative cooperation between the State Anticorruption Commission and their homologue institutions in Estonia and Italy. October 2005 and December 2005.

	Twining partnership con-	sultative cooperation	between	the	State		
Pilot Activity	Anticorruption Commission and their homologue institutions in Estonia						
	Twining partnership con-	sultative cooperation	between	the	State		
	Anticorruption Commission a	nd their homologue inst	itutions in Ita	aly.			
	Acquisition of best practices	and exchange of exp	erience in p	reven	tion of		
Objective	corruption from countries wh	ich have advanced and	compatible	exper	iences		
	in prevention and monitoring of corruption. Italy and Estonia have been						
	identified as potential count	ries due to their simila	rities at the	spec	ialised		
	anti-corruption services (ba	sed on policy advice	and law	enforc	ement		
	elements)						
Start-up	13 – 16 February 2006 2006 – Partnership and consulting workshop in						
	Estonia						
	March / April 2006 – Partnership and consulting workshop in Italy						
Duration Period	4 working days for each workshop						
	Travel costs to Estonia (9 pe	ersons x 300.00 EURO)	= 2,700	.00 EL	JRO		
Estimated Cost	Travel costs to Italy (8 perso	ns x 270.00 EURO)	= 2,160.	.00 El	JRO		

	P/diems for 2 c	ountries: (16 p	ors/ x 8 days >	(169 EURO) = 21,632.	00 EURO	
	Misc/Local expenses/expert = 2,500.00 EURO					
	Total: 28,992.00 EURO					
Available Funds	Pilot Activity all			URO		
Beneficiaries	State Anticorru					
Implemented by	PACO Impact N	•				
Implemented by	State Anticorru			ace from compatible of	vnorioneos	
Outputs	from Estor corruption; Setting up Exchange concerning	Setting up partnership and twining agreement;				
Inputs	counterpar Travel export of the Convisit.	ts in Estonia a enses covere nmission and	and Italy; d for 8 partici _l 4 members	nd individual meetings pants from the SACC (4 of its Secretariat) for 6	I members each study	
Actions/Activities	Time-line	Venue	Estimated	Expected	Notes	
Meeting with SACC to			Cost	Results/outcomes Need for activity re-		
re-confirm the need for such activity.	17 Nov 2004	Skopje	N/A	confirmed	$\sqrt{}$	
Coordination with the Estonian and Italian counterparts on the precise agenda of the study visits.	August 2005	Skopje	N/A	Concrete dates of the activities confirmed and study visits` agendas defined	V	
Workshop held in Estonia	13 – 16 February 2006	Tallinn, Estonia	11,305.00 EURO	Acquisition of best practices and exchange of experience in prevention and monitoring of Corruption. Twining of Offices		
Workshop held in Italy	April 2006	Rome, Italy	2,160.00 EURO	Acquisition of best practices and exchange of experience in prevention and monitoring of Corruption. Twining of Offices		
Impact Expected as of June 2006 and in the future						
Other general data						
	activities					
Quality Indicators	 Foreign experiences considered and modelled where appropriate in the implementation of national measures for suppression and prevention of corruption; Increased knowledge and information at disposal of SACC in managing their offices and initiating legislative nad policy advice reforms related to 					

	anti-corruption.
Quantity Indicators	 Number cooperation activities in the future between the two offices with each country;
	 Number of contacts with members of those offices on individual cases as per topic when being dealt by the SACC
Number of Users	8 persons per study visit (4 members of the SACC and 4 members of its Secretariat + one interpreter, when needed). The Commission's Secretariat members are also scheduled for participation to these activities as they are the permanent staff of the SACC that can stream institutional memory to the future members of the SACC once the current members' term finishes.

4.4.3 Observations/Comments (Update)

Compared to the initial phases of the project in "the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia", the period covered by this report (July 2005 to January 2006) marked a continued and enhanced efficiency and implementation of all planned activities with only slight adjustments in their timing with regard to the implementation of the pilot activities. The cooperation with all relevant counterparts and institutions in all cases has been very good and efficient and no major obstacles were noticed.

Additionally, progress as per each output of the PACO Impact project itself has been made and acknowledged by domestic and locally placed international professional circles.

Activities pending to be completed are the Anti-corruption Survey, whose final output is expected by end of February 2006 and the implementation of the Pilot Programme, i.e. the scheduled twinning activity with Estonia (13-16 February 2006) and in Italy (April 2006).

4.5 Kosovo (Serbia and Montenegro) (Update)

4.5.1 Project Orientation

There are several issues of concern linked with the UNMIK's reserved powers covering the preventive and repressive measures against corruption and organized crime. Such an arrangement possesses a challenge in adequately addressing and contributing to preventive measures against corruption in the short and medium term.

<u>Main Goal</u>: Support the drafting and then implementation of a new Anti-corruption plan for Kosovo, by supporting the institutional building of an opted anti-corruption agency, and its legal framework.

Expected actions: Initiate, develop, strengthen and implement the Anti-corruption Plan for Kosovo based on the newly introduced Anti-corruption Strategy. Assist and support the creation of anti-corruption mechanisms in Kosovo and their legal framework, which will ensure monitoring and reporting as well as provide the policy advice with respect to anti-corruption efforts in Kosovo. Support the current working Group by training and office equipment in order to increase their capacities and enable them to independently embrace anti-corruption reforms in Kosovo.

4.5.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) (Update) Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated

Activity 1: Launching of the Anti-corruption Strategy for Kosovo: Pristina, 24 May 2004

Following the endorsement of the Anti-corruption Strategy for Kosovo by PISG institutions, a launching Anti-corruption Conference organised by PISG institutions, mainly the Advisory Office for the Good Governance, Human Rights and Equal Opportunities took place on 24 May 2004. The Conference brought together about 50 participants from all different relevant institutions of UNMIK, PISG, and other international organisations in Kosovo, but also representatives from anti-corruption services from, Croatia, "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia", Bulgaria, and Slovenia as main counterparts in the process exchange of experiences and twining during the proves of drafting the Anti-corruption Strategy.

References and *modus operandi* on European and international standards for a way forward to this new Strategy were made during the speeches held by Wolfgang Rau, GRECO Executive Secretary, on behalf of the Council of Europe. Other opening statements were delivered by Bajram Rexhepi, former-Prime Minister of Kosovo, Jean Christian Caddy, Deputy of the UN Special Representative of the Secretary General, and Thiery Bernard Guile, Head of Center of the European Agency for Reconstruction.

The finalisation and the launching of the Anti-corruption Strategy for Kosovo, was considered as one of the most successful cooperation activities (initiated and followed up by Council of Europe PACO Programme since 2002), and later on in coordination with the assistance of UNMIK and GTZ.

The Conference concluded that an Anti-corruption Plan and an Anti-corruption Law to establish mechanisms necessary for monitoring and preventing corruption will be the next steps in the agenda of PISG in cooperation with UNMIK and through the assistance of PACO Impact project.

Activity 2: The establishment of the working group to draft the Anti-corruption Action Plan, Pristina, 27 August 2004.

The aim of this activity was initiate the policy dialogue and encourage UNMIK and PISG authorities on establishing an inter-ministerial working group which will carry on for drafting the Anti-corruption Action Plan based on the Anti-corruption Strategy of Kosovo. The meeting brought together 10 representatives from UNMIK and PISG institutions.

Issues discussed and agreed in this meeting were as follows:

- PISG and UNMIK Institutions acknowledge now the final Document of the Anti-corruption Strategy for Kosovo and for its implementation there is a need to initiate the drafting of its Action Plan;
- The establishment and endorsement of the 10 member Working Group in drafting the Anticorruption Action Plan;
- The members of the Working Group discussed and agreed upon the Workplan calendar of activities that sought to be carried out starting during September-October 2004; and
- Issues related to the preparations for the anti corruption campaign which will start officially on August 31, 2004 in cooperation with UNDP.

The outcome of the meeting was the decision that members of the new inter-ministerial working group, which was initially involved in drafting the Anti-corruption Strategy for Kosovo since October 2003, will be the responsible group for reviewing and drafting the Anti-corruption Action Plan. The working sessions will be led and coordinated by Kosovar experts in cooperation with Council of Europe expertise and assistance (when needed).

Activity 3: First workshop of the working to initiate the drafting of the First Part of the Anti-corruption Action Plan, Pristina, 25-26 October 2004.

The aim of the workshop was to provide the opportunity to all members of the Working Group to discuss tools and guidelines, as well as best practices. The Council of Europe expert and other representatives of UNMIK institutions as well as PISG presented their ideas about the modalities that need to be followed in the way forward for writing a comprehensive Action Plan. However, lack of action and need for a better coordination and commitment within the Working group itself was identified among several workshop attendees.

In view of this, during the month of November 2004 a different approach was agreed considering the conclusions of the workshop. The new approach which was concluded in agreement between the PACO Impact Management Team and the Advisory Office for the Good Governance, Human Rights and Equal Opportunities agreed on the following actions:

- Nomination of three local experts in Kosovo tasked to Draft the Anti-corruption Action Plan by the end of January 2005;
- Presentation of the Draft Action Plan by local experts to all working group members for review during 1-20 February 2005;
- Workshop to discuss the first Draft of Anti-corruption Action Plan on 21-22 February 2005.
- Inclusion of additional amendments and second review following the workshop of February 2005.
- Assessment and evaluation of the Second Draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan by Council of Europe experts in March 2005.
- Finalisation of the Anti-corruption Action Plan in April 2005.

During December 2004 and January 2005, three local experts were identified by the Advisory Office for the Good Governance, Human Rights and Equal Opportunities, as experts and through the assistance of PACO Impact Management Team initiated the drafting of the Anti-corruption Plan to be later on presented and then reviewed by the Inter-ministerial Anti-corruption Working Group which is now scheduled for 21-22 February 2005.

Activity 4: Second workshop for discussion on the draft of the Anti Corruption Plan, Pristina, 21 – 22 February 2005.

As of early November 2004, the two local consultants (representing two very pro-active NGOs in Kosovo) were engaged on drafting the Anti-corruption Action Plan for Kosovo, by cooperating and interviewing, as well as compiling feed back from all relevant institutions the inclusion of which was foreseen to be provided in the forthcoming Anti-corruption Action Plan. Following this three months exercise, the first draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan for Kosovo, was submitted to the Intergovernmental Working on Anti-corruption.

In view of this, a workshop with the participation of all relevant institutions from PISG, UNMIK, independent bodies, as well as representatives from civil society and media was held to review and provide the initial comments to the first Anti-corruption Action Plan for Kosovo.

The two days workshop which brought together about 60 participants created the possibility of the exchanges of the opinions, and recommendations from all involved institution representatives in terms of the technical content of specific measures as included in the draft Anti-corruption Action Plan.

In the final conclusions of the workshop, all participants agreed that, a second review from the consultants working group need to be made over the first draft by the inclusion of the following items:

- Incorporate all the specific institutional recommendations/changes and the feedback as received and suggested during the discussions of the workshop;
- Incorporate and provide additional changes that may be raised during other forthcoming communications with relevant institutions of PSIG and UNMIK with reference to additional measures that need to be inserted within the Draft Two of Anti-corruption Action Plan;
- Identify and indicate within the text of the Action Plan all UNMIK Reserved Power and Transfer Power related measures; and
- Incorporate additional sections/chapters in the Action Plan covering the Public Finance and Economy related anti-corruption measures.

In addition, it was decided that once the Second Draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan is finalised and approved by the Office of Good Governance (as the body in charge to coordinate all this process), the text will submitted to Council of Europe (PACO Impact) for an expert assessment not later than 15 April 2005.

Activity 5: Advisory Paper—Comments and Recommendations on the Second Draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan of Kosovo, Strasbourg, May 2005.

Following the submission of the Second Draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan for Kosovo by the Office of Good Governance to the Council of Europe, an advisory paper commenting/assessing and providing recommendations for improvements of the Draft was prepared by two Council of Europe experts/consultants during the month of May 2005.

The Advisory Paper²³ provides an evaluation and recommendations for improvements for each chapter/sector of the Anti-corruption Action Plan in relation with the Anti-corruption Strategy of Kosovo, which was endorsed only by the government of the PISG in May 2004.

-

²³ See, Advisory Paper, PC-TC(2005)7, May 2005.

In their conclusions, the experts express the following opinion:

"...Due to the fact that the draft Action Plan is substantially not following the structure of the draft strategy, not all measures from the draft strategy are handled in the draft Action Plan – the number of measures in the draft strategy is 151 and the number of measures in the draft Action Plan is only 110. That basically means that not all of the measures given in the draft strategy will be implemented. Therefore, the most serious problem of consistency appears which can be solved only through a thorough comparison on measures provided by the draft strategy and by the draft action plan and with the inclusion of all measures provided by the draft strategy into the draft action plan.

The fact that parallel reading of the draft strategy and of the draft Action Plan and their comparison is impossible could cause serious problems in understanding of the general approach of Kosovo towards corruption."

After submission of the Advisory Paper to the PISG and UNMIK authorities, it is expected that issues of concern as specifically listed in this paper, will be taken into consideration in order to further improve the Second Draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan. In view of this, the planned Round Table Discussion has been now postponed to take place in September 2005. This delay is also linked to other restructuring and reforms that are taking place currently within the PISG and their recently increased "transferred powers" as well as legislative developments in relation to anti-corruption efforts.

The promulgation of the draft Anti-Corruption Action Plan by UNMIK and PISG authorities is now scheduled for October 2005.

Activity 6 (Update): Round Table Discussion to seek the approval of all involved institutions on the Final Version of the Anti-corruption Action Plan, Pristina, 8 December 2005

A Round Table Discussion to introduce and seek approval from the PISG on the final version of the Anti-corruption Action Plan took place on 8 December 2005, in Pristina. The activity was co-organised by the Office of the Good Governance and PACO Impact project. The aim of the Round Table Discussion was to provide the final opportunity of introducing and commenting on the final text of the Anti-corruption Action Plan among all relevant institutions of PISG. Under the moderation of the Council of Europe and Office of the Goof Governance, and through this activity, the commitment of PISG to provide the timing of the endorsement of this important document, which by the end of this activity was promised to be January 2006 was sought by both Council of Europe and Office for the Good Governance.

Furthermore, this activity created also the opportunity to address other issues of concern, such the ongoing delays for the nomination of the Head of the Anti-corruption Council. It was stated that without the nomination of the Head of the Anti-corruption Council and the meeting and nomination of the other members, the initial establishment of Anti-corruption Agency would risk sever delays. PISG representatives committed that by mid-February the Head of the Anti-corruption Council of will be nominated from the Assembly of Kosovo, and accordingly the Anti-corruption Council will constitute its initial meetings.

Output (2) Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anticorruption plans strengthened

Comments:

The one activity under this output has merely been of a policy discussion nature and consisted also of support to the increase of the capacities of the Financial Investigation Unit (FIU). Since the beginning of the project, this issue has been attempted many times to be addressed to the office of the SRSG to Kosovo, in order to initiate a policy dialogue, but so far no results have been obtained. Nevertheless, it

should be acknowledged that the FIU mandate shall be terminated in February 2006, and any discussion on this matter will have budgetary implications which could determine its fate.

Therefore, during the mid-term review was suggested and agreed that this activity be replaced with another activity which could be supplementing the Output 4 activities aimed at providing assistance to the establishment of the Anti-corruption Services for Kosovo. This proposal had been initially supported by both Project Co-Directors in Kosovo.

Output (3) (Update): Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1 (Update): Round Table Discussion on issues of implementing the newly introduced Anticorruption Law which provides the legal framework of for establishing the Anti-

corruption Agency for Kosovo, Prisitna, 19 August 2005

Following the promulgation of the Anti Corruption Regulation No 2005 / 26 by the UN SRSG on 12 May 2005, a Round Table Discussion among representatives from all relevant local and international institutions, to discuss the primary issues of implementation of the new law took place on 19 August 2005, with the participation of Council of Europe expert Mr Drago Kos.

The activity was opened and praised as a good and forward step in the fight against corruption through the opening remarks of Mr Soren Jessen Petersen, UN SRSG, and Mr Bajram Kosumi, the Prime Minister of Kosovo.

Following the discussions and expert comments among all participants and representatives of the relevant institutions, the final conclusions and recommendations suggested that the following actions be taken into consideration by the inter-ministerial working group:

- The Office of Good Governance should remain to be the leading institutions and the liaisoning
 office with the Assembly with reference to all initial actions that need to be taken prior to the
 establishment of the new Anti-corruption Agency and in accordance to the new law;
- A budget proposal on the future Anti-corruption Agency was discussed and proposed to be followed up by the Office of Good Governance with reference to its submission and approval within the Kosovo Consolidated Budget Funds;
- A series of meetings and networking need to be taking place in order to increase the interaction between the Office of Good Governance and the Assembly of Kosovo and the relevant public institutions in order to finalise the nomination of the future members of the Anti Corruption Council in accordance with the new law;
- To initiate the drafting of secondary legislation and the terms of reference for all future staff members of the Agency and its other operational capacities in accordance to the new legislation;
- To establish, maintain and overview in a transparent way the criteria for the nomination of the Anticorruption Council members in accordance with the requirement as set by the new law and the international standards.

Following this activity, and upon the elaboration and issuance of a "Scheme of Actions" it was agreed that the above listed proposals and ideas be taken into consideration and concrete actions take place in parallel with a continuous policy dialogue in order for pushing forward the nomination of the Anti-

corruption Council members. These actions were both committed from the side of UNMIK/PISG authorities and Council of Europe/PACO Impact.

Output (4): Pilot Activity Supported (Update)

Activity 1 (Update): Provide assistance and support to the establishment of the new office of

ACA in Kosovo (including the purchase of equipment): Pristina, February

2006-July 2006.

In Kosovo (including the purchase of equipment) The technical assistance with the purpose of establishing the Anti Corruption Agency of Kosovo and its human resources, with preventive and law enforcement tasks, which will ensure the implementation of the anti corruption strategy. Start-up	5 11 / 5 / 11 / 11					
The technical assistance with the purpose of establishing the Anti Corruption Agency of Kosovo and its human resources, with preventive and law enforcement tasks, which will ensure the implementation of the anti corruption strategy. Start-up February 2006 Pebruary 2006 February 2006 February 2006	Pilot Activity					
Agency of Kosovo and its human resources, with preventive and law enforcement tasks, which will ensure the implementation of the anti corruption strategy. Start-up February 2006 Duration Period February 2006 - July 2006 Estimated Cost 20,000.00 Euro Available Funds Pilot Activity allocated funds: 45,000.00 Euro **Paccol Impact Management Team Unit;** **The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) **PACO Impact Management Team Unit;** **The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues; Acosovo Government **Purchase of Equipment** **Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); **ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. **Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; **Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Expected Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human **Purchase Advice on Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. **Provide initial training and rules for the st						
enforcement tasks, which will ensure the implementation of the anti corruption strategy. Start-up February 2006 Estimated Cost 20,000.00 Euro Available Funds Pilot Activity allocated funds: 45,000.00 Euro • The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Gender Issues; • The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) • PACO Impact Management Team Unit; • The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government • Purchase of Equipment • Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); • ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. • Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; • Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; • Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	Objective	· · ·				
Start-up February 2006 Duration Period February 2006 - July 2006 Estimated Cost 20,000.00 Euro Available Funds Pilot Activity allocated funds: 45,000.00 Euro - The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Gender Issues; - The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) - PACO Impact Management Team Unit; - The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government - Purchase of Equipment - Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); - ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. - Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; - Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; - Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities - Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es - Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	Objective	•			•	
Start-up February 2006			ks, which v	viii ensure the i	mplementation of the	e anti corruption
Duration Period February 2006 - July 2006	01.1					
Estimated Cost				`		
Pilot Activity allocated funds: 45,000.00 Euro The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Gender Issues; The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) PACO Impact Management Team Unit; The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government Purchase of Equipment Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Expected Results/outcom es		•	July 2006	j		
The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Gender Issues; The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) PACO Impact Management Team Unit; The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government Purchase of Equipment Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		45,000,005		
Gender Issues;	Available Funds	-				
The newly to be established Anti-corruption Agency (ACA) PACO Impact Management Team Unit; The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government Purchase of Equipment Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Expected Results/outcom es				vernance, Hun	nan Rights, Equal Op	oportunities and
PACO Impact Management Team Unit;	Beneficiaries		,		(* 4 (404)	
The Office of Good Governance, Human Rights, Equal Opportunities and Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government Purchase of Equipment						
Equal Gender Issues / Kosovo Government Purchase of Equipment Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anticorruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	lacate as a set of lace		•			
Purchase of Equipment Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anti-corruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Purchase of Equipment of Office as a specialised anti-corruption (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006 Pristina the corruption of Activity of Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	implemented by					oportunities and
Outputs Available tools for the establishment of ACA office as a specialised anticorruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human					nment	
Corruption agency (services); ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human					of ACA office on a	annoialiand anti
ACA starts to become operational as one of PISG/UNMIK Institutions by June 2006. Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Pristina N/A - List of pre-assessed needs. - Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity	Outroute				OF ACA OFFICE as a s	specialised and-
Inputs Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	Outputs					
Inputs Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Purchase and donation of Office Equipment necessary for a start up of the Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human			o become	operational as	one of Pisc/Univill	N Institutions by
the Anti-corruption Agency; Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Notes Pristina N/A - List of pre-assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity						
Technical Advice on drafting the necessary internal procedures and other acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	Innute					
acts in line with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Activity with the Law on Anti-corruption (still to be enforced), and international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Notes Notes Pristina N/A - List of pre-assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity	inputs					
international standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human International standards; Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Notes Notes Notes Pristina N/A - List of pre- assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity				-	•	
Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Provide initial training and rules for the staff of ACA. Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Pristina N/A - List of pre- assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity					maption (3till to be	chioroca), and
Actions/Activities Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Time-line Venue Estimated Cost Results/outcom es N/A - List of pre- assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity				•	e staff of ACA.	
Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Cost Results/outcom es Pristina N/A - List of pre-assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity	Actions/Activities					Notes
Pre-assessment of needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human	7.00.00.007.00.000		7 0 11 01 0			
needs and drafting of Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human February 2006 Pristina N/A - List of preassessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity					es	
Action Plan for Pilot Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human Activity assessed needs Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity	Pre-assessment of					
Activity with the Office of Good Governance, Human - Draft of Action plan for Pilot Activity	needs and drafting of	February 2006	Pristina	N/A	- List of pre-	
Office of Good Governance, Human plan for Pilot Activity	Action Plan for Pilot				assessed needs.	
Governance, Human Activity	Activity with the				- Draft of Action	
	Office of Good				plan for Pilot	
	Governance, Human				Activity	
Rights, Equal	Rights, Equal					
Opportunities and	Opportunities and					
Gender Issues	Gender Issues					
Preliminary March 2006 Pristina 30,000.00	Preliminary	March 2006	Pristina	30,000.00		
estimation of cost Euro	estimation of cost			Euro		
Procurement Pristina N/A Joint decision for Pending on	Procurement		Pristina	N/A	Joint decision for	Pending on

Danisian for	M			41	41 Off: -: -1	
Decision for	March 2006			the purchase of	the Official	
Purchase				<u>selected</u>	decision for	
				<u>equipment</u>	the creation	
					of the ACA	
Order, Purchase and	March 2006	Pristina	N/A	Purchase Order	Pending on	
Delivery of				Confirmed	the Official	
Equipment					decision for	
					the creation	
					of the ACA	
Draft Internal Rules	APRIL 2006	Pristina	1.500.00	Rules of	Pending on	
of Procedure for	AI NIL 2000	1 Houria	Euro	Procedure and	the Official	
ACA			Luio	other acts in	decision for	
ACA						
				place	the creation	
	of the ACA					
2-3 Induction	May -June	Pristina	3,000.00	Initial training	Pending on	
Training Course on	2006		Euro	accomplished	the Official	
ACA management		decision for				
for ACA staff					the creation	
					of the ACA	
Impact Expected in June 2006 and in the future						
Other general data	Strengthened ACA capacities in the fight against corruption together with					
	other law enforcement agencies in Kosovo					
Quality Indicators	The effective work of ACA in suppression of anti corruption					
Quantity Indicators	Number of employed and strained staff of ACA, number of reports, and					
	activities carried out from the day of becoming operational.					
Number of Users	The equipment and the office of ACA will be used by its sole personnel in					
	service to the anti-corruption services in Kosovo in accordance to the legal					
	framework. Expected number of employees which will be operating in these					
	offices will be: 10-20 staff members.					
	offices will be. 10-20 Staff members.					

4.5.3 Observations/Comments (Update)

The main up to date priorities for Kosovo and new Government are the implementation of the UN Standards for Kosovo and the initiation of the status talks which have been scheduled to start in February 2006.

Furthermore, UNMIK outlined a further transfer of reserved powers to the Provisional Self Institutions of Government (PISG). In view of this, two new ministries are established and they will become operational by March 2006, namely the Ministry of Justice and the Ministry of the Interior. The ongoing transfer of many other powers from UNMIK to the PISG is expected to bring additional counterparts for the PACO Impact project.

During the reported period, <u>progress</u> has been noticed under the activities of Output 1, Output 2 and Output 3 as follows:

- Increased cooperation and coordination between relevant institutions of the PISG and UNMIK in designing and decision-taking in the field of anti-corruption reforms;
- Finalisation and submission to the PISG of the Anti-corruption Action Plan of Kosovo;
- A better interaction between the relevant institutions of UNMIK and PISG during the process of finalising and launching of the Anti-corruption Action Plan, in a presence also of a more active participation of the civil society;

Promulgation – with a one year delay - of the new "Anti-corruption Law", which foresees the
establishment of a new Anti-corruption Agency for Kosovo under PISG authority and the talks of
implementing such law have marked their initial stage.

However, the following <u>issues of concerns</u> have presented obstacles for carrying out certain other activities under the Workplan:

- The continuous lack of human resources within the office of Good Governance at the PISG has created delays and caused not always continuous actions/communications with reference to the committed reforms (for instance the delay in finalising the Anti-corruption Action Plan);
- Although the new Anti Corruption Regulation (Law) was promulgated by SRSG, its delays have increased the delay on the nomination and further actions with respect to the nomination of the Anti-corruption Council and subsequently of the establishment of the Anti Corruption Agency. As such these actions require full endorsement of the Kosovo Assembly and political support from UNMIK. By these means certain activities as scheduled under Output 2 and Output 4 are pending on the finalisation and institutionalisation of these required actions;
- It has been noticed that there is still reluctance in participating or a limited participation from Kosovo, in particular from the PISG authorities, in some regional activities, as a political response/statement toward the official addressing of territory of Kosovo from the Council of Europe.

Accordingly, PACO Impact will consider the <u>following priorities</u> for the forthcoming period:

- Increase the policy dialogue with PISG and UNMIK authorities with reference to a final promulgation of the Anti-corruption Action Plan of Kosovo;
- Increase the policy dialogue with PISG and UNMIK authorities as well as with the Assembly of Kosovo in order to finalise the nomination of the full membership of the Anti-corruption Council in accordance to the new Anti-corruption Law; and
- Finalize implementation of the rest of activities under Output 3 and Output 4 as directly linked to the implementation of the new Anti-corruption Law.

4.6 Montenegro (Serbia & Montenegro) (Update)

4.6.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal</u>: Capacity building in drafting, monitoring, and coordinating anti-corruption programme and an action plan. Also, ensure capacity building in applying preventive corruption measures such as public education and debates, and other targeted workshops to increase substantive understanding of both repressive and preventive anti-corruption reforms carried out by ACIA while reported and monitored by the National Anti-corruption Commission (NAC).

<u>Expected actions</u>: Improved (and separate) Anti-Corruption Programme and draft action plan with comprehensive and measurable anti-corruption actions; support ACIA and establishment of NAC by strengthening their monitoring and managing capacities while providing the and inclusion of measurable indicators of success in the action plan; increasing policy and reform advising capacities, support institutional memory and information, as well as support production and publication of anti-corruption programme and its action plan.

4.6.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated

Activity 1: Consultancy workshop for the working group under the coordination of the

Ministry of Interior in order to finalize necessary changes in the Anticorruption and Organised Crime Programme, Podgorica, 13-14

September, 2004.

The main aim of this activity was to restructure and review the Programme on Combating Corruption and Organized Crime in Montenegro which has been in the status of reviewing since late December 2003. The two-day activity brought together all the members of the Working Group and representatives from the civil society, while involving two CoE experts (one under PACO Impact Project and one under CARPO project). The expert' recommendations during this workshop address issues related to the content and final form on how the Programme should be composed. Furthermore, the matrix form was presented to the 10 members of the WG and it was agreed that the form should be part of the new draft. As a result of this, a new form and outline of the Programme, by considering the insertion of a comprehensive Matrix later on were agreed and decided. Also the preliminary deadlines for finalising the draft Programme upon the recommendations and issues as agreed on this workshop were established and follow up review on line from both experts was agreed prior to a broader Round Table Discussion on this issue which took place in November 2004.

Activity 2: Round Table Discussion on the Finalization of the Draft Programme of Anti-corruption and Organized Crime for Montenegro: Podgorica, 15

November 2004.

The main aim was to discuss the final draft of the Programme on Combating Corruption and Organized Crime for Montenegro following its the recent changes based on the recommendations issued during the month of September and October by the working group in consultancy on line with the two Council of Europe experts.

The Round Table Discussion on the Finalization of the Draft Programme of Anti-corruption and Organized Crime for Montenegro, brought together about 20 participants, and involving a CoE expert. The activity was opened and attended by the Deputy Prime Minister of Montenegro (and the Minister of Interior)

Furthermore, the members of the Working Group, and all other representatives from other institutions civil society as well as representatives of the international organisations largely contributed with their views to further improving the new structure of the draft Programme. The CoE expert explained which parts of the Programme should need a last review/improvement, putting the emphasis on the Public Finances and the Private Sector. Furthermore, the special attention was given to the discussions related to the need for having a Matrix/Action Plan—especially issues related to the indicators of success.

Finally it was decided that the working group will reflect the last changes based on the Round Table Discussions and suggestions. In addition a policy advice paper²⁴ on addressing specific issues with respect to those necessary improvements that needed to be made was submitted after the activity by the two Council of Europe experts for their considerations. In light of this, it was agreed that the final version, will be submitted to the Government by the end of December. The drafting of the Anti-corruption Matrix will initiate on February 2005, and later on will go through the same procedures until it becomes a solid part of the AC and OC Programme.

Activity 3: Training Seminar on the tools and guidelines of "Implementation, monitoring and management of the Programme of Anti-corruption (and Organized Crime) for Montenegro: Podgorica, 16 November 2004.

The Seminar was aimed at discussing tools and guidelines which should lead a successful implementation, monitoring and management of an Anti-corruption Programme, with special attention toward the efficiency of Anti-corruption measures. This activity brought together 25 participants which included the working group members for drafting the programme and representatives from all relevant institutions which will be tasked under the current draft Anti-corruption Programme to take necessary institutional measures, and monitor the programme such as the Office for Anti-corruption Initiative (OACI).

Participants were provided guidelines and overview by two Council of Europe experts. Issues discussed and addresses were as follows:

- General analysis of the (draft) Programme's section with the emphasis on the anti-corruption specific measures;
- The legal and practical approaches that were followed in other countries (re-assurance of the political commitment; efficient law enforcement; good governance; and full participation of civil society);
- Assessing the needs and elements that need to be considered in and by a clear strategy on combating corruption that would, as its starting point, have an equal assessment of each case of corruption no matter who committed it – high level official or the ordinary citizen;
- Crucial items that need to be considered when drafting a Matrix of Action Plan with specific anticorruption measures.

In addition, following this seminar and upon the request of the participants, and especially of the working group (which drafted the Programme), the one of the Council of Europe experts was asked to provide in written the specific guidelines as discussed in the seminar. In view of this, a Policy Advisory Paper²⁵ on "Issues and practical implementation of a national anticorruption programme: methods of measuring its progress" was submitted to the Montenegrin authorities and for the consideration of the working group tasked to draft the Anti-corruption Matrix as scheduled during February 2005.

.

²⁴ See, also Policy Advice Paper, TP-51 (2004).

²⁵ See, also Policy Advice Paper, TP-50 (2004).

Comments:

It should be noted that activities planned to be carried under this output have been all carried out as reported. Since February 2005, (the government authorities continued to express their commitment several times for the endorsement and adoption of the *Programme of Anti-corruption (and Organized Crime) for Montenegro as* prepared by the working group. Only 28 July 2005), the government of Republic of Montenegro endorsed the Programme and subsequently this endorsement though with some delay will allow the initiation of the drafting of the Anti-corruption Action Plan.

Output (2) (Update) Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anticorruption plans strengthened

Activity 1: Assistance on strengthening the capacities of Office of the Anti-corruption Initiative to monitor and coordinate anti-corruption efforts and establish the PR component, Podgorica, July 2005.

Following the Initial meeting and discussions in early July between the OACI Director and PACO Impact management team with regard to this activity, and considering the limited resources that OACI receives from the state budget, finally it was decided that the modus of providing such assistance to OACI will be as follows:

- PACO Impact will fund at the amount of 4000 € the recruitment of a PR Officer who fully will be working under the auspices of OACI, and will report to both the Director of the OACI (PACO Impact Director) and PACO Impact management team/Council of Europe Office in Podgorica;
- The recruited officer (under OACI's rules of recruitment) will be fully supported and trained by Council of Europe in terms of PR strategy and implementation;
- OACI and PACO Impact will initiate and finalise the terms of reference for the PR strategy of OACI until September 2005, which will serve as terms of reference for the work of PR Officer; and
- The recruitment of the PR officer will take place during the month of September, and the period of recruitment will be until February 2006. Prolongation of such recruitment and assistance will be subject to the PACO Impact project continuation and its potential prolongation beyond February 2006.

Activity 2 (Update): 1st National Anti-corruption Conference, Podgorica, 19 October 2005.

The Conference (that was jointly organized with the UNDP and OACI) brought together about 63 participants from all responsible institutions and representatives from civil society and independent institutions. The conference involved one Council of Europe expert, to review and discuss the progress reached so far in the institutional and operational efforts in the fight against corruption in accordance to the new Programme of Anti-corruption (and Organized Crime). One of the main objectives of the Conference was to emphasize the importance of the Anti-corruption Action Plan that is needed in order to specify and provide the specific steps on the priorities of the government with reference to established policies in the fight against corruption. The activity was opened and attended by the new Deputy Prime Minister, of Montenegro who highlighted the government's recent efforts in the fight against corruption also stressing the fact that the Ministry of Interior as the authorised institution will initiate the drafting of the Anti-corruption Action Plan. The working group composed of different experts, and led by this institution and assisted by OACI will be in charge of the drafting process.

The conference was programmed into three panel sessions and respectively putting the emphasis on:

- a) measures that will influence the fight against corruption in economic development and poverty;
- b) measures and policies with reference to European and regional integration; and
- c) recent priorities concerning national anti-corruption initiatives.

Each session was facilitated by a presentation from experts representing different international organisations (i.e., Council of Europe, Transparency International, UNODC, UNDP and OSCE).

Furthermore, participants from the relevant national institutions (different ministries, Office of Supreme Public Prosecutor, courts, NGOs) actively took part in the discussions that followed the experts' presentations. The CoE Expert delivered two presentations with relevance to anti-corruption measures and policies, as well as tools and guidelines while drafting the Action Plan.

As a conclusion of the activity the following topics were addressed and highlighted as priorities in a short term:

- Designed joint efforts in drafting and (later on the implementation process) of specific anticorruption measures and policies;
- The need for laying down the concrete actions that will transform the Programme Against Corruption as a "living document" with commitments and responsibilities;
- The specific requirements on anti-corruption measures and action planning that will constitute the priorities and standards for a successful European integration;
- The sample of specific measures that must be undertaken by the relevant institutions in the fight against corruption;
- Ways and approached that need to be considered in order to further improve and cooperate with the NGO community; and
- The urgent need of actions which should increase public awareness and promote the fight against and the role of public in this process.

Activity 3 (Update):

Finalise selection of the PR Officer for OACI aimed at strengthening capacities of OACI to monitor and coordinate the implementation of the Anti Corruption Programme under the Public Relations component, Podgorica, 9 November 2005.

Following to the Memorandum of Understanding with OACI for the recruitment of the PR officer, during the month of November 2005, the recruitment process took place. The newly established PR component has already started to be fully operational as of 15 December 2005. This new sector within the Office of Anti Corruption Initiative will aim not only to strengthen and enhance the public relations component, through liaising with all relevant non-governmental organizations, and serving as the interfacing liaison between OACI and the public on lodging complaints and addressing them to relevant institutions, but also will conduct national and global research about ongoing efforts to develop impact and success indicators for anti-corruption reform that will contribute to the development of an operational level Action Plan for the implementation of the National Anti-corruption Program. The support of OACI on this initiative will continue until the end of July 2006, through the funding of PACO Impact.

Output (3) (Update) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1:

Seminar on Implementation Issues of corruption-related offences in Accordance with the newly adopted Criminal Code and Criminal Procedure Code, Podgorica, 8 February 2005.

The seminar aimed at providing a possibility for discussion among local practitioners and the Council of Europe expert of aspects and issues related to the implementation of the newly introduced criminal offences, and amendments to the criminal proceedings for corruption-related offences/violations.

The activity brought together 18 participants. The opening remarks on the implementation of the new Criminal Code and Criminal Procedure Code were given by the Supreme Public Prosecutor, who addressed issues of concern faced so far in practice when implementing the new provisions during criminal proceedings against corruption and other economic crime. Similar remarks were presented by other representatives of the Montenegrin public institutions (such as Ministry of Justice, Ministry of Interior, and representatives from the judiciary).

The Council of Europe expert (a Slovenian prosecutor) stressed the fact that the political commitment as well as the efficient law enforcement were of crucial importance for anti-corruption initiatives. With regard to Criminal Code, he put the emphasis on the lack of legal regulations regarding the corruption in the private sector. In relation to the Criminal Procedure Code, he explained that the use of SIMS should be clearly provided for by the law and be used in a unified way. He also addressed as a concern the lack of sub-legal acts and by-laws, which need to lead the proper use of SIMs. Special attention was given to the existing models and practices in the region and other western countries in view of implementing the standards set by international conventions in this field.

Participants stressed that additional and specific training is needed to be provided on the basis of recent changes of the legislation for law enforcement officers, and financial investigators as well as for prosecutors and judges.

Activity 2 (Update): Expert review on the Conflict of Interests Draft Law, Strasbourg, 1- 2 September 2005 in cooperation with OECD/SIGMA.

During the year 2005, the Parliamentary Working Group on Conflict of Interest was involved in drafting and then proposing a new draft law on the Conflict of Interests. The previous law has been subject to many critics and concerns with regard to meeting the international standards and the lack of tools of its implementation in practice. Therefore, following to the request of Montenegrin authorities and the submission of the first draft law from the Parliamentary Working Group, a joint written expert opinion of the Council of Europe and OECD/SIGMA experts commenting and assessing and the new draft took place during August – September 2005. The expert opinion was then finalised in September 2005 and submitted for consideration to the Parliamentary Working Group.

Activity 3 (Update): Round Table on reviewing the Draft Law on Conflict of Interest, Becici, 30 September – 1 October 2005.

In accordance with Workplan, the first roundtable discussion on necessary changes needed to be incorporated in the Draft Law on Conflict of Interests in order to make the law fully compatible with the Council of Europe and European standards was organized jointly by the Council of Europe (PACO Impact) and OECD/SIGMA. This event brought together about 10 participants and was opened by the Head of the Parliamentary Working Group on the Conflict of Interests Law presenting the following changes that were incorporated in the Draft Law:

- The extension of the list that will be covering the "public officials" and its broad definition;
- A broader definition of obligations of public enterprises;

- The obligatory transparency of the Governmental investments into private enterprises;
- The criteria for involvement of public officials in public companies and legal and physical persons that do business with government entities at any level;
- The establishment of the Commission for Prevention of Conflict of Interest, its composition, mandate and the sanctions that Commission is entitled to pronounce.

Furthermore, the Head of the Working Group addressed the problems in the implementation of the existing law which were mostly reflected in the inefficient work carried out by the current Commission (i.e. lack of power to enforce the existing legal provisions, vague definition of its mandate, etc.). In general, the Working Group tried to put the emphasis on the transparent, efficient and comprehensive implementation mechanism tools that should be expected to ensure the strong basis of successful governance through this law.

The OECD/SIGMA experts presented some of the models of different countries and highlighted the practical implementation of the legal framework of conflict of interests. Moreover, the experts expressed their concerns regarding the scope of the law, its possible overlapping with some other laws, as well as certain contradictions and legal inconsistencies. Therefore, they reviewed the draft law "article by article" and together with the Working Group members reformulated the final draft law on Conflict of Interests. Finally, it was decided that the Working Group members will reflect the last changes/recommendations suggested by the experts and submit the draft law for its reading to the respective Parliamentary Commission.

Output (4): Pilot Activity Supported (Update)

Activity 1: Provide assistance and support to the Strengther

Provide assistance and support to the Strengthening operational capacities and increasing effectiveness of the Special Prosecutor Office. Podgorica, February-April 2005.

	T
Pilot Activity	Strengthening operational capacities and increasing effectiveness of the
	Special Prosecutor Office
	Capacity building and support of the efficient functioning of the new structure
Objective	aimed at efficient criminal proceedings related to economic crime and
	corruption offences
Start-up	June 2005
Duration Period	June-December 2005
Estimated Cost	30,350.00 Euro ²⁶
	Pilot Activity allocated funds:45,000.00 Euro
Available Funds	Other Office Equipment allocated funds: 10,000.00 Euro
	Total Possible Funds: 55,000.00 Euro
Beneficiaries	Office of the Supreme Public Prosecutor, and the Office of Special
	Prosecutor
Implemented by	PACO Impact Management Team Unit;
	Office of the Supreme Public Prosecutor/Office of the Special Prosecutor
	 Increased and Efficient Criminal Proceedings against corruption and
	economic crime;
Outputs	Drafted and implemented Internal Rules of Procedure that will increase
	the quality and quantity of work performed;
	Efficient internal organization of the Special Prosecutor Office;
	 Increased office equipment capacities and number of users.

²⁶ This estimate is done without the inclusion of some other requested equipment (related to SIMs) which are still subject of estimation of price, and decision on the decision whether or not they should be purchased.

Purchase of the office equipment for the Office of Special Prosecutor; • Drafting/training and legal expertise on the Internal Rules of Procedure						
	for the newly		tructure.			
Actions/Activities	Time-line	Venue	Estimated Cost	Expected Results/outcomes	Notes	
- Provide legal expertise and	July 2005	Podgorica	4,000.00	- Recommendations for Improvement of		
assessment concerning the			Euro	the current system;	$\sqrt{}$	
application of the Law on Supreme Prosecutor/ and on				- Implemented new Rules of Procedure;		
Organised Crime Law				- The new structures are ready to be		
- Advice on the process of drafting			3,000.00 Euro	operational.		
the Internal Rules of Procedure and the institutional set up of the newly established Office of Special					$\sqrt{}$	
Prosecutor Publication and	May 2006	Pogdorica	1,500.00	Published Internal		
Informative Session to the staff on Internal Rules of Procedure		· ·	Euro	Rules of Procedure Informed Staff Members through sessions held		
Order of Equipments for the Office of Special Prosecutor	July-September 2005	Podgorica	16,850.00 Euro	Fully use of the equipment; Increase of the effectiveness of the staff work	$\sqrt{}$	
Additional training/actions that	June 2006	Podgorica et al	5,000.00	Increased capacities of Prosecutors, law		
will be determined after the assessment/recomme				as Money Laundering Agency		
ndations report has been agreed upon by				in investigating economic crime and		
the Montenegrin authorities.				corruption related offences.		
Impact Expected in Ju	ne 2006 and in the	e future				
Other general data	Increased efforts	law enforcem	ent in fighting	g corruption and econor	nic crime	
Quality Indicators	Enforced and imp	plemented Into	ernal Rules of	Procedures		
Quantity Indicators	Number of investigations and criminal proceedings compared to previous years; Number of Structures and Units at the office of SP that are fully operational,					
Number of Users	equipped, effective Increased number criminal proceedi	er of users at	the SP Offic	e in charge of investiga economic crime.	ation and	

Activity 2: Expert assessment/recommendation mission for the launch of the Pilot Project for Montenegro: Podgorica 4-6 July 2005.

The initial activity scheduled to be held under the Pilot Activity was an expert assessment mission to determine the current situation of the institutional and legislative set-up of those structures that would be the activity's beneficiaries. The assessment mission also intended to give advice on more specific assistance that could be provided during the course of the Pilot Activity.

Within the framework of the Montenegro Pilot Project, PACO Impact is expected to support the Supreme Public Prosecutor's Office, and more specifically, the Special Prosecutor on the following:

- Legal expertise and review of the existing legislation and system (recommending necessary new provisions and/or legal acts) with regard to drafting a new Law on Organised Crime for Montenegro;
- Advice on the implementation of the relevant provisions related to the work of Supreme Public Prosecutor's Office in relationship with the Special Prosecutor's Office;
- Advice on the on-going drafting process of the Internal Rules of Procedures;
- Discuss and agree on the purchase of office equipment in order to assist the furnishing of the newly established Department; and
- Advice on what specific technical assistance needs to be provided through the implementing phases such as: training of staff, publications, follow-up legal expertise, etc.

During the mission, the experts' team provided comments, analysis, and recommendations for future actions on:

- Issues concerning the prosecution of organised crime;
- Issues concerning the prosecution of corruption and money laundering;
- Issues concerning the Department of the Special Prosecutor; and
- Issues concerning the Internal Rules of Procedures.

The recommendations as provided on the Assessment and Recommendations report suggest follow up actions which require the approval of the Supreme Public Prosecutor, political will, and accordingly, could be implemented under the framework of the Pilot Activity by adding some additional items, within the allocated funds.

The Council of Europe Experts' Report on the "Assessment and Recommendations regarding the Strengthening of the Prosecutorial Services in Montenegro"²⁷, will be formally submitted by the Council of Europe to the Office of the Supreme Public Prosecutor in late July 2005, and it is hoped that feedback will be received in order to revise the Action Plan of the Pilot Activity for the continuation of any additional action.

Activity 3 (Update): Purchase of office equipment for the newly established Office of Special Prosecutor, Podgorica, July-August 2005.

This main goal of this activity is to provide and assist the newly established Office of Special Prosecutor with material support in order to enhance operational capacities and increase effectiveness of their work. In view of this the following equipment were purchased under Council of Europe procurement rules:

Equipment	# of Units
Purchase of file cabinet	2
Purchase of mobile phones	2

²⁷ See, Council of Europe experts' Report, PC-TC(2005) 12, July 2005

Purchase of printer	1
Purchase of scanner	1
Purchase of laptops	2
Purchase of shredder machine	1
Purchase of photocopying machine	1
Purchase of DVD system	1
Purchase of video recording camera	1
Purchase of digital camera	2
Purchase of video recorder	1
Purchase of TV set	1
Purchase of fax machine	1

Activity 4 (Update): Submission of the Advisory Paper on the Assessment and Recommendations regarding the Strengthening of the Prosecutorial Services in Montenegro, Podgorica, 17 October 2005.

The Advisory Paper was a follow up of experts' assessment/recommendations mission within the Pilot Project for Montenegro conducted in early July 2005. The report was delivered to all relevant institutions in mid October 2005.

Accordingly, this report provides an assessment and recommendations on strengthening the prosecutorial services and highlights specific issues related to organized and economic crime such as: the existing definition of organized crime, search, seizure and confiscation of crime proceeds, criteria on the use of SIMs when corruption and money laundering investigations are taking place. Other parts of the report were dedicated to the proper functioning of the newly established structure of Public Prosecutor Office and guidance to drafting the Internal Rules of Procedure in order to further improve the prosecutors' work performance.

After its submission, it is expected that issues of concern namely the Council of Europe specific recommendations on the above issues will be taken in consideration during the procedures on drafting the amendments to the Criminal and Criminal Procedure Codes and the Rules of Procedure for Prosecutorial Services.

Activity 5 (Update): Submission of the Technical Paper (Model) on Case Management for Prosecutorial Services as good practices from the region to Ministry of

Justice, 8 November 2005.

A Technical Paper of the Council of Europe on "Case Management Reform Aiming to Prevent Corruption within the Prosecutorial Services" which represents a proposed system of reform for case management for prosecutorial services on one of other project areas as a Pilot Activity was delivered to the Montenegrin Ministry of Justice upon their request in early November 2005. The document provides some good practices and aims at prevention of corruption and non-professional conduct within the prosecutorial services and will be of help to the Ministry of Justice and to the assigned Working Group while drafting the Internal Rules of Procedure for Prosecutors.

4.6.3 Observations/Comments (Update)

The third implementation phase of PACO Impact Project in Montenegro was efficient as far as it concerns the anti-corruption reform process. <u>Progress</u> has been made with regard to activities under Output 1 with the establishment of the Working Group assigned to draft the Action Plan of the Programme against Corruption and Organized Crime. This multilateral Working Group (composed of

representatives from relevant public institutions and civil society community) has already had its preliminary meeting and first steps initiating the Action Plan have been taken already.

The activity of PR component under Output 2 aimed at strengthening OACI capacities took place in November-December 2005. The new component is fully operational. With respect to Output 3, the draft law on Conflict of Interest has already been submitted to the Parliament, and is pending for adoption while is undergoing Parliamentary Commission reading. The Pilot Project under Output 4 is developing quite smoothly; but the process is still pending on the finalisation of the Internal Rules of Procedure for Public Prosecutors.

The following issues are obstacles to the implementing a number of activities as envisaged:

- Possible delays in organising some of the activities foreseen in the workplan due to the recent Montenegro train accident and the soon coming Referendum on the legal status of Montenegro in relation with Serbia, which is expected to take place in Spring 2006. This might cause a slow down of activities and relevant reforms;
- Delays in drafting and adoption of the Anti-corruption Action Plan (Matrix). However, such an activity
 was not envisaged and firmly committed under the PACO Impact workplan;
- Delays and potential problems on the adoption and later on in the implementation of the new Law on Conflict of Interests. This process involves many institutions, thus making the situation more complex;
- The still capacities of the law enforcement institutions (i.e., the Supreme Public Prosecutor, the Special Prosecutor for Organised Crime, Police, the Office for the Prevention of Money Laundering) still need to be strengthened to implement the new legislation in place.

Considering the current situation, PACO Impact will consider as priorities the following actions:

- Continue and intensify the policy dialogue with the Office of the Prime Minister of Montenegro and the EC Delegation in Belgrade (which also covers Montenegro), in order to raise the awareness of the needed political support for relevant reforms, namely the drafting of the Anti-corruption Action Plan;
- Provide support and technical assistance directly to the on going efforts in drafting, adoption and subsequent implementation Anti-corruption Plan (Matrix);
- Support the awareness raising campaigns on the proper implementation of the new Law on Conflict
 of Interests including here any necessary trying needs that may become evident after the adoption
 of the new law; and
- Continue to support the Office of Special Prosecutor in drafting the Internal Rules of Procedure as well as providing assistance in delivering training for the administrative staff subsequent to the adoption of the new Internal Rules.

4.7 Serbia (Serbia and Montenegro) (Update)

4.7.1 Project Orientation

<u>Main Goal</u>: Drafting of anti-corruption strategy and an action plan. Educating and raising awareness amongst legal drafters and stakeholders in anti-corruption reforms about international and European standards and practices in repressing and preventing corruption.

<u>Expected actions</u>: Drafted anti-corruption strategy and an action plan; strengthened capacities of the anti-corruption services, improved understanding of substance of international and European standards and practices in repressing and preventing corruption.

4.7.2 Activities by Outputs

Output (1) (Update) Anti-corruption plans improved or elaborated

Activity 1: Establishment of the Working Group to draft the National Anti-corruption

Strategy under the coordination of the Ministry of Justice: Belgrade, July-

August 2004.

The aim of this activity was to initiate firstly the political dialogue among all relevant institutions in establishing a working group with major membership from the Anti-corruption Council (ACC), but at the same time be coordinated and led by the Ministry of Justice as the institution in charge for reform in the field of anti-corruption. Thus, during July several individual meetings took place between Ministry of Justice and ACC, which concluded on the issuance of a Decision from Ministry of Justice appointing members to the very first Working Group to be in charge of drafting the National Anti-corruption Strategy (and later on the Action Plan). The Working Group is composed of competent officers from various relevant institutions namely: Ministry of Justice, ACC, Ministry of Interior, Ministry of Finance, Public Procurement Office, Association of Judges, and civil society. The Working Group is now composed of 15 members, and initiated its work in the end of August 2004.

Activity 2: Constituting Workshop to initiate the Drafting of the National Anti-corruption Strategy. Belgrade, 22-24 September 2004.

Following initial reviews of potential approaches on writing the National Anti-corruption Strategy, the working group organised its first Constituting Workshop which aimed at the following issues:

Main objective was assistance to the WG re drafting of the National Strategy (NS). The issues to be addressed in particular:

- Presentation of the proposed guidelines to be decided and than followed in the drafting process;
- Elements that need to be included in the outline of the NS, as well as headings / sub-headings;
- Methodology of drafting;
- Monitoring of the drafting process; and
- Finally exchange views and opinions with the Council of Europe expert on drafting the very first outline of document.

The three day activity brought together 22 participants which represented all relevant institutions, and participated actively through out the entire exercise in deciding the modalities, and approaches of writing a strategy. As a result of this exercise, an outline (skeleton) of how the future National Anti-corruption Strategy will composed was produced and agreed upon all participants. As such the outline was decided to be the leading headline document for the Working Group drafters on certain sections. A calendar of work and necessary Technical Workshops with Council of Europe experts assisting the preparatory and

information phase for the carrying out of the process of drafting within the framework of the PACO impact project was also decided among all members of the Working Group.

Activity 3: Technical Workshop (no.1) on the guidelines that could be used during the drafting of the Anti-corruption Strategy: Belgrade, 6-7 October 2004.

This technical workshop brought together 15 the members of the drafting Working Group and was aimed to provide discussions and advice focused on the following issues:

- the content, methodology and format of approval of the Strategy:
- the approach of drafting a technical document as such where multi-disciplinary input is required;
- the relation between the National Anti-corruption Strategy and Action plan as closely linked and if they will be two separate documents, than the Implementation Chapter in the Strategy should contain clear specification who / which body will be in charge of monitoring the implementation as well as the composition and jurisdiction of that body;
- the inclusion of risk assessment regarding the implementation process and its status;
- the issue of responsibility and accountability of various state bodies/organs/authorities tasked to implement and report on the Action Plan measures;

During this workshop, the issue of methodology was accentuated as the most important one considering the stage of the drafting process for the working group. It was decided that a uniform methodology needs to be applied, and that the Strategy must not be too excessive. In addition attention was given to the fact that each Chapter should or may start with general principle/s based on the international standard/s, and then be followed by brief analysis of the current state of play and than forwarding the necessary strategic plans, and recommendations. While as per the issue of Action Plan it agreed that as such it need to be as the one of making the Strategy operational and effective. The fact that some duplication may be foreseen in the implementation phase, requested to stress one more time the need to have the body in charge of monitoring the implementation of the Strategy and Action Plan. Finally it was decided that as per importance of such document, the ooption of a Parliamentary submission, discussion and then adoption of the National Anti-corruption Strategy should be the most preferable one.

Activity 4: Technical Workshop (no 2) on the legal framework and the mandate of the ACC: Belgrade, 9 October 2004.

This technical workshop brought together 25 participants from the relevant institutions including here all the members of the drafting Working Group and was aimed to provide discussions and advice focused on the following issues:

- current status/position of the ACC;
- potential needs for a specialised body;
- the ACC's role and position in relation to other already existing bodies, and the future Strategy; and
- the role of bodies which are tasked on monitoring and reporting the implementation of the Strategy (and the Action Plan).

Under the moderation and guidance of the Council of Europe experts all participants agreed on the following issues and as such they should be taken into consideration during the process of drafting the National Anti-corruption Strategy and its Action Plan, and be presented to the government for its approval:

- that there is an evident need for separate, specialized, independent body;
- that the legal framework regulating such body, shall be only by law and not by regulation or other secondary acts:
- that further particularities and potential features of the "specialized body" need to be further addressed and discussed in depth;

that the modus operandi of enacting a separate Law on corruption, like in some other European states, needs to be tackled in view of the constitutional law safeguards.

In conclusion, it was decided that the above agreed issues among experts will be addressed throughout the Strategy drafting process and more in depth and appropriate analysis will have to serve as policy advice to the government in order to approve such new reform.

Activity 5: Technical Workshop (no.3) on the issues related to Prevention of Corruption: Belgrade, 19-20 October 2004.

This technical workshop brought together 20 members of the drafting Working Group, which with assistance of the Council of Europe experts analysed thoroughly the following prevention strategy related issues:

- Seven basic requirements and their inter-relation aimed at a comprehensive and efficient preventive anti-corruption strategy, namely: political will, values in the law, distinction between good governance and anti-corruption measures, co-ordination of the efforts, public support, resources, and endurance.
- The relation between enforcement, prevention and community relations;
- The concept of prevention and its subsystem[s];
- Possible procedures and modalities that need to be taken into consideration in order to eliminate the possibilities for corruption, and make every part of the system corruption-proof.

During this technical discussion workshop, the working group members were provided with the necessary basic tools and guidelines on the requirements that need to be fulfilled in order to manage and provide a successful National Anti-corruption Strategy. In addition, the members of the working group were provided with the knowledge and practices of establishing the linkage (within the Strategy and its implementation) on enforcement – prevention – community relations, as well as the ways in gaining public support and participation throughout the process.

In view of the above stated issues, and upon the request of the members of the Working Group, the Council of Europe expert provided a Policy Advice Paper²⁸, were more in depth analysis and the way forward aimed at ensuring the inclusion of these issues during the process of drafting as made available.

Activity 6: Technical Workshop (no.4) on the issues related to the role of Law Enforcement Agencies in the fight against corruption: Belgrade, 30 October 2004.

This technical workshop brought together 15 members of the drafting Working Group, which with assistance of the Council of Europe experts analysed thoroughly the following law enforcement strategy related issues:

- Current practical and legal capacities of the law enforcement agencies to fight corruption in Serbia;
- The status of the existing department for combating organized crime at the Ministry of Internal Affairs;
- The issues of the obsolete Law on Police which is non existent yet;
- The relation between police and prosecutors (plus the Criminal Procedure Code aptitude); and
- The potential relation of the police with a new specialized body whose establishment had been proposed and technically agreed at the previous technical workshops.

²⁸ See, also Policy Advice Paper, TP-47 (2004).

Participants agreed that the law enforcement issue needs to re-visited again especially in light of the new upcoming Law on Police. In addition participants addressed the issue that the police and the investigative power with respect top corruption probably should stay within police, but upon the condition that improvement in the number of areas need to be assured. Finally, with respect to this topic there has been no definite position reached as far as it deals with the authorization of the new specialised anticorruption body to monitor, coordinate, and have secondments from and with police structures at the Ministry of Internal Affairs.

Activity 7: Working group session to review the first draft of the National Anticorruption Strategy of Serbia. Palić, 12-14 December 2004.

During 12 to 14 December 2004 the Working Group established to draft the National Anti-corruption Strategy met in Palić and through lengthy discussion sessions, reviewed the first integral draft of the Serbian Anti-Corruption Strategy on the basis of submitted proposals from different Serbian authorities.

The technical review with the assistance of the Council of Europe expert included that every specific item of the strategy, especially the anti-corruption measures needed, was discussed in length and checked according to its compliance with other parts of the strategy. Certain unnecessary parts were deleted in order to prepare as precise and concise document as possible. There was an unanimous agreement with all parts of the document.

In addition to the technical review of the given draft text, the following preliminary issues were addressed and agreed:

- the first draft of this strategy when finalised technically with be submitted to all the relevant ministries and the parliamentary political parties for additional proposals and comments;
- after the inclusion of the relevant proposals, the final draft will be prepared and submitted to the government (by early February 2005) for approval;
- since the format of texts delivered by different ministries had considerable differences, the structure
 of the draft was discussed first and some guidelines in this concern were adopted basically
 already accepted structure was agreed upon again;
- having in mind conclusions from the October 2004 meeting in Belgrade probable form, position, authorities and powers of the future central anti-corruption institution in Serbia were discussed;
- the decisions brought were almost the same as those during the October meeting, thus they were included in the text of the strategy.

At the end of the Working Group Session it was agreed that the Ministry of Justice of Serbia will make the last reading of the document which then will be submitted to the ministries and political parties for their comments and inputs if necessary.

Activity 8: Conference to present and review the Final Draft of the National Anticorruption Strategy of Serbia: Belgrade, 31January 2005.

The conference, opened by Deputy Minister of Justice of Serbia Mr. Branislav Bjelica, and was attended by members of the ACC, officials from various ministries, judges, and private sector and NGO representatives. The purpose of this conference was to discuss and comment on each of the sections of the final draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy, with the assistance of the two Council of Europe experts, and to agree on the way forward.

After brief opening statements by the representatives of the Council of Europe and the OSCE, participants commented on each section of the Strategy. The two Council of Europe experts added their comments as necessary.

Even though the final draft was considered as such the certain issues were addressed as important for further improvement by the Council of Europe experts on the following way:

- Anti-corruption and good governance
- Application of the National Anti corruption Strategy
- Features of the independent anti-corruption body
- Policy decision not to give the anti-corruption body an investigative mandate
- Relationship with the Anti-Corruption Council
- The way forward and next steps

In addition during the discussions it was envisaged that the addressed issues in accordance to the above topics will be improved/included and after the endorsement of the Strategy by the Legislature, the Government will be asked to approve the Action Plan. The draft law amending the penal code and establishing the new body will then be introduced into the Legislature. While the draft law is under consideration in the Legislature and in anticipation of its enactment, the identification and selection of the head of the new body, his/her deputy and the senior personnel should be done. Appointment can then immediately follow the promulgation of the new law.

Finally, according to all this process, progress in the development and implementation of Serbia's national anti-corruption strategy has been now described as steady but hardly rapid. Also, it has been difficult to gauge the strength of political will to get to grips with the problem. The final draft of National Anti-corruption Strategy following this conference and its further agreed improvements is to be considered by the Government before the Legislature's approval is sought. This is expected to give some indication of the Government's determination to take effective steps.

Comments (Update):

All activities planned under this output have been implemented. At its 74th Session, held on May 26, 2005 the Government of Serbia adopted its Decision on the "Endorsement of the National Strategy for the Fight against Corruption". This Decision has been interpreted by the Government as a step forward to becoming an EU member. The Strategy has been sent to the National Assembly as a "first document to provide mechanisms for the fight against this (corruption) evil".

Further on, the National Anti-corruption Strategy has been finally adopted by the National Assembly on 8 December 2005, almost a year after its public presentation (January 2005) and 7 months after the endorsement by the Government (May 2005). The Strategy was adopted in the form of Parliament Decision as "Decision on determining the National Strategy" in its integral version.

Prior to the adoption of the Strategy from the Parliament a number of actions had been undertaken with the aim to provide additional impetus for the Parliament to adopt the Strategy in due course. Meetings and dialogue facilitated by the Council of Europe, and other international and local partners (i.e., the Judges Association, the Prosecutor's Association, the Department for Organised Crime at the Ministry of Interior, Transparency International, BETA News Agency, and especially the office of the EC Delegation in Belgrade) have been taking place as planned to contribute to an acceleration of the process of endorsement. This process also included special meetings of experts with the Parliamentary Committees and Party Groups to explain and increase the information on strategy and its importance of being adopted.

When presenting the National Strategy to the Parliament, the Minister of Justice reminded the MPs that the "adoption of the Strategy is the obligation determined and listed in the Action Plan for the Accession to the EU and its aim is to prevent i.e. diminish corruption to the bearably level that will not jeopardise the society and its institutions".

Currently, the Ministry of Justice through twinning projects with Slovenia and Germany has initiated the drafting of the Action Plans accordingly to the Strategy.

Output (2) Institutional mechanisms for the monitoring and management of anticorruption plans strengthened

Comments (Update):

Various activities held in the first half of 2005 under Output 1, but also associated to Output 2, contributed to the progress, although this was only small in relation to the establishment of a mechanism for implementation and monitoring of the National Anti-corruption Strategy. The Parliamentary "Decision on determining the National Strategy" envisages the enactment of the legislation of an independent and autonomous anti-corruption body. The drafting of the Law is undergoing under the Output 3, thus clearly showing that all Outputs within PACO are interwoven. It is worth wile mentioning that the possibility of discussing and elaborating on different models of Anti-corruption services in SEE during the Regional Thematic Seminar on "Strengthening anti-corruption services and their role in implementing national anti-corruption strategies" in Spring 2005, as well as the distribution of the Council of Europe publication on the "European Models of Anti-corruption Services" provided a good background for all interested parties in Serbia. The same goes for the Regional Thematic Seminar dedicated to the Anti-corruption Services and implementation of Conflict-of-Interest Laws, held in Belgrade, November 2005. The later activity, created a new momentum for the Project Areas and those services: namely enabling them to learn on the on-going experiences and best practices by also introducing another level of monitoring tools--indicators of success and guidelines in asserting attitude and perception surveys with relation to corruption.

Output (3) (Update) Draft laws/amendments available to bring the criminal legislation on corruption in line with European standards

Activity 1: Expert opinion²⁹ on the "Law on Prevention of Conflict of Interests in Discharge of Public Office" (Published in the "Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia" no. 43/2004, 20 April 2004. Strasbourg, October-December 2004.

By the request of the Ministry of Justice and in accordance to the workplan of activities under PACO Impact an expertise opinion of existing new legislation in place on Conflict of Interests was initiated during October –December 2004. More specifically, a joint written expert opinion of CoE and OECD/SIGMA experts was submitted for consideration to the Serbian authorities in the end of December 2004. The joint experts' opinion provides comments and analysis of several issues of concern for the Serbian authorities with respect to the implementation of this law.

In short the expertise opinion findings are as follows:

- That the law represents a solid base for the establishment of a higher level of integrity of Serbian functionaries:
- A strict implementation of the law would represent a major achievement in the country where public functionaries were never perceived as the most ethical profession
- Also that some major flaws can be found in the law and that they can cause the law to become meaningless through its implementation.
- The rules on the establishment and functioning of the Republic Board somehow seem to be rigid
 and the Republic Board has too many discretionary powers, especially related to procedural issues

٠

²⁹ See, also Expert Opinion, TP-49 (2004).

The expertise opinion concludes with the recommendation that the functioning of the Republic Board or other institutions with similar powers should be considered as the most significant element in the proper implementation of the law. In addition recommended possible solutions for further improvement of the law itself may need to be soon addressed in order that the law is brought to life as soon as possible.

Comment (Update):

Although the Law has been passed in April 2004, the Republican Board started functioning in January 2005. In its information on the activities undertaken from January till December 2005, the Board specified also the co-operation with the Council of Europe, among other regional and international institutions, as well as the initiative to amend the existing Law. Council of Europe's expertise, as well as Regional Thematic Seminar that addressed the Implementation of Conflict-of-Interest law, held in Belgrade, November (in co-operation with the OECD, with participation of two additional delegations Moldova an Romania) helped the Board to formulate its proposals with respect to the amending of this Law.

At the moment, due to the fact that Anti-corruption Law is in preparation, the issue of relationship and competences, and the role of an Anti-corruption Body and the existing Republican Board are still not resolved and needs to be defined. Currently, the Republican Board as involved to participate in this process has submitted its suggestions and proposals believing this to be the adequate moment to initiate changes.

Activity 2:

Expert opinion³⁰ on the "Law on Financing of Political Parties" (Published in the "Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia" No. 72/2002, 18 July 2003; Strasbourg, December 2004-January 2005.

By the request of the Ministry of Justice and in accordance to the workplan of activities under PACO Impact an expertise opinion of existing new legislation in place on Financing of Political Parties was initiated during December 2004-January 2005. The expert opinion was submitted to the Serbian authorities for their consideration in the end of January 2005.

In short the expertise opinion findings are as follows:

- That the "Law on financing of political parties" of the Republic of Serbia is a good piece of legislation in general;
- unequal position of political parties seem to need further improvements;
- that there is a potential that despite of having this law, a weak enforcement system due to the nonexisting Commission can generate.

The expertise opinion concludes by drowning the attention to the fact that the addressed deficiencies should be considered as essential requirement for the improvement of the general value of the political parties and electoral financing in the Republic of Serbia.

Therefore, the Serbian authorities have been urged to consider the idea of reviewing/amending/improving the law, also in order to introduce as soon as possible the *Commission* or any other institution responsible for the monitoring of financing of political parties and financing of electoral campaigns. The text of the law itself will not bring any changes by itself. The rules have to be followed by their implementation in practice. This can be ensured only through an efficiently functioning institution, which will set the standards and monitor their implementation. The establishment of such institution is important also because through its functioning other possible deficiencies of the system will

³⁰ See, also Expert Opinion, PC-TC (2005)4.

be identified and then further improvements could be introduced. Until then, the financing of political parties and electoral campaigns in Serbia will be far away from the theoretical goals set by this current law.

Comments (Update):

With regard to the expert opinion on the existing "Law on Financing of Political Parties", the opinion has now been reviewed by the Ministry of Justice and the National Assembly's Committee for Finance for consideration and action. In spring 2005, the National Assembly's Committee for Finance established a Working Group to initiate amendments aimed at improving the existing law. It has been already requested to the Council of Europe PACO Impact, that once the draft amendments are finalised in accordance with the suggested recommendations by the expert opinion, a second expert opinion would be needed to assess the new draft.

Unfortunately due to the burdensome year for the Serbian Parliament (hundreds of laws and decisions adopted) the Working Group did not achieve a substantive progress to manage in initiating the discussions for the review and amendments as suggested by Council of Europe experts to this law. It is hoped that, such initiative will be taken upon during this year.

Activity 3 (Update): Drafting of the Anti-corruption Law, Belgrade, September - December 2005

Following the adoption of the National Strategy a working group, led by the Ministry of Justice was tasked to initiate the draft the Anti-corruption Law. Members of the Working group are representatives of the Ministry of Justice, Anti-corruption Council, prosecutors, judges, Organized Crime Department within Ministry of Internal Affairs (SBPOK), NGOs, media, amd the Republican Board for the Conflict of Interest.

Prior to the drafting sessions of the working group, the Council of Europe expert Mr Drago Kos, prepared and discussed "The Guidelines for Drafting the Anti-corruption Law", in order to facilitate the work of the working group. Those Guidelines were discussed on 3 September 2005.

Guidelines outlined two options that could be possible when drafting the Law considering the legal framework and the institutional setting in Serbia:

- Option one: to focus on the status / role, authority, composition and budget of the new body with the minimal changes in other laws; or
- Option two: to regulate the whole area / field of the prevention of the corruption.

The possibility to combine two options was also debated. During the presentation the importance of having truly independent and autonomous body was agreed upon. In addition the emergent need to determine and clearly define the relation between the existing relevant anti-corruption bodies in particular The Republican Board for the Conflict of Interest and Anti-corruption Council was emphasized.

In view of this, during the month of December 2005, upon the request of the Ministry of Justice, a draft outline of the new Law on Anti-corruption was prepared with the full assistance of the Council of Europe expert Mr Drago Kos. By the end of December 2005, the draft law was distributed to all members of the Working Group (established and led by the Ministry of Justice), for review and preparations for discussions in the upcoming month of January 2006. Subsequently, five technical and small expert's meeting of the Working Group took place to review and analyse the draft law thoroughly.

In January 20th, 21st and 23rd, 2006 a larger expert Working Group meeting took place with the Council of Europe expert in order to exchange options and different approaches after the review of the first draft from all members of the Working Group and representatives from the relevant institutions. At this

meeting it was decided that specific provisions covering issues of the Conflict-of-Interest Law and Financing of Political Parties which for the moment are regulated by specific laws and subsequently recommended improvements by Council of Europe experts. In view of this, another follow up meeting with local and Council of Europe experts to address the issue of transfer of the two separate laws provisions and their potential abolition has been proposed to take place in February 2006.

Output (4): Pilot Activity Supported (Update)

Activity 1: Developing the Pilot Activity Action Plan for establishing and introducing a new

Integrity Plans Manual for judiciary: (District Court and District Prosecutors

Office), Belgrade, June 2005.

Pilot Activity	Developing new	v Integrity Pla	ns Manual for it	udiciarv			
,	Establishment of the "Integrity Plans" as a preventive anti-corruption						
Objective	measure, consisting also as a part of the National Anti- corruption Strategy.						
Start-up	January 2006		·	·	- 0,		
Duration Period	January- July 2	006					
Estimated Cost	12,000.00 EUR	0					
Available Funds	Pilot Activity allo	ocated funds:	45,000.00 EUF	RO			
Beneficiaries	 The District 	Court and th	e Office of the I	District Prosecutor in Bel	lgrade		
	Whole judio	ciary					
		•	elevant NGOs				
Implemented by		orruption Cou					
		Court in Belg	•				
			Prosecutor in E				
		•	•	asures that will contribu	ite to the		
			ti-corruption St				
Outputs				olans aimed at reduc	ing and		
		corruption wit		al conduct and improve	omont of		
	the prevent		s unprofession	al conduct and improve	ement of		
			ale with ability to	help the other state or	ourte and		
	 Trained /educated officials with ability to help the other state courts and offices of prosecutors in drafting and implementing the "plans of 						
	integrity"; and						
	Model to be used by other courts and prosecutors office.						
	 Initial expert assistance with regard to assessment of the current 						
Inputs			•	guidelines used with re			
		ntegrity plans;	-				
	 Drafting the 	guidelines a	nd master plan	for integrity plans;			
	Compilation	n and publicat	ion of Integrity	Plans package;			
				ans within the District	Court of		
				of Belgrade; and			
			l monitors of int				
Actions/Activities	Time-line Venue Estimated Expected Notes						
E	1 2225	D 1 .	Cost	Results/outcomes			
Expert assistance to	January 2006	Belgrade	3000 EURO	Expert Assessment			
evaluate current		Report containing					
framework and		recommendations					
situations with respect				for actions and guidelines.			
to the corruption within				guideiiries.			
judiciary;							

Issuance of guidelines and suggestions for action.					
Establishment of a consultancy local group to initiate the drafting of the integrity plans in accordance to the given guidelines;		Belgrade	3500 EURO	5 Member Consultative Working Group is established;	
Drafting of integrity plans, by setting of rules for the conduct in accordance to the existing legal framework-(User Instructions)				Draft of Integrity Plans	
Workshop on finalising the Manual of Integrity Plans and issuing any necessary recommendations with respect to the existing legal framework.		Belgrade	1000 EURO	Final Manual of Integrity Plans is approved Follow up recommendations are submitted for	
				endorsement to the relevant authorities	
Publication of the Manual along with instructions for use.	'	Belgrade	1500 EURO	Manual published in 400 Copies.	
Dissemination in general and to other Courts/Prosecutorial offices as a sample.				All relevant authorities receive the copies.	
Informative Session to the officials on "integrity plans".	'	Serbia 3 cities	1000 EURO	Information disseminated, but also other offices of Judiciary initiate similar initiatives.	
Training the trainers in order to encourage sustainability of information and knowledge for similar initiatives	2006	Belgrade	2000 EURO	2 Activities held, and trainers are equipped with knowledge, capacities and guidelines for continuation of reform.	
Impact Expected in Jui					
Other general data	Strengthened in against corruption		utonomous cap	pacities of judiciary in t	the fight

Quality Indicators	Increased effectiveness in through new policies and regulations by preventing corruption
Quantity Indicators	 Number of judges and prosecutors at the mentioned offices included in the integrity plans; The number of effected judges and prosecutors by such plans; Number of "plans of integrity" applied during the first year and compared to the second year of its application; Number of trained personnel
Number of Users	Number of judges and prosecutors at the mentioned offices; Session being attended and manual being used by judges and prosecutors interested in these activities or representatives Number of other Courts/Prosecutors offices which initiated the application of Integrity plans

4.7.3 Observations/Comments (Update)

All activities foreseen under Output 1, and some under Output 3 have been carried out and show the current progress made as follows:

- An open and transparent process of drafting and later on adoption of the National Anti-corruption
 Strategy by a technical multidisciplinary and a representative Working Group of experts;
- Full involvement of all relevant institutions in presenting and thorough discussions with other government levels as well as parliamentarians concerning the introduction of this new document;
- Full initial involvement of the Anti-corruption Council in the process;
- Adoption of all recommendations provided during the course of drafting and finalisation of the Strategy by the Council of Europe experts;
- Initiation of the review for improving and amending the existing legislation: Law on Conflict of Interests and the Law on Financing of Political Parties.
- Endorsement by the Government and adoption by Parliament of the National Strategy in its integral version

Nevertheless, PACO Impact still remains <u>concerned</u> about the following issues, which slow down the reform process:

- Whether the Government and Parliament are indeed committed to pursue the reforms foreseen by the adopted National Anti-corruption Strategy remain to be seen;
- Several activities launched by the Anti-corruption Council (ACC) on its own have put a strain on relations with the Government, while at the final stages of the process the appropriation of the Strategy by the Ministry of Justice has lead to dissatisfaction and criticism from the ACC;
- Although a number of laws had been proposed and adopted, the legislation is still incomplete and requires adjustments in order to be compatible, applicable and in line with the now adopted National Strategy;
- Extensive and effective implementation of the National Strategy at all levels of decision making needs to be ensured
- There has been also a recurring concern on the part of the Anti-Corruption Council that by establishing a new and independent anti-corruption body, the Government is actually aiming to dissolve the Anti-corruption Council itself. Thus, the relationship between the Council and the Ministry of Justice has not been that well.

Considering the current situation, PACO Impact will consider the following <u>priorities</u> for the forthcoming period:

- Continue to provide the technical assistance foreseen within the Workplan in the same manner, i.e. through facilitation and mediation, as opposed to imposing, but at the same time by constantly communicating and discussing with the interlocutors to guide them in the right direction;
- Keep the momentum in view of further discussions concerning the Anti-corruption Action Plan and the new legislation;
- Keep a facilitating and mediating role between the Anti-corruption Council and Ministry of Justice in order to facilitate cooperation between these two important institutions;
- Continue to involve additional partners in the process of discussion with the government such as various Committees within the National Assembly, judges and prosecutors' associations and civil society; and
- Speed up the implementation of the Pilot Activity which finally has been re-scheduled to start at the end of January 2006.

5 ANNEX I: CALENDAR OF ACTIVITIES (UPDATE- 31/01/2006)

Note: This document reflects all carried or scheduled to be carried activities in accordance to the outputs of the workplan.

PMU - Project Management Unit = HQ and Field Office Secretariat of CoE

HTS - Head of Technical Cooperation Section

PM - Project Manger

LPO - Local Project Officer in each project area (part of the PMU)

CPD - Country Project Director nominated by authorities in each project area

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
February 200	4			
18-20 February	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits with ACMG, ACU and office of Minister of State, PG, MOJ and international organisation partners 	Tirana, Albania	30 total	Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon) LPO
March 2004		I	I	
3 - 5 March	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits GTZ/EAR,UNMIK/OLA, UNMIK/DOJ, PM Office for GGG, AC Ministerial WG, NGO rep. 	Pristina, Kosovo	20 total	Activity Funding Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon)
April 2004	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
21-23 April	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits OHR, MOJ, Ministry of Security, Prosecutorial Services, EUPM, NGO rep., HJPC 	Sarajevo, BIH	28 total	Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon)
28-30 April	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits AC State Commission, MOJ, Prosecutorial Services, Ministry of Interior, NGO reps 	Skopje fYROM	25 total	Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon)
May 2004				
5-7 May √	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits AC Initiative Agency, MOJ, Prosecutorial Services, Ministry of Interior, NGO reps 	Podgorica, Montenegro	25 total	Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon)
24 May √	Launching of the Anti-corruption Strategy of Kosovo	Pristina, Kosovo	50 total	Partly Activity Funding PM, GRECO Ex. Secretary Coop.w/ UNMIK/GTZ
31/05- /06 May/June	 "Start up" workshop Bilateral meetings/visits AC Council, Ministry of Interior, MOJ, Ministry of Finances, Judicial Training Institute, Bar 	Belgrade, Serbia	28 total	Activity Funding PM 1Consultant (K. Hemon) LPO

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
			17	
June 2004				
3-5 June	■ "Start up" workshop			Activity Funding
V	Bilateral meetings/visits	Zagreb,	20 total	PM
	USKOK, MOJ, Parliamentary	Croatia		1Consultant (K. Hemon)
	Commission, Ministry of Interior, NGO reps			
	Annual Evaluation Conference on			Activity Funding
23-25 June	the Implementation of the State	Ohrid,	50 total	TP-Recommendations
1	Programme for Prevention and	fYROM	2 (Serbia)	1 Consultant: K. Hemon
V	Repression of Corruption		3 observers	PM, CPD, LPO
July 2004	_ at		T	l
0.44 lolo	1 st Regional "Start-up"	Budva,	100 total	Activity Funding
8-11 July	Conference	Montenegro	5 Observers	(TP-Inception report) 2 Consultants: K. Hemon;
$\sqrt{}$				B.D Speville
,				3 Experts: D. Kreutzer; D.
				Kos; J P Bueb; (PMU)
28 July	Establishment of the WG for	Belgrade,		Meeting Facilitation
1	drafting/finalising the AC strategy	Serbia	15 total	Activity Synopsis
V	and action plan			CPD, LPO
August 2004			<u> </u>	Technical assistance to the
27 August	Establishment of the WG for	Pristina,	9 total	Meeting /funding
I	drafting the Action Plan on AC	Kosovo		Activity Synopsis
V	<u> </u>			CPD, LPO
September 2	T		ı	
13-14	Workshop sessions with M'	Podgorica,	10 total	2 consultants: K. Hemon;
September	authorities to re-structure initiate the	Montenegro		G. Klemencic (CARDS) Activity funding
	final draft of AC and OC programme			CPD, LPO
22, 23, 24	1 st Constituting Workshop for the	Belgrade,	20 total	Meeting
September	WG to discuss the drafting issues	Serbia		Facilitation/Funding
3 days	and review the AC strategy and			1 Expert: D. Kos
1	action plan (this activity shall be			Activity Synopsis
V	followed by 3 other technical			CPD, LPO, PM
20-30	workshops—see logical framework) Initiate Expert Review on the	Tirana,	ACU	1 Consultant: V. Devine
September	"Monitoring and Improvement of	Albania	,	TP-Written Opinion
	Indicators of Success in the AC			CPD, LPO
√	Plan"			
27	Initiate the Policy Dialogue on the	Zagreb,	5 total	Activity Funding
September	Establishment of the WG for review	Croatia		LPO, CPD, PM
-October	and update of the AC Programme			
	The WG will be meeting in 3 follow up workshops during October,			
'	November, December)			
End of	Technical support on translation of	Skopje,	SACC	Written report
September	the AC law and AC Programme.	fYROM	MOJ	Activity Funding

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	Preparation of a CD available for public distribution			CPD, LPO
October 2004				
6-7 October	(1) Technical Workshop on guidelines that will be used by WG when developing further the AC Strategy draft	Belgrade, Serbia	15 total	1 Consultant: G. Klemencic Activity funding Activity Synopsis CPD, LPO
9 October √	(2) Technical Workshop to Review the Legal Framework and Mandate of the ACC and the need for additional services and bodies	Belgrade, Serbia	25 total	Meeting Facilitation/Funding 1 consultant: D. Kos TP-Expert Opinion Activity Synopsis CPD, LPO
19-20 October	(3) Technical Workshop on Prevention and Public Awareness	Belgrade, Serbia	20 total	1 consultant: B. D Speville Activity funding Activity Synopsis TP-Paper CPD, LPO
20 October	Submission of Policy Advice Paper on the "Monitoring and Improvement of Indicators of Success in the AC Plan"	Strasbourg, France	ACU	TP-Policy Advice Paper CPD, LPO Translation in Albanian
20 October - 20 December	Initiate Expert review on the draft law of Conflict of Interests and existing provisions in the Albanian legislation	Tirana, Albania	ACU	1 CoE Expert (V. Devine) 1 OECD expert (H. Whitton) TP-Expert Opinion
October - December	Initiate expert review of: Law on funding of Political Parties Law on Conflict of Interests	Belgrade, Serbia	MOJ	1/2 Experts/Consultants; TP-Expert Opinion CPD, LPO ColD. Kos (CoE) Col-A. Freiberg (OECD); FPP-D. Kos (CoE)
25-26 October	1 st Workshop on reviewing the first draft of PART I of the Anti-corruption Action Plan	Pristina, Kosovo	17 total	Activity Funding 1 Expert: D. Kos Activity Synopsis CPD, LPO
25 October	RTD on the effectiveness of the revised Action Plan on AC IoS based on the expertise opinion	Tirana, Albania	35 total	Activity Funding Activity Synopsis TP-Paper CPD, LPO, PM
30 October √	(4) Technical Workshop on Law Enforcement and Specialised Bodies	Belgrade, Serbia	15 total	1 consultant: D. Kos Activity funding, CPD, LPO
November 20 Early November	Pilot Activity for Albania: Establishment of the WG for the Case Management pilot Activity for Albania by a decision of the PG	Tirana, Albania	PG/WG	Activity report LPO

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
			17AKIIOII I	
15-16	(1) RTD of the WG on the	Podgorica,	20 total	3 consultants:
November	finalisation of the AC and OC	Montenegro		G. Klemencic(CARPO);
1	programme (1 day) (2) Training			K. Hemon; B. de. Speville
V	Seminar on the AC Plan tools and guidelines (IoS) when implementing			Activity funding,
	the AC Programme (1 day)			Activity Synopsis CPD, LPO
15 November	Translation into English of the Law	Skopje,	SACC, MOJ	LPO assistance
7	on the Financing of Political Parties	fYROM	,	
November	Purchase of Computer equipment	Skopje,		Purchase funding
7	for the State Anticorruption	fYROM		Written Report
	Commission			LPO, CPD
December 20		0	40 +-+-1	A attribute Translina
7-8 December	Workshop on the Policy Discussion re: AC Coordinating and Monitoring	Sarajevo BiH	18 total	Activity Funding 1 Consultant/Expert
December	Body	ып		Activity Synopsis
, i	200,			CPD, LPO
9-10	4 th National Anti-corruption	Tirana,	80 total	Activity Funding
December	Conference to review impact and	Albania		Activity Synopsis
7	update AC Plan and Strategy			CPD, LPO, PM, HTS
9 December	Establishment of the Working	Zagreb,	20 total	Activity Synopsis
1	Group and organisation of the	Croatia		Dialogue Facilitation
V	Constituting Meeting: procedures			CPD, LPO
	and timetable on the new AC Strategy and Policy Advise			
13-15	Working Group Session to Review	Palic,	15-20	Meting facilitation
December	the first Draft of AC Strategy of	Serbia		1 consultant: D. Kos
V	Serbia			TP-Expert Opinion
				CPD, LPO
29/11/04-	Funding of CPD (member) from	Strasbourg,		Funding of Participation
3/12/04	SACC to participate to the GRECO	France	1 total	CPD (V. Mihajlova), PMU,
	plenary Session when evaluating			LPO
\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	fYROM compatibility report of GRECO			
20	Submission of the Expert Opinion	Strasbourg,		Technical Paper
December	on the Albanian draft Law on	France	ACU	LPO
1 1	Conflict of Interests to the Albanian			Translation into Albanian
	authorities for consideration.			
21-22	Seminar on the Implementation	Skopje,	50 total	1 Expert: P.Cornu
December ,	issues on the corruption related	fYROM		3 Local Experts
1 1	offences in accordance to the newly enforced Criminal Procedure Law			Activity funding Written Report
1	Sinoroca Offinina i Toccare Law			LPO, CPD
25	Submission of the Expert Opinion	Strasbourg,		Technical Paper
December	on the Serbian Law on Conflict of	France	MOJ	LPO
\ \ \ \	Interests to the Serbian authorities			
	for consideration.			
December	Pilot Activity for Albania: Drafting	Tirana,	PG/WG	Activity report
V	the Calendar of activities for Pilot	Albania		LPO

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	activity and review of forms on case			
	management;			
December	■ Publication of the Information	Skopje,		Publication Funding
1	Package on SACC	fYROM	SACC	Activity report
V	reports/framework for public and			CPD, LPO
	institutional use; Information dissemination			
January 2005				
January	Publication of leaflets with the	Tirana,	ACU	Publication and purchase
-early	materials on the Fight Against	Albania	7.00	funding
February	Corruption;			Written report
	■ Purchase of the Albanian			LPO, CPD
7	Jurisprudence Program (JURIST)			
13 January	Submission of the Policy Advisory	Strasbourg,		Technical Paper
1	Paper on Implementing and	France	MOJ	LPO
V	Monitoring Future Anti-corruption			
	Efforts in BiH to the BiH authorities for consideration.			
27-29	Compilation and Review of	Belgrade,	MOJ/WG	1 consultant: D. Kos
January	institutional comments on the Final	Serbia	Other	Activity report
	Draft of Anti-corruption Strategy of		institutions	CPD,LPO
\ \ \	Serbia and Advocacy Committee			
	Meeting with MOJ			
30 January	Submission of the Expert Opinion	Strasbourg,	PRSP	Technical Paper
	on the Serbian Law on Financing of	France	Coordinatio	2 Consultants: K. Hemon;
V	Political Parties to the Serbian authorities for consideration.		n Board	V. Devine LPO
	authorities for consideration.			Translation in Bosnian
31 January	Round Table Discussion to present			2 consultants: D. Kos and
1	and discuss Final Draft of the	Belgrade,	25 total	B. de Speville
\ \V	National Strategy against	Serbia		Activity Report CPD, LPO;
	Corruption for Serbia			(w/OSCE & EC)
February 200				
8 February	Initial Meeting of the working group	Zagreb,	WG / MOJ	Activity funding
	to discuss on the new Anti- corruption Programme for Croatia	Croatia	15 total	1 Consultant: B.de Speville Activity Report
1	and ToR for the AC Commission		(SPAI/RSL	LPO, PM
	4 7617 161 116 770 00111111051011		(O) A)/(OL	Li 0, 1 W
8 February	Training Seminar on the			1 Expert: B. Penko
	Implementation issues on the	Podgorica,	18 total	Activity funding
	corruption related offences in	Montenegro		Written Report
\ \	accordance to the newly enforced			LPO, CPD
0.5-5	CC and CPC	0	05 1-1 1	A =40,20
9 February	Training Seminar on investigation	Sarajevo,	25 total	Activity funding
	and criminal proceedings of corruption related offences	BiH		1 Expert: B. Penko; 1 Local Expert
1	Consequent rolated energes			Written report
				CPD, LPO

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
9-10 February	Training Seminar on the Implementation issues on the corruption related offences in accordance to the newly enforced Criminal law	Skopje, fYROM	50 total	2 Local Experts: Kambovski; Tupancevski Activity funding Written Report LPO, CPD
Mid- February √	Initiation Pilot Activity for BiH: Initiation of the Manual on the Practical Tools and guidelines in relation to the relevant legal provisions of Investigation and Prosecution of corruption related offences – Manual of Tools	Sarajevo, BiH	Prosec. Services	Activity funding 2 local consultants/twining with 1 intl' consultant (R. Huremagic; M.Tegeltija; B. Penko LPO
21-22 February	2 nd Workshop on reviewing the second draft of the Anti-corruption Action Plan	Pristina, Kosovo	60 total	Activity Funding 2 Local experts: Velija; Berisha Written report CPD, LPO, PM
23 February	Workshop on streamlining the Anti- corruption services knowledge and relevant policy advice for the relevant bodies, media and public representative groups.	Sarajevo, BiH	23 total	Activity Funding 1 Consultant K. Hemon 1 Expert: D. Kos Activity Synopsis TP-Recommendations LPO, PM
March 2005			I	·
11 March √	1 st meeting of the drafting Working Group to initiate the drafting of the Anti-corruption Programme for Croatia	Zagreb, Croatia	15total	Activity Funding Written Report CPD, LPO
16-17 March	Start up workshop on the Newly Established Unit for Combating Corruption within the Public Prosecutors' Office	Mavrovo, fYROM	25 total	Activity Funding, Activity report 2 Consultants: R. Wyss; D. Thelesklaf Activity Synopsis; CPD, LPO
18 March	2nd meeting of the Working Group to initiate the drafting of Anti- corruption measures in the National Strategy against Corruption	Zagreb, Croatia	11 total	Facilitation of Activity Activity Synopsis LPO
31/03-1/04	1st Regional Thematic Seminar: On the AC Services in SEE 7 Country delegations High Level Meeting (second day)	Skopje, fYROM	70 total (46 -funded)	Activity funding 3 Experts/consultants D. Kos, B. de Speville, K. Hemon, Published TP; PMU, LPOs
April 2005				
5 April	Submission of the Advisory Paper on the Anti-corruption Strategy and Action Plan of (MTDS) of BiH.	Strasbourg/ Sarajevo, BiH	EPPU	Activity Funding 1 Consultant: V. Devine LPO
15 April -1	Advisory Paper on the Second Draft	Strasbourg-		Activity Funding

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
May	of the Anti-corruption Action Plan of	Pristina,	Office of GG	TP-Advisory Paper
Wilay	Kosovo.	Kosovo	Office of GG	2 Consult's: K. Hemon;D.
18 April	3 rd Working Group meeting to	Zagreb,		Facilitation of Activity
V	review the first draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy	Croatia	10 total	Activity Synopsis LPO
May 2005				
5-6 May	Training Seminar on Public Information Law for local and regional government elected officials	Tirana, Albania	40 total	1 local expert: G. Ibrahimi Activity funding Written Report CPD, LPO
May - September	Publication of information package on SACC and initiation of a new PR campaign with media (including other several promotional activities).	Skopje, fYROM	SACC and Media/Other institutions	Publication Funding Activity report CPD, LPO
11-12 May	Pilot Activity (BiH): Inception meeting of consultants to draft the Outline of the "Manual of Tools".	Sarajevo, BiH	4 total	Activity funding 2 local consultants/twining with 1 intl' consultant (R. Huremagic; M.Tegeltija; B. Penko; LPO
13, 14 May √	Regional Conference on the new measures for prevention of corruption concerning the Drafting of the new Annex of State Programme on local government related measures	Ohird, fYROM	45 total	2 local experts from SACC Activity Funding Activity report CPD, LPO
June 2005				
6 June 14 June 14 June	3 Training Seminars for Court Administration Staff (Law clerks) on anti-corruption measures within administration of judiciary	3 regional areas Skopje, Stip, Bitola fYROM	SACC Supr. Ct 30 prs/ x 3; 90 total	Activity Funding 2 Local Experts from SACC Written report CPD, LPO
10-11 June √	2 nd Regional Thematic Seminar: On the Legislation Reform Services Note: 2 additional delegations (Moldova + Romania) within the framework of SPAI	Durres, Albania	50 total	Activity funding 2 CoE Experts: G. Klemencic; Gj. Rouchev 1 UNODC Expert: V. Labaux Written report; PMU, LPO Co-funded w/SPAI/RSLO
13 June	RTD to discuss implementation issues related to new Law on the Prevention of the Conflict of Interests and its necessary secondary legislation Consulting Workshop on the	Tirana, Albania Sarajevo,	50 total	Funding of the Activity TP- Recommendations OECD Experts. A. Freiberg CPD, LPO, PM Activity funding
√ V	"Initiation of Revision of the Anti- corruption Strategy and Action Plan" for EPPU	BiH	10 total	Consultant: K. Hemon Written report; LPO, PM

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	Annual Evaluation Conference on			Activity Funding
29-30 June	the Implementation of the State	Ohrid,		TP- Recommendations
V	Programme for Prevention and	fYROM	60 total	1 Consultant: B.de Speville
	Repression of Corruption			CPD, LPO
30 June – 1	Pilot Activity for Albania: Visit of	Celle,	PG/WG	Activity funding
July	the Working Group on the best	Germany	7 total	2 Experts: E. Nochlin; H.
1	practices from the German case			Range
V	management			Final Recommendations
II 0005				LPO, PM
July 2005	Dublication of the Albanian National	Tinon	4011	Dublication and Translation
Early July	Publication of the Albanian National	Tirana,	ACU	Publication and Translation
	Anti-corruption Strategy and Acton	Albania		Funding
5-7 July	Plan (2005) Initiation of Pilot Activity for	Dodgorioo	Supreme	LPO 2 Experts:
5-7 July	Montenegro: Expert Assessment	Podgorica, Montenegro	Prosecutor	E. Nochlin & B. Penko
	and Review s of procedures for the	Wiontenegro	Special	Activity funding
*	office of the Supreme Public		prosecutor	TP- Expert Opinion
	Prosecutor and Special Prosecutor		Other	LPO, CPD, PM
	Troccottor and openiar rescoutor		institutions	[
July-August	Pilot Activity for Montenegro:	Podgorica,	SP	Purchase funding
l l	Purchase of office equipment for	Montenegro		Written Report
1 1	the newly established office of SP			LPO
29 July	RTD on the implementation aspects	Sarajevo,	37 total	Activity funding
1	of the international standards	BiH		1 international expert: B.
\ \V	applied to the corporate liability			Penko and 1 local
	provisions in the BiH legislation			expert:Lj. Filipovic
				Activity report
				LPO
30 July	Pilot Activity (BiH): Second	Sarajevo,	4 total	Activity funding
	consultation meeting on the first	BiH		2 local consultants/twining
V	draft of the "Manual of Tools".			with 1 intl' consultant
				(R. Huremagic; M.Tegeltija;
				B. Penko; LPO
August 2005				
1-9 August	Initiation of the review of the Draft	Podgorica,		Activity funding in
	Law on Conflict of Interest for	Montengro		cooperation with 2 OECD
V	Montenegro			Experts: A. Freibert , H.
				Whitton
19 August	RTD of the WG on the	Pristina,	46 total	and V. Devine (CoE) 1 Expert: D. Kos
i a August	establishment and the nature of the	Kosovo	ייט וטומו	Activity funding
	AC Agency in accordance to the	1,03070		TP-Recommendations
•	new Anti-corruption Law			CPD, LPO
	Presentation of the National	Belgrade,	30-40 total	Activity Funding
End-August	Strategy to media, and	Serbia	30 70 total	TP-Activity Report
\ \frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}	representatives of Civil Society	20,010		CPD, LPO
,				0. 5, 2. 0
30 August	Mid-term Review of PACO Impact	Strasbourg,	20 total	Sida HQ representatives

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
2/	Project	France		CoE HQ - PMU; 7 LPOs,
V				CPDs
September 2	005	Stranbourg	10 total	CoE HQ – PMU
September	Project Management Training for PMU Team	Strasbourg, France	าง เงเลเ	7 LPOs HRD funded training
2-3 September	Worksop dedicated to preparing / drafting guidelines for drafting a new Anti-corruption Law	Belgrade, Serbia	35 total	Activity funding 1 consultant: D. Kos LPO, CPD
12 September	Submission of the Expert Opinion on the Conflict-o-Interest Draft Law review to the Parliamentary Commission	Podgorica, Montenegro		Activity Funding LPO, CPD
8 September	Technical Workshop for the WG on guidelines and tools of drafting Action Plan on Anti-corruption and review of the draft of National Anti- Corruption Strategy	Zagreb, Croatia	25 total	Activity Funding CPD, LPO
30 September −1 October	Workshop to discuss issues of concern on the draft Law on Conflict of Interests as presented by the Expert Review	Becic, Montenegro	8 total	Activity funding Meting facilitation 2 OECD Experts TP-Expert Opinion CPD, LPO
October 2005				
8 October	4th Working Group meeting to review the first draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy	Zagreb, Croatia	16 total	Facilitation of Activity Activity Synopsis LPO
10 October	Pilot Activity for Montenegro: Submission of the Advisory Paper on the Assessment and	Strasbourg- Podgorica, Montenegro	State Prosecutor	Technical Advisory Paper LPO
	Recommendations regarding the Strengthening of the Prosecutorial Services in Montenegro	j	Special Prosecutor	
19 October √	1 st Annual National Conference on Anti-Corruption	Podgorica, Montenegro	50 total	Activity funding 1 expert/consultant in cooperation with UNDP and OACI CPD, LPO, PM
20 October	Initiation of the Expert review of the First Draft of Anti-corruption Program for the Republic of Croatia	Strasbourg		Activity fudnign 2 Experts: G. Klemencic and V. Devine
20 October	Pilot Activity for Albania: Final Master Plan submission to the Office of PG; production of the final forms of CM; in accordance to the Action Plan of the Pilot Activity	Tirana, Albania	PG office	Activity funding Activity report WG Coordinator; LPO, PM

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
		<u> </u>		T
21-22 October	Pilot Activity (BiH): Third consultation meeting on the second draft of the "Manual of Tools"	Sarajevo, BiH	4 total	Activity funding 2 local consultants / twining with 1 intl' consultant (R.Huremagic; M.Tegeltija; B.Penko;LPO)
28 October	5 th - and final Working Group meeting to finalise the draft of the National Anti-corruption Strategy	Turopolje, Croatia	16 total	Facilitation of Activity Activity Synopsis LPO
November 20				
9 November	Working Group Meeting on the finalisation of the Draft of the Anti-corruption program for Republic of Croatia	Zagreb, Croatia	20 total	Activity Funding 1 Expert: G. Klemencic LPO, CPD
9 November	Finalise selection of the PR officer for OACI aimed at strengthening capacities of OACI to monitor and coordinate the implementation of the AC programme and maintain PR contacts.	Podgorica. Montenegro	OACI	1 short term PR officer Written MoU with OACI CPD, LPO
18-19 November	3 rd Regional Thematic Seminar: On the AC Services [and Col Law—OECD] Note: 2 additional delegations (Moldova + Romania) within the framework of SPAI	Belgrade, Serbia	50 total	Activity funding 2 Consultants: B. De Speville; V. Devine + OECD expert and co- funding Written report PMU, LPOs; CPD; + OECD
28 November 05 – Jan 06	Initiation of the Public Perception Survey from State Commission in "the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia"	Skopje, FYROM	SACC	Activity funding LPO CPD
28 November	Initiation of the Drafting of the new Anti-corruption law for Serbia	Belgrade, Serbia	MOJ	Activity funding 1 Expert: D. Kos LPO, CPD
30 November	Submission to MOJ of the Expert Review on the Draft of National Anti-corruption Program of Republic of Croatia	Zagreb, Croatia		Activity funding LPO, CPD 2 Experts: V. Devine and G. Klemencic
December 20			0.5	I == .
15 Dec 05- July 2006	Initiation of the PR component support): Strengthening the capacities of OACI to monitor and coordinate the implementation of the AC programme	Podgorica. Montenegro	OACI	1 short term PR consultant Written MoU with OACI CPD, LPO, PR Officer Activity Monthly Report
8 December	RTD to seek the approval of all involved institutions for the Final version of the Action Plan on Anti-	Pristina, Kosovo	12 total	Activity funding Written Report CPD, LPO

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS	
		T	I		
	corruption				
10 – 12	Initiation of Drafting the outline of	Belgrade	MOJ	Activity funding 1 expert: D. Kos	
December	the Anti-corruption Law	e Anti-corruption Law Serbia			
January 2006				LPO	
January 2006	Pilot Activity (BiH): Final	Sarajevo,	4 total	Activity funding	
January	consultation meeting on the final	BiH	4 (0(a)	2 local consultants/twining	
Juliany	text of the "Manual of Tools".	Bii i		with 1 intl' consultant	
1 1	Proofreading; translation and			(R. Huremagic; M.Tegeltija;	
	publication of the Manual of Tools.			B. Penko; PM, LPO	
	Pilot Activity for Croatia:	Zagreb,	USKOK and	Purchase funding	
13 January	Purchase of Equipment for USKOK	Croatia	field offices	LPO coordination	
7	and its regional offices				
15 Janjuary	At large dissemination of 460	Skopje,	SAC	Activity Funding	
1 1	copies of "The Compilation of CoE	fYROM	CoE	LPO and CPD	
	instruments on Corruption, Good		Information	Written Report	
	Governance and Economic Crime"		Office		
	in Macedonian language				
	Worksop dedicated to the Draft	Belgrade,		Activity funding	
20-21	Anti-corruption Law	Serbia	20 total	Working Group (5	
January 1				members) 1 Consultant: D. Kos	
Y				LPO	
	RTD on tools of operations between	Podgorica,	15 – 20 total	Activity funding,	
	the ACIA, special prosecutor,	Montenegro		Written report,	
	Department for Combating	_		CPD, LPO	
	Organized Crime at the Mol,				
25 January	Ombudsman office, Commission for				
(postpone)	Preventing Of Conflict of Interest in				
	delineating their task with respect to				
	monitoring, prevention and repression of corruption.				
_	Training Seminar on the substance	Pristina,	30 – 35	Activity funding	
	and Treaty law on setting up	Kosovo		2 Expert: G. Roupchev; I.	
27 January	standards and implementing the			van Heers	
(postpone)	relevant AC and Mutual assistance			Written report	
	CoE conventions/instruments			CPD, LPO	
	RTD on Draft Law on Criminal	Podgorica,	40 – 50 total	Co-funding of the activity	
31 January	Liability of Legal Entities	Montenegro		(together with the OSCE),	
(postpone)				Written report,	
	Dilet Activity for Creeking Day 1	70000	N/al	CPD, LPO	
21 Ιορμοπί	Pilot Activity for Croatia: Provide	Zagreb,	Mol	Purchase funding	
31 January	SIMS Equipment for the Economic Crime Dept at the Mol	Croatia	ECD	LPO coordination	
	Pilot Activity for Serbia: Expert		ACC	Activity funding	
	evaluation and recommendations		representati	1 CoE Expert	
January	regarding the "Integrity Plans" to be	Belgrade	ves from the	LPO	

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	used in the judiciary (Belgrade District Court and Prosecutors office)	Serbia	District Court and Prosecutors Office	
January	Pilot Activity for Serbia: Establishment of the local consultancy group to draft the integrity plans in accordance with the given guidelines	Belgrade Serbia	WG	Activity funding Working Group (5 members) LPO
February 200	6			
2 and 3 February	RTD and Expert review on of the policy and legal framework of the new Albanian DIAC and AC Task Force establishment (structure, ToR, accountability, legal framework tools)	Strasbourg, France	4	2 Experts: V. Devine; G. Klemencic TP-Expert opinion LPO, CPD, PM HTS
February	Legal Expertise or/and Workshop on envisaging additional anti-corruption institutions	Belgrade Serbia	35 total	Activity funding 1 consultant: B. de Speville/V. Devine LPO, PM, CPD
February	Pilot Activity for Albania: Organisation of two technical meetings for the approval of final standard forms	Tirana, Albania	PG Office	Activity funding Activity report WG Coordinator, LPO
February	Pilot Activity for Serbia: Drafting of the "Integrity Plans" plan to be used in the judiciary (Belgrade district Court and Prosecutors office): Production of Manual of Users	Belgrade Serbia	Working Group DC + DP	Activity funding Working Group (5 members) 1 CoE Expert LPO
February	Pilot Activity (BiH) Promotion RTD on the "Manual of Tools"	Sarajevo, BiH	34-40	Activity funding 2 local consultants/twining with 1 intl' consultant R. Huremagic; M.Tegeltija; B. Penko; PM, LPO
13-17 February	Pilot Activity for fYROM: Conduct Twining activity with the counterpart AC institutions of Estonia - Organisation of RTD and bilateral meetings	Estonia	10total SACC	Activity Funding Written report CPD, LPO
Mid- February	1 Week Drafting/Revision: Provision of expertise of revision / drafting of the Anti-Corruption Strategy and Action Plan in accordance to the MTDS (previously PRSP)	ВіН	10-15	Activity funding 6 Experts/Consultants V. Devine & D. Kos LPO, PM In cooperation/coordination with ABA/CEELI
End February	Pilot Activity for Kosovo: Order and purchase of equipment	Pristina, Kosovo	ACA	Activity funding Inventory equipment report

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
		Γ	T	Г
	(delivery) for the ACA			LPO
End	National Conference on	Zagreb,	30 total	Activity funding
February	Endorsement of the Redefined	Croatia		Written report
2006	National Anti corruption Strategy Expert Workshop on Drafting of the	Pristina,	20 total	CPD, LPO Activity funding and
February	under-statutory act under the Anti-	Kosovo	20 total	facilitation
Cordary	corruption Law in Kosovo	1103070		1 Expert/Consultant
				Written report; CPD, LPO
February	1 st Expert Workshop on the Drafting	Podgorica		Activity funding and
	of the Anti-corruption Action Plan in	Montenegro	10 total	facilitation
	accordance to the AC and OC		Mol	1 Expert/Consultant
	Programme			Written report; CPD, LPO
March 2006			ı	
	Training on Treaty law on setting up	Zagreb,		Activity funding
2-3 March	standards and implementing the	Croatia	15-20 total	2 CoE Experts: G.
	relevant AC and Mutual assistance CoE conventions/instruments			Roupchev
	COE CONVENIIONS/INSTIGMENTS			Written report CPD, LPO
March	Pilot Activity for Serbia:	Belgrade	Working	Activity funding
	Workshop on finalising the Integrity	Serbia	Group	Working Group (5
	Plans under the Manual of Users		DC + DP	members)
	and Recommendations for			1 CoE Expert
	improvement			LPO
end	WG Workshop to review and	Zagreb,		Activity Funding
March	present Recommendations on	Croatia	25 total	1 Consultant: G. Klemecic
TBC	Policy Advise on establishing the			TP-Expert Opinion/Rec
	AC Monitoring Body Two RTDs on the follow up of the	Belgrade,	25 total	CPD, LPO Activity Funding
March	expert opinions on the laws on	Serbia	25 total	Written report
Warch	Funding of Political Parties and	OCIDIA		LPO
	Conflict of Interests.			2.10
	Initiation of Publication and	Zagreb,	MOJ	Publication Funding
End of	dissemination of the Final version of	Croatia		Report
March	the AC Programme (AC Plan and			LPO
	Strategy)			
March/April	2nd Expert Workshop on the	Podgorica		Activity funding and
	Drafting of the Anti-corruption	Montenegro	25 total	facilitation
	Action Plan in accordance to the AC		Mol	1 Expert/Consultant
Marah	and OC Programme	Ckonio	Cumiou	Written report; CPD, LPO
March	Public Event on launching the results of the Public Perception	Skopje, FYROM	Survey Institute/Co	Activity funding LPO CPD
	Survey from State Commission in	1 TIXOW	SACC	[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[
	"the Former Yugoslav Republic of		0,100	
	Macedonia"			
	Pilot Activity for Albania:	Tirana,	PG Office	Activity report
	Issuance of PG's Order for the	Albania		WG Coordinator, LPO, 1
	Case Management System and its			Local Consultant
March	normative act; Distribution of			

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	standard form; Preparation and production of software for case management database			
March	Expert Review on the law amending the Law on the Funding of Political Parties.	Tirana, Albania	ACU and WG 20-25 Total	Written Expertise TP-Expert Opinion LPO
April 2006				
April	Training Seminar of the DIAC staff on the monitoring and management of the AC Action Plan and Strategy (2 days)	Durres, Albania	35-40 total	Activity Funding 1 Expert/consultant Written report CPD, LPO
April 2006	Pilot Activity for fYROM: Conduct Twining activity with the counterpart AC institutions of Italy Organisation of RTD – bilateral meetings	Italy	15 total	Activity Funding Written report CPD, LPO
April	Publication of the Manual of Users Serbia		Working Group DC + DP	Activity funding Working Group (5 members) 1 CoE Expert LPO
April	Pilot Activity for Kosovo: Order and purchase of equipment (delivery) for the ACA	Pristina, Kosovo	ACA	Activity funding Inventory equipment report LPO
April (TBC)	Expert review on the existing legislation related to Immunities of High Officials (including judges and prosecutors)	Tirana, Albania	DIAC	1 Expert/Consultant TP-Expert Opinion CPD, LPO
Mid-April	4 th Regional Thematic Seminar: On Prosecutorial Services	Hamburg, Germany	35-40 total	Activity funding 3-5 Experts/consultants Written report PMU, LPO
April	Policy Advice on the initiation of the Establishment of an Anti-Corruption Coordinating and Monitoring Commission (based on reviewed Anti-corruption Strategy and Action Plan)	Sarajevo, BiH	10-15	Activity Funding and Facilitation 1 Expert /Consultant Written Report CPD, LPO
April-May	Pilot Activity for Albania: Organisation of 4 Regional Seminars to Introduce the Manual and the Case management forms to all district prosecutors	Shkoder Durres Vlore Gjorokaster	200 total	Activity funding 1 international expert 1 local expert CPD, LPO, PM
May 2006			1	
May	Pilot Activity for Serbia: Organisation of training on Train the Trainers on the integrity plans with	Serbia	Working Group DC + DP	Activity funding Working Group (5 members)

TIMING	ACTIVITY	VENUE	NO. OF PARTICIP.	COE INVOLVEMENT/INPUTS
	other Courts and Prosecutors office. (2 sessions)			1 CoE Expert LPO
May	Training Seminar "Case Study" practicalities of initiating and proceedings against a corruption related offence	Zagreb, Croatia	20-25 total	Activity funding 1 Expert/consultant Activity report LPO
May	Training Seminar for the administrative staff at the Office of Special Prosecutor	Podgorica, Montenegro	SP + Staff of Supreme Prosecutor	1 Expert/Consultant Activity funding Activity report LPO, CPD
May	Training Seminar on the functioning of Public Information Offices in accordance to the Law on "Freedom for Information"	Tirana, Albania	20-25 total	1 Local Consultant Activity funding Activity report LPO, CPD
End of May	5 th Regional Thematic Seminar on the AC Services	Zagreb, Croatia	50 total	Activity funding 2 Experts/consultants Written report; PMU, LPO
June 2006				
June	Pilot Activity for Serbia: Dissemination of knowledge to other courts and prosecutors offices (3 Informative sessions)	Serbia	Working Group DC + DP	Activity funding Working Group (5 members) 1 CoE Expert LPO
June	RTD with business community representatives on issues of corporate liability for legal persons	Tirana, Albania	30 total	Activity funding Written report LPO
July 2006				
Mid July 2 – 3 days	6 th Regional Project Evaluation and Final Conference	Strasbourg, France	100 total	Activity funding 2 Experts/consultants 2 Evaluators Written Final Project report PMU, CPDs, Observers

7 ANNEX II: LIST OF TECHNICAL PAPERS (UPDATE)

Version of 30 November 2005

TP Number	Date	Project Area/Title	Prepared by: Expert/Consultant
TP-44 (2004)	28 January 2004	Montenegro (S&M): The 1 st Draft Programme for Combating Corruption and Organised Crime in Montenegro	Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom Mr. Goran Klemencic, Slovenia
TP-45 (2004)	30 August 2004	PACO Impact: Analysis Report on Gender and Corruption in SEE countries	Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom
TP-46 (2004) Eng Alb TP-46 (2004) Annex	18 October 2004	Albania: Improving Success Indicators of the Albanian Anti- corruption Action Plan Matrix 2004	Ms. Vera Devine, Belgium
TP-47 (2004)	20 October 2004	Serbia (S&M): Prevention and Public Awareness Issues of the National Anti-corruption Strategy for Serbia	Mr. Bertrand de Speville, United Kingdom
TP-48 (2004) Annex OECD/SIGMA	25 November 2004	Albania: The draft Law on Prevention of Conflicts of Interest In the Exercise of Public Functions	Ms. Vera Devine, Belgium + OECD/ <u>SIGMA</u>
TP-49 (2004) Annex OECD/SIGMA	20 December 2004	Serbia (S&M): The Law on Prevention of Conflict of Interests in Discharge of Public Office	Mr. Drago Kos, Slovenia + OECD/ <u>SIGMA</u>
TP-50 (2004)	20 December 2004	Montenegro (S&M): Issues and practical implementation of a national anti-corruption programme: methods of measuring its progress	Mr. Bertrand de Speville, United Kingdom
PC-TP-51 (2004)	20 December 2004	Montenegro (S&M): The 2 nd Draft Programme for Combating Corruption and Organised Crime in Montenegro	Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom Mr. Goran Klemencic, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 2	11 January 2005	PACO Impact: Inception Report (March-July 2004) and workplan guiding project implementation	Project Management Unit
PC-TC(2005) 3	13 January 2005	BiH: Implementing and Monitoring Future Anti-corruption Efforts	Ms. Vera Devine, Belgium Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom

PC-TC(2005) 4	31 January 2005	Serbia (S&M): The Law on Financing of Political Parties of the Republic of Serbia	Mr. Drago Kos, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 5	23 February 2005	BiH: Policy advice for the Relevant Bodies	Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom Mr. Drago Kos, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 6	10 April 2005	BiH: Advisory Paper. Comments on AP + ACS & Progress Rep.	Ms. Vera Devine, Belgium
PC-TC(2005) 7	30 May 2005	Kosovo: The 1 st Draft Advisory Paper Kosovo. Com on AP of Kosovo	Ms. Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom Mr. Drago Kos, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 8/PI	April-June 2005	Compendium of AC Services in SEE: Strengthening Anti-corruption services and efforts in South-East Europe	Project Management team + Ms Vera Devine, Belgium
PC-TC(2005) 9/PI	June 2005	BiH: Initiation of revision of the anti-corruption strategy chapter and its action plan for BiH.	Ms Kristina Hemon, United Kingdom
PC-TC(2005) 10	24 June 2005	"the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia": Evaluation and recommendations on the implementation of the State Programme for the prevention and repression of corruption. National Conference, Ohrid, June 2005	Mr Bertrand de Speville, United Kingdom
PC-TC(2005) 11	June-July 2005	Pilot activity (Albania): Initiating the implementation of the case management reform aimed at preventing corruption within the prosecutorial services, Celle, Germany	Ms Elizabeth Nochlin, United States Mr Harald Range, Germany
PC-TC(2005) 12	July 2005	Pilot activity (Montenegro): Assessment and Recommendations regarding the strengthening of the prosecutorial services in Montenegro	Ms Elizabeth Nochlin, United States Mr Bostjan Penko, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 13	31 July 2005	PACO Impact: 2 nd Semi Final Report (February-July 2005)	Project Management Unit
PC-TC(2005) 14	8 September 2005	Montenegro: Expert Review on the Draft law on Conflict-of-Interest	Ms Vera Devine, Belgium (CoE) Mr Howard Whitton (OECD) Ms Anke Freibert (OECD)
PC-TC(2005) 15	20 September 2005	PACO Impact: Summary of Expert Report on the Mid-term Review Meeting of PACO Impact (30 August 2005)	Project Management Unit Ms Vera Devine Mr Bertrand de Speville

PC-TC(2005) 16	30 November 2005	Croatia: Expert Opinion and Comments on the Draft Program for Suppression of Corruption of the Republic of Croatia	Ms Vera Devine, Belgium Mr Goran Klemencic, Slovenia
PC-TC(2005) 17	15 December 2005	PACO Impact: Summary of Group Discussions during the 3 rd Thematic Seminar on Anti-corruption Services and Conflict-of-Interest Laws	Project Management Unit